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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CYpE ]

PMBEE

Revenue decreased by approximately 4.1% to RMB453.2 million

(2017: RMB472.5 million).

Gross profit decreased by approximately 18.5% to RMB249.0 million

(2017: RMB305.6 million).

(Loss) for the Year was approximately RMB(112.8) million (2017:

profit of RMB10.8 million).

(Loss) per share was RMB(11.92) cents (2017: earnings per share

RMBO0.44 cent).

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend

(2017:Nil) for the Year or any special dividend (2017: Nil).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

To the Shareholders,
On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Nanjing Sinolife

United Company Limited (the “Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year”).

BRR

RARKRERPLEBEROBERAD(AQT ] ZEREMBLAARB[AEE)ES
(EENE(EBE)MARZAEEBE2018F 12AN BLEFE((AFE D)WL
BEREFRE -

n NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Chairman’s Statement

In 2018, to further implement the Group’s development strategy, the
Group continued to diversify its various sales channels including TV
shopping platforms, distributors and e-commerce platforms, as well as to
strengthen the marketing of the Good Health brand. Furthermore, the
Group has achieved increasing brand recognition in the target markets
through adopting the strategies of focusing on the Good Health brand.

In 2019, the Company will focus on the development and cultivation of
maternity stores channels and distributor channels, increase pharmacy
channels and e-commerce platforms, and focus on expanding sales
channels in the PRC. As for technological research and development, more
efforts will be made to carry out scientific and technological innovation to
lay a solid foundation for the future of the Company.

The Phase | of Sinolife United Research and Development Centre is
completed and currently in service. This centre will be equipped with a
comprehensive range of research equipment, which is operated by the
developed research team to apply the cutting-edge research
technologies, will enable the Group to speed up the progress in its
research projects with respect to health food products domestically and
abroad.

Health has always been a topic for humanity. Regardless of maternity and
child, sub-healthy, or healthy demographics, they all have the demand
and desire for scientific health. Since its establishment, the Company has
always persisted in the work of health protection, health management,
health and safety, which is also the belief and pursuit of the Company.

We believe health means longevity, vigour, and happiness.

In safeguarding health, the Company upholds high quality and high
standards. Upon completion of Sinolife United Research and Development
Centre, the Company has entered a new stage of development.
Meanwhile, the Company also understands that the road ahead remains
very long, mixed with opportunities and challenges. The Company will
certainly keep pace with the times and uphold the cultural spirit with one
step at a time to serve the society and create value.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
SEREE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express that the Group would grip
the opportunity to promote Good Health as well as expand its health
products in several sales channels food business in the PRC, New Zealand
and Australia in order to improve the health conditions of people.

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman of the Board

29 March 2019

*  Foridentification purposes only
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PRODUCT INFORMATION
EmEH

GOOD HEALTH

HREEZRT

Propolis Capsules Oyster Plus Capsules
RREBBE HIERBE
Hi CalTM Liquid Calcium & Vitamin D Goats’ Milk Powder
515 — REHMELEED ITE5} )
Grape Seed 55,000 Capsules 1-a-day Glucosamine
BEE ¥ 55,000 2% SEFHEHE
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PRODUCT INFORMATION
Emiar

ZHONGSHENG

R4 RS

Coenzyme Q10 Tablet/Capsules
WHEQ, N BE

Gui Shi Wei Si Capsules
EREEDBE

Acer Truncatum Bunge Seed Oil (Kanghe)
Rk T BN HE HER

Linolenic Acid Soft Capsules
DR B E

Selenium-enriched Yeast B- Glucan Capsules
EMESR-ARREEE

Ruiyang Yuansheng Capsule (Zhongsheng)
REGERRERE
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PRODUCT INFORMATION
EmEH

HEJIAN

REZR

Hejian Blueberry Pressed Candy
AEEEEEZHEEBAER

Glucosamine Hydrochloride Tablets

F[ER SRS~

Hejian Sterol & Natto Pressed Candy
KEHBAZRBAER

Hejian Haematococcus Pressed Candy
RBREALER 5 HER

Bones Capsules
BERERBE

Ginseng Deer Tendon Jing Tai Tablet
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PRODUCT INFORMATION
Emiar

CONBAIR/COBAYER

BEEEARY

Manuka Honey ACAI Capsules
BEREE MEFEE
Algae DHA Oil Soy Protein Powder
DHA %) REEBH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

To further implement the Group's development strategy, during the Year,
the Group continued to diversify its various sales channels including TV
shopping platforms, distributors and e-commerce platforms, as well as to
strengthen the marketing of the Good Health brand. Annual sales revenue
of products, such as Zhongsheng series products, Hejian series products
and Cobayer series products, decreased during the Year as compared to
that of 2017. Revenue of the Group decreased from approximately
RMB472.5 million for 2017 to approximately RMB453.2 million for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 4.1%. The Group recorded a loss
of approximately RMB112.8 million, as compared to a profit of
approximately RMB10.8 million for 2017.

During the Year, the Group has achieved increasing brand recognition in
the target markets through adopting the strategies of focusing on the
Good Health brand and sales promotion through distributors, TV
shopping, e-commerce and other channels. The Group carried out
continuous brand building and promotion mainly through combination
of TV shopping platforms, online call centres and retail shops under the
Zhongsheng brand in the PRC, the mutual penetration of distributors
under the Good Health and the Living Nature brands, chain pharmacies
and travel channels in the overseas, and at the same time by opening
flagship stores on domestic and foreign major e-commerce platforms.

During the Year, in order to enhance the market competitiveness of its
products and meet the evolving consumer demands, the Group has
adopted a market-oriented research and a product development strategy
to further strengthen the development of new products. During the Year,
the Group has launched a total of 30 new products, including 4
Zhongsheng series products, 6 Hejian series products, 11 Good Health
series products and 9 Living Nature series products. New products mainly
comprise Turmeric Sport, Magnesium Small Capsules, CO-Q10 400mg,
Turmeric Extra Strength (Reformulation), Magnesium Sleep, Turmeric +
Probiotics, Viralax sachet Revive, Zhongshengpai Vitamin C Chews and
HejianPai probiotic solid beverage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN MY

il

During the Year, the Group has devoted more effort in Good Health's
brand promotion and undergone continuous brand marketing and
publicity through various channels in the PRC and the overseas. The

Group continued to carry out the following marketing activities in the PRC:

U]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

seasonal promotions and discounts on major Chinese holidays;

participation in trade fairs such as China International Health
Products Expo (7 Bl BB 2 BR EE /B ), CBME Children-Baby-
Maternity Expo (CBME R B 2222 Z R B ® ) and China International
Healthcare Fxpo (B BUPR (RIZIEE &),

cooperation with various domestic TV channels for TV shopping;
and

internet advertising.

In overseas markets, the Group promoted its brands through the following
methods, including:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

hiring Mr. Richie McCow (former captain of the All Blacks in New
Zealand) and his wife to participate in Good Health product
promotion activities;

sponsoring netball team Northern Mystics;

extensive promotion of magnesium and Viralex products through
media channels such as television and radio;

online and offline promotions with distributors; and

extensive use of social media campaigns and informative blog posts
for interaction between consumers and brands.

The Group has made great effort to develop its TV shopping platforms
during the Year and has built cooperation with 13 platforms including
yougou.com, hao24.com, ocj.com.cn, Global Home Shopping, FS
Shopping and CCTV Home Shopping to sell general trade and cross-
border products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, the Group's overseas diversified sales platforms mainly include
international distribution network broadly distributed in countries
including the United Kingdom, Germany, the Netherlands, Canada, Korea,
Japan, Singapore, South Africa, Vietnam, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and
the United Arab Emirates, and local large chain pharmacies, health goods
supermarkets and tourist souvenir shops in New Zealand and Australia. In
addition, the Group has continued to cooperate with Alibaba, Tmall
International, JD.com, suning.com, xiaochongshu.com, pinduoduo.com,
kaola.com, mia.com, Health Post, Health Element and other e-commerce
platforms during the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

The revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB453.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately 4.1% from
approximately RMB472.5 million in 2017. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately RMB112.8 million, as compared to a profit of approximately
RMB10.8 million for 2017. The Company's loss per share was approximately
RMB11.92 cents (2017: earnings per share of approximately RMB0.44 cent)
based on the weighted average number of 946,298,370 (2017:
946,298,370) ordinary shares of the Company in issue for the Year.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 4.1% from
approximately RMB472.5 million for 2017 to approximately RMB453.2
million for the Year. Sales of Zhongsheng series products decreased by
approximately 16.3% from approximately RMB128.0 million in 2017 to
approximately RMB107.1 million in the Year; sales of Hejian series products
decreased by approximately 48.5% from approximately RMB59.4 million in
2017 to approximately RMB30.6 million in the Year; sales of Cobayer series
products decreased by approximately 34.9% from approximately RMB30.4
million in 2017 to approximately RMB19.8 million in the Year; and sales of
Good Health series products increased by approximately 15.7% from
approximately RMB229.3 million in 2017 to approximately RMB265.2
million in the Year. The decrease in revenue of sales in the Year was mainly
attributable to the reduction in advertising and marketing promotions of
Zhongsheng series products, Hejian series products and Cobayer series
products in the PRC market, resulting in the decrease in sales revenue of
Zhongsheng series products, Hejian series products and Cobayer series
products. The main reason for the increase in sales of Good Health series
products was that the Group has strengthened the marketing and
promotion of the Good Health brand in multiple sales channels during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREaTwm M AT

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit decreased from approximately RMB305.6 million
for 2017 to approximately RMB249.0 million for the Year. The Group's
average gross profit margin decreased from approximately 64.7% for 2017
to approximately 54.9% for the Year. Such decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the provision of inventory impairment and the increase
in the proportion of sales revenue of Good Health series products during
the Year and the decrease in the proportion of sales revenue of
Zhongsheng series products and Hejian series products. Good Health
series products were sold mainly through TV shopping platforms,
distributors and online sales channels, whose gross profit is lower than
Zhongsheng series products and Hejian series products, which dragged
down the average gross profit margin of the Group.

Other income and gains

The Group's other income and gains mainly comprised bank interest
income and government grants, which increased from approximately
RMB7.3 million for 2017 to approximately RMB9.1 million for the Year.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
18.2% from approximately RMB190.8 million for 2017 to approximately
RMB225.6 million for the Year, representing approximately 40.4% and
49.8% of the Group's revenue for 2017 and the Year respectively. Such
increase was primarily due to the increase in marketing promotional
expenses of approximately 50.3% from approximately RMB84.1 million in
2017 to approximately RMB126.4 million in the Year for the purpose of
enhancing the brand awareness of Good Health.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by approximately 4.0%
from approximately RMB83.1 million for 2017 to approximately RMB79.8
million for the Year, each representing approximately 17.6% of the Group's
revenue in 2017 and the Year respectively. Such decrease was primarily
due to the decrease in staff costs from approximately RMB40.1 million in
2017 to approximately RMB39.3 million in the Year and the decrease in
office expense from approximately RMB32.5 million in 2017 to RMB29.3
million in the Year.

Taxation

The Group recorded an income tax credit of approximately RMB14.3
million for the Year, as compared to an income tax expense of
approximately RMB3.2 million for 2017, due to the decrease in profit
before tax during the Year.

The Group's effective tax rates in 2017 and the Year was approximately
23.0% and 11.2% respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss for the Year of
approximately RMB112.8 million, as compared to a profit of approximately
RMB10.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The loss for the Year was mainly due to:

1. the Group reduced its advertising and marketing activities for the
Zhongsheng series products, Hejian series products and Cobayer
series products in the PRC market, resulting in the decrease in the
sales of the Zhongsheng series products, Hejian series products and
Cobayer series products in the PRC market;

2. new sales channels had relatively low profit in the early stage;

3. the annual performance of Shanghai Hejian Nutritional Food
Products Company Limited* (E /8 R & E R M B R A 7))
("Hejian") and Good Health Products Limited (“GHP”) in the Year
was below the Company’s expectation and the Company provided
for goodwill impairment for Hejian and GHP, respectively; and

4. the Company provided for inventory impairment for the Group’s
inventories following a prudent assessment with reference to
macroeconomic factors and market competition.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flow

During the Year, the Group's cash and cash equivalents decreased by
approximately RMB68.2 million, which mainly comprised the net cash
inflow from operating activities with the amount of approximately
RMB30.6 million, net cash outflow used in investing activities with the
amount of approximately RMB47.3 million and net cash outflow used in
financing activities with the amount of approximately RMB53.0 million.

Inventories

The Group's inventories amounted to approximately RMB110.9 million (31
December 2017: approximately RMB163.3 million) as at 31 December
2018. The Group's inventories comprised raw materials, work in progress,
finished goods and goods merchandise. The inventories balances
decreased by approximately 32.1% compared with that as at 31 December
2017, mainly because the Group increased the sales of Good Health series
product and increased the provision of impairment made on inventories
balances.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREaTwm M AT

During the Year, inventory turnover was approximately 307 days (2017:
257 days). The longer inventory turnover period during the Year was
primarily due to the Company purchased a large amount of honey in 2017
to be used for sales in TV shopping channel in the Year, the sales were
lower than expected due to the adjustment of program schedule of TV
shopping platforms in the Year.

Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB57.7
million (2017: approximately RMB49.3 million) as at 31 December 2018
which represents an increase of approximately 17.0% from that as at 31
December 2017. It was mainly due to (1) growth in sales revenue from TV
shopping platforms with a credit term of 30 days; and (2) sales from local
tourist souvenir shops and pharmacies in New Zealand continued to grow
with 60 days of credit terms usually granted to distributors.

Trade payables

The Group's trade payables amounted to approximately RMB15.7 million
(2017: approximately RMB14.2 million) as at 31 December 2018 which
represents an increase of approximately 10.6% from that as at 31
December 2017. Turnover days for trade payables decreased to 31 days
(2017: 33 days), which has no significant fluctuation.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group conducts in-bound transactions principally in RMB and
outbound transactions principally in New Zealand dollar and Australian
dollar. In respect of the Group's risk exposure to exchange rate, the Group
has adopted corresponding measures to adjust the structure of the
Company's monetary capital. The Group had not utilised any financial
instruments for hedging purposes as at 31 December 2018.

Borrowings and pledge of assets

The Group had loan balances of RMB27.5 million and pledge of assets
(being its shareholding in Shanghai Weiyi Investment & Management
Limited Company* (/&1 & BIZ B R 2 A)) (‘Shanghai Weiyi”)
as at 31 December 2018.

Gearing position

The gearing ratio, which represented total borrowings divided by total
equity multiplied by 100%, was 10.77% and 4.56% as at 31 December 2017
and 2018, respectively. The total borrowings of the Group decreased from
RMB77.0 million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB27.5 million as at 31
December 2018. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the repayment
of borrowings of RMB49.5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital expenditure

The Group invested approximately RMB39.1 million during the Year (2017:
approximately RMB35.0 million) for building research & development
("R&D") centre, plant and equipment.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments for building R&D
centre, plant and equipment of approximately RMB38.8 million (2017:
approximately RMB48.7 million).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

An increase in the price of raw materials and packaging
materials could adversely affect our business.

The Group's products are composed of certain raw materials such as
nutraceuticals, herb extracts, vitamins and mineral products as well as
packaging materials. The Group is affected by the increase in the prices of
these raw materials and packaging materials, which are determined
principally by market forces and the Group's bargaining power vis-a-vis
the Group's suppliers. If the prices of these raw materials and packaging
materials were to increase significantly, the Group may not be able to
offset all price increases by raising the prices of the Group’s products.
Moreover, the Group may lose competitive advantage if the prices of the
Group's products increase significantly.

Foreign exchange risk and fluctuations in exchange rates
could have an adverse effect on business and investors’
environment

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for its purchases in
Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars from third-party manufacturers
in Australia and New Zealand. The appreciation or depreciation of RMB
against Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars may have a significant
impact on the Group's profitability. For example, a depreciation of RMB
could increase costs of purchasing products from Australia and New
Zealand, as such depreciation would require the Group to convert more
RMB to obtain the equivalent foreign currency necessary to tender
payment. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The value of RMB against foreign currencies, including Australian dollars
and New Zealand dollars, fluctuates and is affected by, among other
things, changes in the PRC and international political and economic
conditions and the PRC government'’s fiscal, monetary and currency
policies. There remains significant international pressure on the PRC
government to adopt a more flexible currency policy. The Group cannot
predict how RMB will fluctuate in the future. As a result, the fluctuation in
the exchange rate between RMB and other currencies could have an
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREaTwm M AT

The PRC government’s control of foreign currency
conversion may limit foreign exchange transactions,
including dividend payments on H shares

Currently, RMB still cannot be freely converted into any foreign currency,
and conversion and remittance of foreign currencies are subject to PRC
foreign exchange laws and regulations which would affect exchange rates
and the Group's foreign exchange transactions. It cannot be guaranteed
that under a certain exchange rate, the Group will have sufficient foreign
currencies to meet the Group's foreign exchange requirements. Under the
current PRC foreign exchange control system, foreign exchange
transactions under the current account conducted by the Group,
including the payment of dividends, does not require prior approval from
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC (ISR 4N EE & 12
/5) ("SAFE"), but the Group is required to present documentary evidence
of such transactions and conduct such transactions at designated foreign
exchange banks within the PRC that have the licenses to carry out foreign
exchange business. As a result, the Group will be able to pay dividends in
foreign currencies without prior approval from the SAFE by complying
with certain procedural requirements. The Group's foreign exchange
transactions under the capital account, however, must be approved in
advance by the SAFE.

There can be no assurance that the policies regarding foreign exchange
transactions under the current account and the capital account will
continue in the future. In addition, these foreign exchange policies may
restrict the Group's ability to obtain sufficient foreign exchange, which
could have an effect on the Group's foreign exchange transactions and
the fulfillment of the Group's other foreign exchange requirements. If
there are changes in the policies regarding the payment of dividends in
foreign currencies to shareholders or other changes in foreign exchange
policies resulting in insufficient foreign exchange, the Group’s payment of
dividends in foreign currencies may be affected. If the Group fails to obtain
approval from the SAFE to convert RMB into any foreign exchange for
foreign exchange transactions, capital expenditure plans, and even the
Group's business, financial condition and results of operation, may be
adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Quality and dedicated staff is indispensable asset to the Group's success in
the competitive market. By providing comprehensive training and
corporate culture education periodically, the employees are able to obtain
on-going training and development in the nutritional supplements
industry. Furthermore, the Group offers competitive remuneration
packages commensurated with industry practice and provides various
fringe benefits to all employees. The Group reviews its human resources
and remuneration policies periodically to ensure they are in line with
market practice and regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group employed a work force of 735 employees. The total salaries and
related costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB111.1 million
(2017: approximately RMB114.2 million).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

EF

DIRECTORS

The Board consists of eight Directors, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors.

Ef“%

TERENEES

The information of the Directors is set out as follows:
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Date of joining Date of
Name Age the Group Position/Title appointment Roles and responsibilities
e FE MAXEENBH BB E ZEAH ABRBE
Mr. Gui Pinghu 59 24 May 1999 Chairman and 24 May 1999 Chairman of the Strategy and
Executive Director Development Committee;
being responsible for strategic
development of the Company
ERDbid 59%% 199965 A24H ERERFUNTES 199658248 BEIERZESIR 8&
RARBEEERE
Ms. Zhang Yuan 49 25 May 1999 Chief Executive Officer 17 June 2011 General manager, being responsible
and Executive for the management, organisation
Director and implementation of
Board decisions
FRE L 49p% 1995 H25H BEFERTERIITES 2011 F6H17H  #HELE AFEER ABR
Eﬁﬁég = /j%u?‘/:
Ms. Xu Li 44 1 January 2002 Executive Director 25 October 2012 Sales director; vice general manager;
member of the Nomination Committee
REXL 44p% 2021 H1H WITES 2012F 10258 HEMRE - BIECIE - REEZEEKE
Ms. Zhu Feifei 37 29 July 2003 Executive Director 25 October 2012 Chief production officer; member of
the Remuneration Committee
AR+ 375% 20037 A298 HTES 012F10H25H EBEFLEER FHMEZEEXE
Ms. Li Fan 40 21 February 2019  Non-executive Director 21 February 2019 Representative of the pre-IPO investor
of the Company
FN&L 405% 20192 A21H  EMITES 019F2R21H ARAERRAFEEARES
ONAVES
Mr.Zhang Jitong 46 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Nomination
non-executive Committee; member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
SRAER St 465% 2018F10A23H BUFHTES 2018F10ABE REZESIF BFKREEER
BRNEREZEGKE
Ms. Cai Tianchen 45 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Audit Committee;
non-executive member of each of the
Director Remuneration Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
BRRLL 455% 201810 A3 BUFHTES 2018F10A3E FERZESIF FMEESER
B NEREZEGKE
Mr. Wang Wei 36 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Remuneration
non-executive Committee; member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee
IEELE 365% 2018F10A 238 BUIENTES 2018F10ABE HFMEESIF FHREEER

REEEBENE
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
55 BEF SHEEENEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (#£¥34), aged 59, the founder of the Group, is the
chairman and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 May 1999. Mr.
Gui is also a director of Australia Cobayer Health Food Co. Pty Ltd. and
GHP, Shanghai Weiyi's wholly-owned subsidiary. He is primarily
responsible for the strategic development of the Company.

Mr. Gui graduated from Nanjing Xiaozhuang University (formerly known as
Nanjing Institute of Education* (B R#( A 2x), majoring in Chinese in
July 1989 and was awarded a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Fudan University
in June 2010. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gui and his spouse
were interested in approximately 78.71% of the domestic shares of the
Company (the "Domestic Shares”). Mr. Gui was also interested in
approximately 0.56% of the H shares of the Company (‘H Shares”).

Mr. Gui was the general manager of Hainan East & West Advertisement Art
Company* (BRI A7 EEET A 7)) from November 1992 to October
1994, the general manager of Nanjing Tangshan Garden Hotel* (R 55
ILTEEEJE) between January 1995 and December 1996 and the general
manager of Nanjing Xin Chuang Mould and Die Factory* (FI R #TEITE A&
&) from January 1997 to December 1998. In May 1999, he established the
Company and has since then been the Director. Mr. Gui has more than 20
years of experience in the nutritional supplements industry.

Ms. Zhang Yuan (5&JE), aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Group on 17 June 2011. Ms.
Zhang is also a director of Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (5
AR A A YRHE B BR A F]), Hangzhou Zhongyan Biological Products Co.
Limited* (BN AW BB B BR A 7)), Beijing Zhongsheng Wonderful
Health Technology Co. Limited* (At A £ 47 R R AR AR,
Guangzhou Zhongyuan Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (BN B MR AR
A &)), Zhenjiang Zhongsheng Health Bio-Tech Co. Limited* ($&;T AP A= i
EERHEBBR A R)), Tianjing Kanger Biological Technology Company
Limited* (RZEBAEWEHAH R A7), Nanjing Zhaiyigou Electronic
Commerce Company Limited* (A RESHEE FRHBER AT and
Shanghai Weiyi. She is also the director of Hejian, GHP, Living Nature
Natural Products Limited and Living Nature Limited. Ms. Zhang is primarily
responsible for the management, organisation and implementation of
Board decisions. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhang was
interested in approximately 0.98% of the Domestic Shares and
approximately 0.08% of the H Shares.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

55 EF aAEEREKRES

Ms. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the nutritional
supplements industry. She was appointed as the office supervisor of the
Company in May 1999 and the deputy general manager of the Company
in January 2008.

Ms. Zhang obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Nanjing
University in June 2012.

Ms. Xu Li (#REE), aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director on 25
October 2012. Ms. Xu is also a director of Suzhou Zhongsheng Health &
Biological Products Co. Limited* (BN AEREAEMRmER A F),
Wuxi Zhongyan Health Products Co. Limited* (&5 IHER R AR A
A]), Changzhou Zhongsheng Wonderful Bio-Health Products Co. Limited*
(BMNFPEETEMR B AR AT, Jinan Zhongsheng Chinese
Commerce Biological Products Co. Limited* (Em R AEZEF AR MG
[R 2 8]), Shenzhen Zhongsheng Chinese Commerce Bio-Tech Co.
Limited* ORI AR AEZE R EYRHE B R A F]), Wuhan Zhongsheng
Chinese Commerce Biological Technology Co. Limited* (VE AR A 2E g 4
YR B IR A B)) and Qingdao Zhongsheng Biological Products Co.
Limited* (ESHRERBEEDMRBERAE]). Ms. Xu is primarily
responsible for the marketing of the Group. As at the date of this annual
report, Ms. Xu was interested in approximately 0.82% of the Domestic
Shares.

Ms. Xu has more than 10 years of experience in the nutritional
supplements industry. Ms. Xu joined the Company as the sales manager in
January 2002. In January 2010, she was promoted to be the marketing
general manager. In October 2012, she was promoted to be a Director and
continued to be the marketing director.

Ms. Xu obtained a diploma in Economic Management from PRC Jiangsu
Province Part School* (Ff 2T & &E Z E ) in July 1999, which was a part-
time programme and was awarded an Executive Master of Business
Administration’s degree of Zhejiang University in December 2015, which
was a part-time programme.

Ms. zZhu Feifei (R 7H), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 October 2012. Ms. Zhu is primarily responsible for the
production of the Group. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhu was
interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

Ms. Zhu joined the Company as a sales clerk of the sales department in
July 2003. She was promoted to be the chief production officer in January
2008. She was appointed as a Director in October 2012.

Ms. Zhu graduated from a part-time programme of the Open University of
China (formerly known as China Central Radio and Television University*
(FP R BB E AR K E2)) majoring in Business Administration in January
2008.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
25 B SATEENLES

Non-executive Director

Ms. Li Fan (Z= 1), aged 40, was appointed as an non-executive Director
on 21 February 2019. Ms. Li is the representative of Shanghai Fosun
Chuangfu Shareholding Investment Fund Limited Partnership* (/818 2
BIEREREESEBDLEBRER)), the pre-IPO investor of the
Company.

Ms. Li obtained a bachelor's degree in engineering majoring in microbial
pharmaceutics at Shenyang Pharmaceutical University in July 2000 and a
master’s degree in business administration at Fudan University in June
2017. Ms. Li has been a director of WeDoctor Beilian (Shanghai)
Information Technology Company Limited* (f & B Bt (_ /&) E BEHEE
fR 2 |]) since April 2017, which is principally engaged in the development
and service of computer software, information technology and
communication system, and the managing director of Shanghai Fosun
Chuangfu Investment Management Company Limited* (_E/&18 £ Al =%
EEIBRMH AR AR, which is principally engaged in investment
management, since January 2018. Ms. Li was also the senior vice president
of Guahaowang (Hangzhou) Technology Company Limited* (548 (1
PFEHE B R A B]), which was principally engaged in the operation of
online healthcare technology platform from May 2015 to January 2018,
Prior to joining Guahaowang (Hangzhou) Technology Company Limited,
Ms. Li was the chief marketing officer of Shenzhen Huakang Quanjing
Information Technology Company Limited* (R ERE 2 &2 BH il
ABRAA]), which was principally engaged in the development of mobile
medical application services, and the head of pharmaceutical enterprise
business department at Guanlan Network (Hangzhou) Company Limited*
(B AL @I B BR A A]), which was principally engaged in the
development of medical software and network technology, respectively.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jitong ( 5R# ¥ ), aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Zhang holds a doctorate
degree in management majoring in agricultural economics management
from Nanjing Agricultural University and has been an associate professor
and a professor of the School of Business of Nanjing Normal University
from September 2005 to April 2011 and from May 2011 onwards,
respectively.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws majoring in ideological
and political education, and a master’s degree in management majoring
in enterprise management, from Nanjing Normal University in July 1994
and June 2000, respectively. After Mr. Zhang had obtained a doctorate
degree in management from Nanjing Agricultural University in June 2005,
he further obtained a postdoctoral certificate in laws from Nanjing Normal
University.
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Mr. Zhang was an independent director of Jiangsu Gaoke Petrochemical
Company Limited* (VL & = BHAEAR 9 B R A 7)) from February 2014
to February 2017, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002778).

Ms. Cai Tianchen ( £ X ), aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Ms. Cai completed an
accounting programme at Hangzhou Dianzi University (formerly known as
Hangzhou Institute of Electronic Engineering® (11 /1 & F I % 2F%) in
October 1993, and is a non-practising member of the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Singapore since June 2001, a Chartered Financial
Analyst charterholder of the CFA Institute at Charlottesville, Virginia since
September 2004, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 2007 and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2012.

Ms. Cai has extensive experience in initial public offering, merger and
acquisition and restructuring gained at international accounting firms. Ms.
Cai has been a partner of the Shanghai office of Grant Thornton (EX[El&
TR BT (R B A %)) since October 2013. Prior to joining Grant
Thornton, Ms. Cai has joined the Singapore office of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as an auditor in February 1998, and was later promoted to a
manager in 2003 and then to a senior manager at the Shanghai office of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Ms. Cai has been an independent non-executive director of China Jishan
Holdings Limited since 28 December 2017, the shares of which are listed
on the Singapore Exchange (stock code: J18).

Mr. Wang Wei ( £ ), aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Wang holds a doctorate
degree in food science. Mr. Wang has been a lecturer and an associate
professor at the College of Food Science and Technology at Nanjing
Agricultural University from December 2013 to December 2015 and from
December 2015 onwards, respectively. Mr. Wang has also been a council
member of the seventh session of the council of the Jiangsu Association
for Instrumental Analysis* (T & & 2 AT A & ) since July 2016.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in food science and engineering
and a master’s degree in food science from Nanjing Normal University in
July 2006 and June 2009 respectively, and a doctorate degree in food
science from China Agricultural University in June 2012.
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SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors (“Supervisors”) of the Company currently
consists of five members. The following table sets out certain information
about the Supervisors.

&Fgg

NEIRENIEE

AAFIEE((EE))EBBHARKEAK - T
RN ARNBEZNIHDER -

Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment  responsibilities
HE Fiw MAZXEENBEE B |4 ZERH ABRBE
Ms. Yu Min 40 16 September 2002 Chairman of the board of 25 October 2012 General manager of the sales
Supervisors department of the Group in
Nanjing
R 405% 20029 A 16 A EFEeXTR 012F 10258 AEEERHEBLIE
Mr. Tao Xingrong 43 16 May 2013 Supervisor 16 May 2013 Representative of the pre-IPO
investor of the Company
B BES ST A 435% 201355 A 16 A EE 2013F5 8160 ARRERARBEER
BREEREK
Ms. Wu Xuemei 40 25 September 2005  Supervisor 25 October 2012 General manager of the
distributor affairs
department of the Group
REFLL 405% 200599 A25H B 012F10 H25 A AEELHEEHBAAKE
Ms. Lu Jiachun 40 20 June 2001 Employee representative 25 October 2012 Accounting clerk
Supervisor
PEEAI L L 405% 200156 A20H BTRRES 0125F10A 258 REREB
Ms. Chen Xiu 34 30 August 2003 Employee representative 16 May 2013 Supervision specialist
Supervisor
AL L 347% 20034 8 A30H BIRRES 013F5H160 EEZS

Ms. Yu Min (5R#), aged 40, was appointed as the chairman of the
board of Supervisors on 25 October 2012. Ms. Yu is also the director of
Chengdu Zhongsheng Hua Mei Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (A #BAP A FE A4
YIRHZ BBRE A B]) and Hefei Aoka Biological Technology Company
Limited* (& IESR-REY B AR A 7).

Ms. Yu graduated from Jinling Institute of Technology* (& & RH: E2p57)
(formerly known as Nanjing Agricultural School* (B 5 & 2 ERIER))
majoring in Accounting in June 1999. As at the date of this annual report,

Ms Yu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

In 2002, Ms. Yu joined the Company as an accounting clerk and was
promoted to be the sales manager of Nanjing in September 2004 and
customer relations manager in January 2008. Ms. Yu was subsequently
appointed as the chairman of the board of Supervisors and continued to
be the customer relations manager. In July 2018, Ms. Yu was promoted as
the general manager of the sales department of the Group in Nanjing.
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Mr. Tao Xingrong (PAHEL%E), aged 43, was appointed as one of the
Supervisors on 16 May 2013. Mr. Tao was awarded a bachelor degree in
Commercial Law from Zhejiang Gongshang University (47T T & A£2)
(formerly known as Hangzhou Commerce College (171 B E2FE)) in July
1999. He obtained the Judicial Professional Qualification Certificate* (&])%
B 3£ B AR FEE) in September 2002.

Prior to joining Fosun Capital Investment & Management Company
Limited* (E/B1ERBIEIREEEBMRAF]), an investment and asset
management company in August 2007, Mr. Tao was the legal clerk of
Nantong Intermediate People’s Court of Jiangsu Province (T & & BB M
A AR JEBR). He is currently the secretary of the board of directors and
risk control manager of Fosun Capital Investment & Management
Company Limited* (L BEEBIEREEEFRA
joint general manager of Legal Affairs Department of Shangha| Fosun

LREESMRE&EE)E

). He is also the

High Technology (Group) Company Limited* (
N

Ms. Wu Xuemei (RZE#§), aged 40, was appointed as one of the
Supervisors on 25 October 2012. Ms. Wu graduated from a self-learning
programme of the Nanjing Normal University majoring in English in June
2003. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Wu was interested in
approximately 0.08% of the Domestic Shares.

In September 2005, Ms. Wu joined the Company as sales clerk and was
promoted to be the deputy sales manager of Nanjing in January 2010. In
October 2012, she was appointed as a member of the board of
Supervisors. In March 2014, Ms. Wu was promoted to be the general
manager of the Cobayer business department of the Group. In July 2018,
she was promoted to be the general manager of the distributor affairs
department of the Group.

Ms. Lu Jiachun (BE{E4f), aged 40, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 25 October 2012. Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from a part-time programme of the
Open University of China in October 2005.

Ms. Lu has been an accounting clerk of the Group since June 2001. In
October 2012, she was appointed as a member of the board of
Supervisors.
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Ms. Chen Xiu (FR55), aged 34, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 16 May 2013. Ms. Chen graduated from
CIER BB ERMZER) (formerly
known as Jiangsu Vocational and Technical Institute of Economics and
OTER E B IR #EEPT)) majoring in Accounting in July

Jiangsu Institute of Commerce*

Commerce*
2004.

Ms. Chen joined the Group in August 2003 as a customer service clerk.

BEE mAEEE RS
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Since July 2009, she has been a supervision specialist (Bs & & 8). 200067 A8 F—HEFESEES -
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BREEE
Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
A FiR MAXEEHER B HE i ZEAH ABRBE
Ms. Zhi Hui (X #F) 38 4 June 2002 Human resources manager, 25 October 2012 Human resources
joint company secretary management and
company secretarial
matters
xRt 385% 2002F 6 A4H }\ﬂéﬁﬁ#& 02F10A258 ANBREERQA
”ATM\E WMEEH
Mr. Li Bin (Z=3#) 39 1July2013 Chiefﬁnancial officer 1 July 2013 Finance management
ESnpi 395% 2013F7A1H BEMBE 20137 A1 R PrigE
Mr.WuJun ((Rf8) 35 4 September 2006 Financial controller 1 September 2013 Finance management
Rtk 355% 2006F9 A4 H Lyprs 20139 A1 H g EE
Ms. Zhi Hui (3 7F), aged 38, has more than 10 years of experience in SHLL B8R EEERRERBITERE T

the nutritional supplements industry. She joined the Group in June 2002
as an office clerk. She was promoted as the human resources manager in
January 2008. In October 2012, she became the secretary to the Board and
served as the human resources manager and a joint company secretary
concurrently. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhi was interested in
approximately 0.07% of the Domestic Shares and 0.12% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhi graduated from Sanjiang University majoring in Modern Company
Secretary in June 2002.
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Mr. Li Bin (Z3R), aged 39, was appointed as the chief financial officer in
July 2013. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of accounting experience. He
obtained a bachelor degree in Accounting from the Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics in August 2003 and was admitted as a Certified
Management Accountant of the United States in July 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the financial controller of the finance
department of Nanjing SIXIN Scientific- Technological Application
Research Institute Co., Ltd* (FA RUFTEHZER T BER AR, a
company engaging in the development and production of Silicone and
non-Silicone foam control agents, between October 2003 and March
2007. He worked in the finance department of CEEG (Nanjing) New Energy
Co, Lid* (PEER(FER)F8IRAMR A F), a company that engages in
the research and development, production, sale and services of solar
energy components, between June 2007 and September 2009 and the
finance department of the solar energy business unit of Jiangsu Sainty
International Group Machinery Import and Export Corporation Limited*
CI# s REREE#MEL QRN BERAEF), a company that
engages in import and export trade, between October 2009 and October
2010.

Mr. Wu Jun (:R8), aged 35, was appointed as the financial controller in
September 2013. Mr. Wu has more than 7 years of experience in the
nutritional supplements industry. He joined the Group in September 2006
as an accounting clerk of the finance department of Hangzhou Zhongyan
Biological Products Co. Limited* (/NI AEME @M AR A F]) and
became an accounting clerk of the finance department of the company in
August 2008. He was promoted as the finance manager of the Company
in January 2011.

Mr. Wu graduated from Nanjing University of Technology (F 5 T % A £2%)
majoring in Project Management in June 2006.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhi Hui (3Z7F), serves as the secretary to the Board and one of the
joint company secretaries. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Senior
Management” above for her biography.

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (H X&), FCS (PE), FCIS, aged 51, was
appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company on 7 November
2013. Ms. Kam is an executive director, Corporate Services of Tricor
Services Limited, a global professional services provider specializing in
integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has over 20
years of extensive experience in the corporate secretarial field and has
been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed
companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms.
Kam is a Chartered Secretary and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Ms. Kam is a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various committees. In
accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the corporate
governance practice prescribed in the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “"Stock Exchange”), the Company has formed four Board
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, and the Strategy and Development
Committee.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company. At present, the Audit
Committee comprises Ms. Cai Tianchen, Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang
Wei, the independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Cai Tianchen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.
At present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang Wei and
Ms. Cai Tianchen, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhu
Feifei, an executive Director. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent
non-executive Directors. At present, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang Wei, the independent non-
executive Directors, and Ms. Xu Li, an executive Director. Mr. Zhang Jitong
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Development Committee

The Company established a Strategy and Development Committee with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the Strategy and
Development Committee are to conduct researches and submit proposals
concerning the long-term development strategies and material
investment decisions of the Company. At present, the Strategy and
Development Committee comprises Mr. Gui Pinghu, the Chairman and an
executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Jitong and Ms. Cai Tianchen, the
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the chairman of
the Strategy and Development Committee.
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EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains good working relations with its staff. It has not
experienced any significant problems with the recruitment and retention
of experienced employees. In addition, it has not suffered from any
material disruption of its normal business operations as a result of labour
disputes or strikes.

In the PRC, in accordance with relevant national and local labour and
social welfare laws and regulations, the Group is required to pay in respect
of its employees in the PRC various social security funds including basic
pension insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
occupational injury insurance, critical iliness insurance, insurance for
maternity leave and housing provident fund.

* For identification purposes only
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the trading of
packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and New Zealand.
Particulars of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, for the year ended 31 December 2018, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company.

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from
its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manages
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and
adopting green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade
equipment such as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to
increase overall operating efficiency. To identify energy efficiency
opportunities, the Group measures and records the energy consumption
intensity from time to time.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for 2018 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 125 of this
annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil) or any special dividend (2017: Nil).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report for a business review of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during 2018 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during 2018 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

RESERVES

The amount of the Company’s reserves available for distribution as at 31
December 2018 was RMB27.06 million. Details of the movements in the
reserves of the Group during 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 129 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

The Group has total borrowings of RMB27.5 million as at 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB77.0 million). Please refer to note 38 to the financial
statements in this annual report for further information in relation to
financial risk management of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% and the revenue attributable to the Group's
largest customer was less than 10%.

For the Year, the total purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier was less than 10%.

For the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the number of the Company's issued shares, had any interest in the five
largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2018 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xu Li

Ms. Zhu Feifei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Li Fan (Appointed on 21 February 2019)
Mr. Xu Chuntao (Resigned on 20 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jitong (Appointed on 23 October 2018)
Ms. Cai Tianchen (Appointed on 23 October 2018)
Mr. Wang Wei (Appointed on 23 October 2018)
Mr. Jiang Fuxin (Retired on 23 October 2018)

Ms. Feng Qing (Retired on 23 October 2018)

Mr. Vincent Cheng (Retired on 23 October 2018)

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

SUPERVISORS

During 2018 and up to the date of this annual report, the Supervisors of
the Company are as follows:

Ms. Yu Min (Chairman)
Mr. Tao Xingrong

Ms. Wu Xuemei

Ms. Lu Jiachun

Ms. Chen Xiu

The board of Supervisors of the Company has held four meetings during
2018. Details of the meetings and events conducted by the board of
Supervisors during 2018 are set out in the work report of the board of
Supervisors of this annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management
are set out on pages 22 to 30 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment (for non-executive Directors) with the Company for a term
of three years and shall be elected by shareholders at the general meeting.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office,
which the successive terms of office of independent non-executive
Directors shall not exceed six years, in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”).

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and may be re- elected. No Director or
Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect
the Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising
from the Group's activities which such Directors and officers may be held
liable.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at annual general
meetings. Other emoluments will be determined and recommended by
the members of the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and the highest paid
employees are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends will be reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution
to the Group.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were
a party subsisted at the end of 2018 or at any time during the same year in
which any Director or Supervisor or any entity connected with the Director
or Supervisor had a material interest, either directly or indirectly.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
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Number of Approximate Approximate
shares held shareholding shareholding
asat percentage in percentage in
Class of share of 31 December the relevant the total
Name Capacity Nature of interest ~ the Company 2018 class of shares® share capital®
R2018F
12A318 REBEINROH RERAEH
®E 5% BEME AR RGER FEROHEY BOBREILY BAEREIHO
(%) (%)
Mr. Gui Pinghu Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 477401310 (L) 70.85% 50.45%
(‘Mr. Gui’)? s ESEBA NER
ERO bt Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 560%
([EEEDO FLiBER W&
Beneficial owner H Shares 1,538,000 (L) 0.56% 0.16%
EREEA HAR
Ms. Zhang Yuan Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 6,599,550 (L) 0.98% 0.70%
RRE T xS EHBEAA NER
Beneficial owner H Shares 218,000 (L) 0.08% 0.02%
EREBA H &
Ms. Xu Li Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 5,498,570 (L) 0.82% 0.58%
RBRT % EREEA WER
Ms. Zhu Feifei Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
KRR 5% ERBEAA NER
Ms. Yu Min Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
RERL ES EREBA NER
Ms. Wu Xuemei Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 551,480 (L) 0.08% 0.06%
REM[RL EE EREEA WERK
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2) Mr. Gui is the spouse of Ms. Wu Yanmei. Under the SFO, Mr. Gui was deemed to be

interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Wu Yanmei was interested.

(3) The percentages are calculated based on the total issued shares of the Company of
946,298,370 as at 31 December 2018.

4) As at 31 December 2018, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares of the
Company was 673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this directors’ report, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, or any of their
spouses, or children under 18 years of age, has any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors’ and
Chief Executives' Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares”, at no time in 2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors
and Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors and Supervisors, or any of their spouses or children under
18 years of age was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised
any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the persons
who hold 5% or more of the class shares in the issued share capital of the
Company (other than Directors and Supervisors of the Company), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
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section 336 of the SFO are set out below:

Approximate

Number of shareholding Approximate
shares held percentage in shareholding
asat the relevant percentage in
Nature of Class of share 31 December class of the total
Shareholders interest of the Company 2018" share capital® share capital®
2018 F
128318 RAEBEERREN YN
BR=R Bt AR RGER FEROHEY BOBREILY BOEREIHO
(%) (%)
Ms. Wu Yanmei®? Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 5.60%
Reig Lo EREAA NERK
Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 477401310 (L) 70.85% 50.45%
AiBER NERK
Ms. Zhou Li Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 44,084,321 (L) 6.54% 4.66%
BB+ ExEEA WER
Mr. Cheng Xiaowei® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 44,084,321 (L)® 6.54% 4.66%
RMERE Ao BEs WER
Shanghai Fosun Chuangfu Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L)" 9.07% 6.46%
Shareholding Investment
Fund Limited Partnership*
FBERAIERERELS EEAA NER
AREE(ERAR)
Shanghai Fosun Capital Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
Investment Management corporation
Co, Ltd*
HEEEAIEREER R LERR NER
BRRAA
Shanghai Fosun Industrial Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L)? 9.07% 6.46%
Investment Co,, Ltd.* corporation
PEEEEERERAR LA REEER WER
Shanghai Fosun High Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 ()" 9.07% 6.46%
Technology (Group) Co,, Ltd* corporation
PEEESRR(5E) R LA WER
BRRAA
Fosun International Limited Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
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Approximate
Number of shareholding Approximate
shares held percentage in shareholding
asat the relevant percentage in
Nature of Class of share 31 December class of the total
Shareholders interest of the Company 2018 share capital® share capital®
#2018 F
12A318 REBEHNREN REARAH
R BRnE KRR R ER FEROHEY HARREILY BARREI KO
(%) (%)
Fosun Holdings Limited Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L)? 9.07% 6.46%
corporation
BEZERERAA R LR RS WER
Fosun International Holdings Ltd.  Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
corporation
EEBKZERARAR R LR RS NER
Mr. Guo Guangchang Interest of controlled Domestic Shares 61,111,000 ()" 9.07% 6.46%
corporation
BEEEE R LR RS WA R
Mr. Chen Xuelin Beneficial owner H Shares 27,576,000 (L) 10.12% 291%
BREMEE ERBEA H&
Hin Sang Group (International) Beneficial owner H Shares 59,121,600 (L)® 21.70% 6.25%
Holding Co, Ltd.
PTHEEE (BB ZERERAE  EREAA Hi&
Genwealth Group Holding Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L)® 21.70% 6.25%
Company Limited corporation
TEEEERAERARA R LA RS HAR
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L)® 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
HEZR T R LA RS HAR
Interest of spouse H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
[N HAR
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L)® 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
2 iyt REEER H A&
Beneficial owner H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
EaBEAA H &

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes:

m

©)]
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The letter “L" represents long position in such securities.

Ms. Wu Yanmei is the spouse of Mr. Gui. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu Yanmei was deemed to

be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui was interested.

The percentages are calculated based on the total issued shares of the Company of
946,298,370 as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares of the
Company was 673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

On 17 December 2015, Ms. Zhou Li, Mr. Zhou Dong, Shanghai Jiahanyin Investment
(EBRMFREBR2AA), Shanghai Zhongwei Chuangye
LEPHARKRER L (BRAR)), Shanghai
LEERGAEREABEE

, Hejian and the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (as

Company Limited*
Investment Centre Partnership* (
Baojiehui Chuangye Investment Partnership Limited* (

(BER&%)
supplemented by supplemental acquisition agreement dated 22 January 2016),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed, amongst other things, to
issue and allot 44,084,321 Domestic Shares of the Company to Ms. Zhou Li, as a part of
the consideration of the acquisition of Hejian. The allotment was completed on 14 June
2016.

Mr. Cheng Xiaowei is the spouse of Ms. Zhou Li. Under the SFO, Mr. Cheng Xiaowei was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Zhou Li was
interested.

These 61,111,000 Domestic Shares of the Company were held by Shanghai Fosun
Chuangfu Shareholding Investment Fund Limited Partnership, which was held as to
approximately 1.05% by Shanghai Fosun Capital Investment Management Co,, Ltd. and
approximately 31.74% by Shanghai Fosun Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.. Shanghai
Fosun Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd. is the general partner of Shanghai
Fosun Chuangfu Shareholding Investment Fund Limited Partnership. Shanghai Fosun
Industrial Investment Co,, Ltd. was held as to 100% by Shanghai Fosun High Technology
(Group) Co,, Ltd.. Further, Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Co,, Ltd. indirectly
held approximately 60% equity interest in Nanjing Nangang Iron & Steel United Co.,,
Ltd* (R 2% 7B 0 # 1 B &

13.11% equity interest in Shanghai Fosun Chuangfu Shareholding Investment Fund

B R A &) which in turn indirectly held approximately

Limited Partnership. Accordingly, Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Co., Ltd.
was interested in approximately 45.90% in Shanghai Fosun Chuangfu Shareholding
Investment Fund Limited Partnership in total.

Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Co., Ltd. was wholly owned by Fosun
International Limited which was wholly owned by Fosun Holdings Limited.

Fosun Holdings Limited was wholly owned by Fosun International Holdings Ltd. which
was held as to 64.45% by Mr. Guo Guangchang.
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Under the SFO, the general partner of a limited liability partnership is regarded as
having de facto control of the limited liability partnership even though its shareholding
in the limited liability partnership may be less than one third. Accordingly, Shanghai
Fosun Capital Investment Management Co,, Ltd., Shanghai Fosun Industrial Investment
Co., Ltd., Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Co., Ltd., Fosun International
Limited, Fosun Holdings Limited, Fosun International Holdings Ltd. and Mr. Guo
Guangchang were deemed to hold interests in the 61,111,000 Domestic Shares of the
Company held by Shanghai Fosun Chuangfu Shareholding Investment Fund Limited
Partnership under the SFO.

8 These 59,121,600 H Shares were held by Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co,,
Ltd., an exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
whose issued shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893). Hin Sang
Group (International) Co., Ltd. was held as to 50.68% by Genwealth Group Holding
Company Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and 10%
by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Accordingly,
Genwealth Group Holding Company Limited, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man
were deemed to hold interests in these H Shares under the SFO.

9 Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Under the SFO, Ms. Kwan Lai Man
was deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin
was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors, Supervisors or the
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Company for the Year and
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of reference which are
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr.
Wang Wei. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process, and risk management
and internal control system. It has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the audited final results of the
Group for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations. Please refer to
section “6.2 Public welfare and charity” in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report in this annual report for details of the donations made
by the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the PRC where the Company is incorporated.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders (as defined
under the Listing Rules) during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Gui Pinghu and Ms. Wu Yanmei, both being the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, have made
non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company. They have
confirmed compliance with the non-competition undertakings. The Board,
including the independent non-executive Directors, is of the opinion that
the relevant controlling shareholders have been in compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT
FELHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during 2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing
the Directors in their dealings in the Company's securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry with the Directors and all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during 2018.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the listing of shares of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the issue of
the over-allotment shares amounted to approximately HK$428.7 million
(equivalent to RMB336.4 million).
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As at 31 December 2018,

0]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB72.0 million and RMBO0.8
million has been used on the acquisition of GHP, and for Living
Nature's product function enhancement;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB86.84 million has been used
to build a R&D testing centre;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB19.25 million has been used
to build information technology and logistics centre;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB31.42 million has been used
on the marketing and promotion activities;

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB8.34 million has been used
to expand the sales network and explore new markets; and

the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB33.63 million has been used
for working capital and the remaining of the Net Proceeds of
approximately RMB84.12 million has been deposited into banks,
which are intended to be applied in accordance with the proposed
application set out in the circular of the Company dated 22
September 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total

issued share capital was held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three

years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2018 were audited by Ernst & Young, who holds office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution of the reappointment of Ernst & Young and Ernst &
Young Hua Ming LLP as the international auditor and the domestic auditor
of the Company respectively will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FELHE

OUTLOOK

During the Year, the Company focused on the construction of Sinolife
United Research and Development Centre, and built a supply and
marketing platform through multiple channels. Furthermore, the channels
for distributors, pharmacies and maternity stores began to take shape, and
the phase | construction of Sinolife United Research and Development
Centre became fully operational.

In 2019, the Company will focus on the development and cultivation of
maternity stores channels and distributor channels, increase pharmacy
channels and e-commerce platforms, and focus on expanding sales
channels in the PRC. As for technological research and development, more
efforts will be made to carry out scientific and technological innovation to
lay a solid foundation for the future of the Company.

Health has always been a topic for humanity. Regardless of maternity and
child, sub-healthy, or healthy demographics, they all have the demand
and desire for scientific health. Since its establishment, the Company has
always persisted in the work of health protection, health management,
health and safety, which is also the belief and the pursuit of the Company.

We believe health means longevity, vigour, and happiness.

In safeguarding health, the Company upholds high quality and high
standards. Upon completion of Sinolife United Research and Development
Centre, the Company has entered into a new stage of development.
Meanwhile, the Company also understands that the road ahead remains
very long and is mixed with opportunities and challenges. The Company
will certainly keep pace with the times and uphold the cultural spirit with
one step at a time to serve the society and create value.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 29 March 2019

*  Foridentification purpose only
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2018 WORK REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

During the reporting period of 2018, the board of Supervisors carefully
and thoroughly performed its supervisory functions in favor of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) in
a responsible manner according to the Company Law, the Articles and the
Rules of Procedures for the board of Supervisors, and the requirements
under the relevant law and regulations, while duly monitoring and
examining the operations, financial conditions and investment conditions
of the Company according to the laws. In addition, the members of the
Board, the managers of the Company, and other senior management
members performed their duties under the supervision of the Supervisors.

I. DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2018, the board of Supervisors convened four meetings.

On 29 March 2018, it considered the 2017 Work Report of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company, the Resolution on the 2017 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, the 2017 Financial Settlement
and the Resolution regarding the 2018 Financial Budget, the
Resolution on 2017 Profit Distribution Plan, the Resolution regarding
the Appointment of Accountant and the Authorisation Granted at
the General Meeting to the Board to Determine Its Remuneration,
the Resolution regarding the Authorisation Granted at the General
Meeting to the Board to Determine the Remunerations of the
Directors and Supervisors, the Resolution on 2017 Statutory Reserve
Withdrawal of the Company, and the Resolution where the Board is
granted the general mandate at the General Meeting to issue,
allocate, and deal with additional Domestic Shares and H Shares,
both numbers of which will be no more than 20% of the total
amount of Domestic Shares and H Shares of the Company in issue
respectively, and the Board is authorised to revise the Articles, as it
sees fit, for the purposes of reflecting the new shareholding
structure upon the allotment or issue of additional Shares under the
relevant mandate.

On 30 August 2018, it considered the Resolution on Interim Results
for 2018 and Interim Dividend Distributions, the Resolution on
Material Internal Audit Findings for the Period Ended 30 June 2018
and the Resolution on Proposed Measures regarding Employees in
respect of Financial Reporting, Internal Auditing and other
Misbehaviours.

On 6 September 2018, it considered the Resolution on Nomination
of Supervisors for the Third Session of the board of Supervisors of
the Company.

On 5 November 2018, it considered the Resolution on Election of
Chairman of the Third Session of the board of Supervisors of the
Company.
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2018 WORK REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
2018 FEE == TIERE

LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The board of Supervisors of the Company attended the meetings of
the Board during the reporting period, and duly performed its
supervisory duties of production and operation activities of the
Company. It effectively discharged its supervisory duties on the
development strategies of the Company on a timely basis, thus fully
delivering its duties in the development of the Company in 2018. In
the opinion of the board of Supervisors, the Board of the Company
persisted in standardised operations with due diligence by
practising its decision-making procedures in strict compliance with
the provisions under the Company Law in the PRC and the Articles,
as well as conscientiously carrying out all resolutions at the general
meetings of shareholders; the internal control system of the
Company was well established; disclosure of all information was
made on a timely and accurate basis; no violation against the laws,
regulations, or the Articles, or prejudice against the interests of the
Company was committed by the Directors and senior management
of the Company in the line of duty.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE
COMPANY

The board of Supervisors reviewed the proposal on business
operation of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2018 and the
proposal on business plan of the Company for the financial year
2019.

In the opinion of the board of Supervisors, the financial report of the
Company reflects its financial position and operation that are
complete, true and accurate. The annual operating results of the
Company have been audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP who
has also issued an audit report on the Group's financial statements.
The audit report is factual, fair and objective.
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VI.

2018 WORK REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no
connected transaction in 2018 which was subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE
INTERNAL CONTROL SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT

The board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the internal
control report of the Company, and considered that the Company
has established an appropriate internal control system in all
important aspects and the internal control management system has
operated effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation
and normal business operations.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED
AT THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

The members of the board of Supervisors had no objection to the
contents of resolutions submitted to the shareholders’ meetings.
The board of Supervisors supervised the implementation of
resolutions adopted at the shareholders’ meetings, and considered
that the Board was able to implement the relevant resolutions
earnestly. The board of Supervisors is of opinion that the Board of
the Company will carefully follow through the relevant resolutions
at the general meetings, without prejudicing the interests of the
Shareholders.

We hereby submit our report.

On behalf of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
The board of Supervisors

Ms. Yu Min
Chairman

29 March 2019
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The Board is pleased to report to the shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the
Company's corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 December
2018, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (with certain modifications) regarding the dealings in
securities (as defined in Model Code).

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the
Director is spending sufficient time performing them.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors, consisting of 4 executive
Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the members of the Board are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xu Li

Ms. Zhu Feifei

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Fan®
Mr. Xu Chuntao (Resigned)®

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jitong®

Ms. Cai Tianchen®

Mr. Wang Wei®

Mr. Jiang Fuxin (Retired)®

Ms. Feng Qing (Retired)®

Mr. Vincent Cheng (Retired)™

Notes:

(1) Appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 21 February 2019

) Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 20 February 2019

(3) Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 October 2018
(4) Retired as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 October 2018

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” on
pages 22 to 26 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with Non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the year ended 31
December 2018. Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code has been revised to
require that the Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
directors. Arrangements have been made for compliance with the revised
code provision which took effect from 1 January 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held five meetings.
The attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in
the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members” on page 63 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Gui
Pinghu and Ms. Zhang Yuan respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company'’s
business development and daily management and operations generally.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all
times the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Ms. Cai Tianchen possesses the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles, Directors shall be elected by shareholders at
shareholders’ general meeting and their term of office shall be three years.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office,
while the successive terms of office of independent directors shall not
exceed six years. Subject to the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory
rules of the place where the Company is listed, if the Board appoints a
new director to fill up any interim vacancy or increase the members of the
Board, the term of office of such newly added director shall expire at the
next shareholders’ general meeting and he/she is eligible for re-election.

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company are appointed for a specific term of 3 years,
subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a
balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading materials
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have attended
trainings/seminars on topics such as (i) updates on policies relating to
disclosure of information; (i) group risk management and responsibilities
of directors and supervisors; (iii) various transactions and regulations as
defined under the Listing Rules; and (iv) mergers and acquisitions control
regimes and disclosure of information. The following Directors have
attended the trainings during the year ended 31 December 2018:
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Participation

Name of Directors EEHA 28
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Gui Pinghu L Attended i
Ms. Zhang Yuan RIRZ Attended &
Ms. Xu Li BT Attended &
Ms. Zhu Feifei RRFZ L Attended &
Non-executive Director HHITEE

Mr. Xu Chuntao(1) HFEERA () Attended &
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYHBITESE

Mr. Zhang Jitong SRAERY S A& Attended i
Ms. Cai Tianchen BRELT Attended &
Mr. Wang Wei FREE Attended i
Mr. Jiang Fuxin(2) BIRLEE Q) Attended
Ms. Feng Qing(2) X1 Attended {1 &
Mr. Vincent Cheng(2) Bt E Q) Attended &

Notes:

(1) Resigned as a non-executive Director on 20 February 2019

(2) Retired as an independent non-executive Director on 23 October 2018

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

Strategy and Development Committee, for overseeing particular aspects

of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are

established with specific written terms of reference which specify clearly
with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out

under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei.
Ms. Cai Tianchen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review, amongst other things, the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2018. The Audit Committee also
considered significant issues on the internal audit, review the effectiveness
of internal control systems, appointment of external auditors and relevant
scope of works and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year
ended 31 December 2018, without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the table under section headed “Attendance Records of
Directors and Committee Members”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhu Feifei, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions
of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee
met twice to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The attendance of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee
at the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of
Directors and Committee Members”.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely
Ms. Xu Li, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Zhang Jitong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of
the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board
diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy (as explained
below under the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination
Committee will discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met twice in 2018 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also
considered the qualifications of the retiring executive and non-executive
Directors and recommended to the Board for re-election. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the terms of office of Mr. Jiang Fuxin, Ms. Feng
Qing and Mr. Vincent Cheng expired and retired as independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee considered and
recommended to the Board Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr.
Wang Wei to be elected as the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

The attendance of each of the members of the Nomination Committee at
the Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors
and Committee Members”.
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STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Strategy and Development Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong and Ms. Cai Tianchen
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Gui Pinghu. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the
chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.

The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are to
conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the long-term
development strategies and material investment decisions of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Strategy and Development
Committee met once to review the development strategies for the year
2018 and the material investment decisions of the Company.

The attendance of each of the members of the Strategy and Development
Committee at the Strategy and Development Committee meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed
"Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. A true diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
Directors. These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account the diversity (including gender
diversity). The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.

NN
PEEIAME

BERERREES

BRLERZECGEEMBBIUIFNTERRE
FrE BEREXLR -2 TETETHEL
o ETFHEERBBMERZEGNIE -

BRMNERZBENTIERAENAARARHE
REEE M EBARRERFETHE RIRHEE -

HZE208FN2ANHIEFE BEBEAEREZE
SORITRNEE BT ARRQRIM2018FHE
BRBE N B K EIRER o

REZE2018F12A3BIEFERN BB EERE
ZEGEKREREBLERZESEENLEEX
TEN T EEREZEGKE 2N Btk —&0 -

EEEZTEE

ARBEHEMEZTE LB - EFHINER
EFEEZLAN - EFESTLEERRRAR
AIABuL A R -

ARRTHERAABZTLEFTEKREN®R
@ ARFAEKRBRER - —EREEZTIENES
SREFABTARE WERITELR &
Bk ERREMBENESERE WA
AR - ARRESEEFEKRENREMLS
REERE LM TRZE FIEEEEXE 2T
BARARA RREYZEEZ T (B M1ERZ
TeiE) e RRARE AL - &8 A# - BR X
£ Bt FREMNTHRIERGESTS
ZTALMEEKE -

BMRPLEBEROERAR —T— \FFR



DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of
the Company. It aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and
the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company's business and
corporate strategy and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity
Policy;

Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors
at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS ¥ & 4R AE

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the table below:
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Appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. A Board
meeting was held after 23 October 2018.

S

Retired as an independent non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Four Board

meetings were held before 23 October 2018.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the presence of executive Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and
reviewing their effectiveness annually. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing, maintaining and
evaluating effective risk management and internal control systems. The
board of Supervisors is responsible for supervising the Board on the
establishment and implementation of risk management and internal
control systems. The management is responsible for coordinating and
monitoring the risk management and internal control progress. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in leading and coordinating matters
regarding internal control, overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Department
examines key issues in relation to accounting practices and all material
controls and provides its findings to the Audit Committee.

The objectives of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and
improve operational efficiency, so as to achieve strategic development.
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The Company'’s risk management and internal control systems include
different functions and areas, namely organizational structure, strategic
development, human resources, asset management, sales and purchase,
finance and accounting, information technology, internal audit, contract
management and administration.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by
key business processes. The control activities are mainly carried out
through the following:

1. Implement segregation of duties when establishing defined
business processes and work responsibilities;

2. Based on the actual needs of business processes of each business
unit, define approval and authorisation limits, approval process and
responsibilities;

3. Establish accounting procedures by strictly following accounting
standards and framework, enhance the quality and level of
accounting work and improve accounting work procedures; and

4. Set up and evaluate regularly on the procedures regarding the use
and management of assets, and safeguard the Company’s assets by
defining clear business processes and work responsibilities.

The Company’s self-evaluation on internal control systems has the
following features and processes:

1. Communicate with middle and senior management to collect risk
information, conduct analysis and identify high risk areas that the
Company may face for establishing and implementing internal
control systems and defining the scope and key areas;

2. Identify key risk information, define clear risk management
responsibilities and adopt the requirements of risk management
and internal control, based on the conditions of internal control
systems of all business processes of the Company;

3. Identify design defects by verifying and evaluating the
implementation and efficiency of internal control systems through
walk-through testing;

4, Discover defects during the implementation of internal control
systems by evaluating key control activities samples which are
extracted based on the frequency of occurrence; and
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5. Identify material weakness of internal control systems from business

process perspectives and improve according to the findings and
report of the Audit Department. Implement and test on the
improved internal control systems and verify its effectiveness.

During the self-evaluation process, the Company has adopted methods
such as interviews, walk-through testing and sampling to broadly collect
evidence in relation to the effectiveness of internal control design and
implementation, accurately analysing and identifying the defects of the
internal control systems. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to
confirm that the control policies are properly complied with.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal
audit findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems, including the financial and non-financial controls for the year
ended 31 December 2018, and considered that such systems are effective
and no material defects were found.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed disclosure policies, such as Procedures for
Information Disclosure Management, Procedures for Internal Reporting of
Material Information and Procedures on Registration of Insiders, which
provide a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees of the Company in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorised
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 119 to 124 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company'’s external auditor in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out below:

;LIL/\—/v\

FxRE #&1:1
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BEENERSHFRARTNEZE2018%12 A31
AIEFEUBREANBE
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NARBIZBAEBEERTERERNEBRE
EEBRILE A AR FEIRE 119 F 124 BRVB X EED
WEA ©

% B4 BT % BA

PEZE 2018F 12 A 31 B IEFENEXIRE &
B RGBT AR B SNEZ BRAD
ZEHMES T

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category R A B EAEA
RMB'000
ARBFT
Annual audit services, Ernst & Young FEEZRE - KGFTMEBEAT 1,950
Statutory audit services, Ernst & Young and other members AT BAZIRTS © TRk G TR BT &
in the global network of Ernst & Young KGR EBF RS EMmKE R 560
Non-audit Services FEEZRS
— Environmental, Social and Governance — IR e REAWMERER
reporting advisory 180
— Others — EAh 170
2,860
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy have been appointed as the
Company's joint company secretaries. Ms. Zhi Hui is experienced in the
health food and nutritional supplements industry and has a thorough
understanding of the operation of the Board and the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, Ms. Kam Mei Ha
Wendy of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specialising in integrated business, corporate and investor services, has
been engaged by the Company as its joint company secretary. Its primary
contact persons at the Company are Ms. Zhi Hui, another joint company
secretary of the Company and Mr. Li Bin, the chief financial officer of the
Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, both Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei
Ha Wendy have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Articles 55 and 67 of the Articles, shareholder(s) individually or
collectively holding 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the
Company carrying voting rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition with an
explanation of the matters proposed to be discussed at the meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders who individually or collectively holding more than 3% of the
shares of the Company may submit a proposal to the Board in writing 10
days before the date of the shareholders’ general meeting, at the
Company'’s registered office in PRC or the principle place of business in
Hong Kong. The Board shall notify other shareholders within 2 days of
receiving the proposal and include it for consideration at the shareholders’
general meeting. The matters stated in the proposal must be within the
functions and powers of the shareholders’ general meeting and it shall
have a clear subject and specific resolutions.

Apart from aforesaid matters, the convener shall not amend the proposals
stated in the notice of the shareholders’ general meeting or add new
proposals upon issuance of the announcement on the notice of the
shareholders’ general meeting.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Address:

30/F, Deji Building

188 Chang Jiang Road

Xuanwu District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 86-25-86819167
Email:  zhihui@zs-united.com

NN
PEEIAME

RBRRAELREES

BEN AT A R3% AR ARG 8RR AT R AR
RAXEAM 10 BREAR AT EEMPFEIE
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BTLREES  ARARBELEBERRASE
HE AL - NMRERRRAGEAPATIHIRE
SONINFTIRER

HEEEELES
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BRXREANG - ARBBEISHRENOBERER
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders" information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-25-86819188 for any assistance.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders’, both individual and institutional, views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has adopted a
Dividend Policy on declaration and payment of dividends. The Company
do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions
and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year or period and any
final dividend for a financial year which will be subject to the shareholders’
approval.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the third environmental, social and governance (hereinafter
referred to as the "ESG") report of Nanjing Sinolife United Company
Limited (referred to as the “"Company” hereto, collectively with its
subsidiaries referred to as the “Group” or “We")(Stock Code:3332), which
focuses on disclosing the ESG performance of the Group.

This report covers the financial period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018 (the “Reporting Period").

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "Guide”) as set forth in the Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules issued and amended by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2015.

The contents of this report are determined in accordance with a set of
systemic procedures. Such procedures include identifying and listing
important stakeholders and ESG-related issues, determining the scope of
the ESG reports, collecting relevant materials and data, compiling reports
based on information and verifying data in this report.

Scope and Coverage of the Report
The policies, statements, and data given in this report cover the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The subsidiaries of the Company involved in the production of products
mainly include: Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (F A A4
YRR B R A 7)) (‘Zhongsheng Bio-Tech’), Living Nature Natural
Products Limited (“Living Nature”) and Good Health Products Limited
("Good Health").

Data Description

Information and cases adopted in this report are mainly sourced from the
statistics report and related documents of the Group. The Group
undertakes that this report does not contain any false record or misleading
statements, and is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of its contents.

Confirmation and Approval
The report was approved by the Board on 29 March 2019 after
confirmation with the management.

Contacts

30/F, Deji Building, 188 Chang Jiang Road, Xuanwu District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, The PRC

Tel: 86-25-86819188

Fax: 86-25-86819167

Website: http://www.zs-united.com

E-mail: sinolife@zs-united.com
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT — PERMANENT
RESPONSIBILITY

1.1

ESG management structure

We are always persisting in responsible development and
rooting the sustainability concept in the foundation of our
corporate culture. We devote efforts to create values for
stakeholders through unceasing collaborative solidarity. In
order to comply with requirements for ESG management
during the management process, we carry out ESG work
within our top-down ESG management structure. Meanwhile,
we pay close attention to the ESG-related risks in operation,
and continuously improve the ESG organizational structure
and governance methods. During the Reporting Period, we
continue to conduct our ESG-related work through an ESG
management structure led by the Board, directed by the ESG
Management Committee and mainly implemented by the
ESG taskforce.

1. ESG

1.1

ESG Management

Committee
ESGEEZES

ESG Taskforce
ESGT{E/N

and internal control system of the Group

R —HEEILLER
SRERE

AEBBKERFEEETER  BAEF
B OBERCEENERS - =
HEEBIE BhhAERABEE
B BTRECGHNEBREREEES
—RERERN  BRIMBEBRE LM T
ESGEIEREREESGIIE  BYIMEE
EEPMESCGRER - T T EESGAR
BBREMERFE - MEHR - B
BEBBUNEFZEE SCEEZ
B& A% ESGIIENAAREF
FHESGRIB LB MR ESGARRE TIE ©

Responsible for assessing and determining the ESG risks of the Group
BEMENETEERRARE e RERNER

Ensuring the establishment of a proper and effective ESG risk management

WREERVSERERNERE 4 RERRREERANIEZERS
Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies

FHRIR - e REB/BBAER
Reviewing and approving the ESG report
FMIRE LB REBWE

Implementing the ESG risk management and internal control

MITIRIR - e B RRRER R AEE

Directing the work of the ESG Taskforce
BERE g NEBITENMENTIIE

Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies

EHIRIR - LB REREREEEK

Reviewing and approving the ESG report, and verifying the accuracy of

the performance indicators

EHIRR - HERERWE - MRERERBIRR RN

Appointing personnel to collate the ESG related data and prepare reports

and other work

ZHEANB BESCGHEBBBNREMBERES TIF
Assisting the management of the Group in assessing and determining
whether the Group’s ESG risk management internal control system is proper

and effective by submitting regular reports

EHREEEREER  UBEHMEREEARERIRE LB REAA

R EE ARG RGEE A ENMEN
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Identification of and communications with
stakeholders

The Group actively establishes communication and
exchanges with all stakeholders covering a variety of aspects,
and regards their opinions and requests as an important
consideration for the corporate strategy for sustainable
development in a long term. During the Reporting Period, we
have identified major stakeholders who have the right of
decision making or influence over the Group or are closely
related to the sustainable development of the Group as
follow:

Employees
BT

1.2 E@mARRBE

AEERGESEESARISZTE
BB BN - Wi PR B R Bk
REREERAAHEZREBNE
BEERE - HEHA - RAEES
AEEREABRREXRES - HE
BRI R ERR TIEFRERIN T E
EEYNCEVIIESY. S UNNE

Consumers
and the public
HEBEHEAR

Shareholders
and investors

BREREREE

Governments
and regulators

BB E KA

Suppliers
e

The Group stresses great importance to communications
with stakeholders by disseminating our social responsibility
values and practices through various channels. We review the
effectiveness of ESG-related measures on regular basis, and
actively incorporate the expectations of different stakeholders
into the Company's future development policy and priorities.
The following table sets out the topics that are of particular
interest to different stakeholders during the Reporting Period.

AEESEERERSANBRER
moRBERREERERMANTER
EEERERE - LT HRRESGH
BATTEI AR - TER T R AR Bl #E 2
AR HIEMA LR RREREREAT
EEHZF - TRIIEMEHATRE
e AR BRRRITAEE -

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERHE

Stakeholders

A

Expectations and propositions

HEERER

Means of communications and
responses

BEEEEL X

Governments and regulators

B REEHE

Shareholders and investors

BRREEE

Suppliers
e

Employees
8T

Consumers and the public

To fully implement national policies,

laws and regulations
To promote local economic development
To drive local employment
ERZRERRBEERER
e T B R
mEM I RLE

To provide return

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure safety production

Yo zs B ¥R

BRES

ZREE

To fulfill contractual obligations according
to law

To ensure honest operations

To manage supply chain

NGRS

HELE

HrE e

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure product responsibility
To participate in public activities
BRES
EmEE
NI )

To protect employee rights

To provide remuneration and fringe
benefits

To provide vocational development

MR

FrENE R

BEuER

To provide products and services

To file reports

To provide advice and recommendations
To submit special reports

To engage in discussions and cooperation
At

BEERE

HEER

AT

To issue company announcements
To release special reports
To invite to site visits
—J/-\tl:
HEMER
ﬁ%%%%m

To engage in business negotiations

To engage in on-site studies

To engage in exchanges and discussions
(R ¥

WG A

RS

To publish news release/announcements
To hold meetings
To invite to site visits

FER S AE
&

BRERISER

To hold worker representative meetings

To ensure collective negotiation

To provide democratic communication
platforms

BIREZAS

SE R

REFBERTA

To provide a company website

HEERAR To be involved in public welfare and charity To release company announcements
To ensure green raw materials and To engage in interviews and
productions communications

E mh R AR 7% To address customer feedback

NEmEE “ﬂ%ﬁ

HERMEREE NCIVN=
IR
BRERE

ERTERARGERAR —2 )\ AR
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1.3 Determination of material issues

To understand and respond to the expectations and
propositions of stakeholders in a timely manner and enhance
the relevance of ESG Management of the Group, the Group
determines the ESG issues and makes materiality judgments
in various forms, including counterpart benchmarking, media
analysis and in-depth interviews with stakeholders, in
accordance with the Guide, so as to achieve effective
communication and response to the expectations of different
stakeholders.

During the reporting period, we conducted more than ten in-
depth on-site discussions with stakeholders and collected
their views and concerns on the work of the Group's ESG in
daily communication with each group of stakeholders. Based
on the feedback from such stakeholders, we have adjusted
and updated the matrix of the ESG material issues in the
previous year by appropriately raising the weight of the issues
such as cultural and business concepts, product innovation
and climate change, thereby forming a matrix of material
issues for this Reporting Period. The results are as follows:

Medium a

materiality Q
PEEE

13

BERMEERR

AT RN R 30 K B [B] e A 2 A RO
LEGFK - A ANE B ESGE E M
#iE - AEBKEBEGESDNER - B
BRITEHER KRB R ARE
A ET A HAIRE - LB MERE
B HETERNEHAE - U TRER
AHYERZRHE 7T R 8 478 £ (O FE o

WMEBHN - BIET T TR ERA
FRERG R WHEEKHERERA
MEEEBPREEHKEBEGT
ERBEAMBETER - RIAIBIHEEZ
ARBHER B E—FEESGEXNM
EEEEEIT T AERMNMES  BER
BT X ERELEES ERAFR
R CHREMER - UK T AREH
R E A ERRDE - ERT

na 13
h materiality

BEEE

Materiality to stakeholders ¥ Y Il 5 > B i )

Low 14) Medium

materiality materiality
BEEE Q TEEE

Materiality to the Group’s sustainable development HEE T EABENEEE |
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No. Concerned issues No. Concerned issues

ik BXEE Fi BEEE

1 Culture and business value 14 Product innovation
M KRR D ZE mm T

2 Industry trends and policies 15 Customer interests and rights
TERBE RBER BEFP#ER

3 Anti-corruption 16 Customer complaint management
RIB1E R BERRFER

4 Operating compliance 17 Customer experience
BREE BEFER

5 Supplier management 18 Communications with communities and governments
HEmEE HiE - BAER

6 Intellectual property rights 19 Community engagement
R el

7 Water resources management 20 Public charity
IKERE R INGES

8 Pollutants management 21 Employee remuneration and benefit
SR E R 8 T HrEefs A

9 Energy management 22 Occupational safety and health
BERERE BTBXEFERLZE

10 Carbon footprint 23 Employee development and training
TR 2 B 8 TE# R EIF

11 Climate change 24 Employee equality and diversity
SRS BEIAFEST

12 Impact of business on natural environment 25 Protection of human rights
FBERARRETE AREIRE

13 Product quality

EmEE
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1.4 Operating compliance

During the daily operations, the Group carries out a series of
measures to effectively improve the compliance level of
corporate governance in accordance with laws, regulations
and business ethics.

Ethical rules

The Group actively upholds a fair competitive environment
and promotes the healthy and sustainable development of
the industry. In strict accordance with the requirements of
laws and guidance, such as the Law Against Unfair
Competition of the People’s Republic of China and Certain
Opinions of the State Council on Promoting Fair Competition in
the Market and Maintaining the Normal Order of the Market, we
have been strengthening our own main business
responsibility and risk management level in our operation.
Besides, we have never conducted any form of monopoly
and unfair competition but actively accept the supervision of
society.

Clean and honesty

The Group is committed to creating a clean and honest
culture without malpractice and fraud. Based on the relevant
requirements of the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group has formulated the enterprise norms such
as Employee Code of Conduct and Business Code for
discovering and dealing with corruption, bribery and
malpractice in a timely manner to continuously improve its
capabilities of internal control.

In the process of procurement, the Group implements
unified, standardized and centralized management of
material procurement, and adds anti-corruption
regulations in procurement contracts to reduce the risk
of corruption and bribery in such process.

In the process of sales, the Group strictly regulates the
behavior of our employees, and establishes the correct
concept of anti-corruption behavior to avoid the
corruption and fraud.

The Group conducts anti-corruption training and issues
warning message on a regular basis, to continuously
strengthen employees’ awareness of honest and
integrity.

1.4 SREE
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As the Group never tolerates any violation of integrity or
honest practices, we implement internal and external
complaint and whistle-blowing policies, and constantly
improve the complaint and whistle-blowing systems against
corrupt practices. We provide various complaint and whistle-
blowing means and channels, allowing the whistleblowers to
lodge complaints through interviews, text-messaging,
WeChat and e-mail.

Internal
whistleblowing

PERER 5

Managers in
different
locations
B ISR

Headquarters’
Monitoring

Department
HEEREE AR

General
Manager
HRAEIR

DUEE]
whistleblowing

S ERER TR

BIR - e kEaWmE

R R RS TS
2 SRS ER - TH
AR R ERE A - ﬁﬁﬁ

MEERERFRBRE  RFATAE
H# - REE MEMETEANT

AT -

General
Manager
FEECEES

The Whistle-blowing Proceure of the Group
AEEEFERRE

There was no litigation arising from corruption in the Group
during the Reporting Period.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — QUALITY FIRST

The Group is committed to providing consumers with safer and
healthier high-quality products by continuously optimizing product
mix and improving technology R&D and innovation systems, with

an aim of enhancing quality consumption experience with
consumers and “improving the physical status of people under sub-
health conditions and making healthy people healthier”.

2.1

Diversified products

Research and development of products

The Group adopts strategies of focusing on the Good Health
brand, multiple channels marketing and diversified products
and uses a market-based product development process to
meet the changing needs of customers. We also develop
incentive mechanisms for R&D and innovation to fully
mobilize the enthusiasm of R&D personnel and maximize the
product technology improvement and process optimization.

2.
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During the Reporting Period, to meet consumers’ more
diversified demands for health products, the Group has
launched a total of 30 new products, including 4 Zhongsheng
series products, 6 Hejian series products, 11 Good Health
series products and 9 Living Nature series products.

Diversified
product mixes

ZRERES

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has set up a new laboratory to

promote the improvement of research and
development

During the Reporting Period, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has set
up a new laboratory, which uses imported equipment and
is equipped with a fully automatic Kjeldahl analyzer for the
determination of protein content, effectively improving
detection efficiency and microbiological testing. On the
basis of the increase of the pathogen detection laboratory,

the detection ability level of Zhongsheng Bio-Tech is higher

than the peer level.

The new laboratory will focus on the development of new
products, new technologies and new processes, including
research on separation and extraction methods of active
ingredients of Chinese herbal medicines and natural
products, analysis and research on active ingredients,
detection and analysis of product pollutants, analysis of trial
manufacture based on production processes, research on
development of product quality standards and research on

product stability, with an aim of improving the Group'’s

overall R&D level and core competitiveness.
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While encouraging R&D and innovation, we also focus on the
maintenance of intellectual property. To protect the patent
rights of the Company and employees from infringement and
maintain the Company’s legitimate interests and rights,
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has formulated the Intellectual Property
Management and Patent Protection System in accordance with
the laws and regulations such as the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China, which stipulates the development
of new products and new technologies, research and
technological transformation of new materials and new
processes, and the inventions and creations made in the
process of introducing technology digestion and absorption
shall apply for patents in a timely manner if they meet the
conditions for granting patents. No infringement occurred in
the Group during the Reporting Period.

RiE - g MEVATRE

FES BT AR RS - RAFIHIE
EABERNEE - PAERBARE(H
FEARKMBEERE) (PEARKM
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The Group’s applications for trademark and patent

FEEBEERENBRFRER
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Cobayer Good Health Living Nature
o R BEE g

25 applications for patents
BB EM 25+

13 authorized patents
BAREEN 13 1F

2 applications for copyright
FRAEE e 21T

2 authorized copyrights
WX EZERE 2 1

trademarks

Cooperative innovation

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to develop
and enrich exchanges and cooperation with partners,
universities and research institutes to promote
complementary resources among parties.

The Group continued to cooperate with the
e-commerce platforms such as Alibaba, Tmall
International, Jingdong, Suning.com, Xiaohongshu,
Pinduoduo, Netease Koala, MIA, Health Post and Health
Element to build a diversified sales platform and
broaden our retail network;

4 applications for 56 applications for

PR IR 4 1 BB ER 56 1+

55 applications for
trademarks

FR AR AR 55 1
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The Group established a school-enterprise cooperation
with Nanjing University of Chinese Medicine by
regularly receiving students to have an internship in
the Group, in order to reserve talents for scientific
research and development;

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech cooperated with the Institute of
Chemical Industry of Forest Products Chinese Academy
of Forestry to establish a microwave negative pressure
water extraction and separation technology for the
active constituent (namely oleuropein) in olive leaves
and a high performance liquid chromatography
method which realize the patent achievement
transformation of olive leaf extraction technology.

2.2 Quality assurance

Procurement of raw materials

High-quality raw materials are the primary guarantee for
providing consumers with high quality products. The Group
established a food safety practice mechanism for raw
materials procurement, and conducted comprehensive
evaluation and hierarchical management of suppliers from
the aspects of supplier access, cooperation process
management, audit evaluation, etc, to ensure product safety
and product quality from the source. As of 31 December
2018, the Group had 30 overseas suppliers, 235 Chinese
suppliers. Among the above-mentioned suppliers, there were
259 suppliers of raw materials.

2.2
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Supplier
access

HEREEA

Cooperative
process
evaluation

BfEBRE
+HE

Review
evaluation

EATE
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Review qualifications of supplier
EnfERmEE

Conduct on-site survey on supplier
HERRSHE

Select a supplier authority to evaluate suppliers

EEREHER T EMIHHERETE

Conduct supplier inspections on a regular basis
FHRRHEERRE

Disqualify the suppliers with quality problems who did not conduct a
rectification on a timely manner

HHREEMBBRBERIIHHEER - REFREARETER

Review food and service quality of supplier
TEHEFRRLRGES

Review food brands of supplier
EHERR MM

Review food timeliness of supplier
FEHERR R LR

Review price quoted from supplier
ATEHERER

Review follow-up services of supplier

GE 2 Y [

Quality control

In compliance with the Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP),
the Group strictly controls the processes including inspection
of raw materials before their entry into the production
facilities, personnel management, facility and equipment
management, production processes and reception and
issuance of supplies. To guarantee our product quality, we
also comply with local health quality practices overseas such
as the Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985, the Biosecurity Act
1993, the Animal Products Act 1999 and the Food Act 2014.

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech possesses a variety of quality
management system certifications, including HACCP food
safety system certification, ISO 9001 quality management
system certification and 1SO 22000 food safety management
system certification. Our production workshops, operated by
the 100,000-grade dust-free workshop standard with on-site
quality assurance personnel, can fully ensure our production
conditions fall in line with the relevant requirements.

BEERF
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Living Nature establishes a strict product quality
management system by following the production practice
guidelines, and sets up strict standards of the operational
specifications for personnel entering the production area,
with a view to achieving full traceability of the entire
production process. It also performs detailed microscopic
testing on raw materials, bulk and filled products, and
constantly improves the refinement of product quality
control.

Promoting quality awareness

During the Reporting Period, to safeguard our product
quality, the Group continuously promoted quality awareness
among its employees through the ongoing training sessions
and industry communication. Meanwhile, we continuously
cooperated with the government on carrying out the national
campaign of “Quality Month” to strengthen the promotion of
the quality awareness within the Company, including quality
knowledge contests and select articles of shared experience
in quality management. These measures strengthened the
campaign and further encouraged the active involvement of
our employees.

Product recall

The Group attaches great importance to food safety issues.
According to the State Food Recall Management Measures
issued by the government, the Group has internally
developed a series of system specifications such as Food
Incoming Inspection System, Food Recall System and Defective
Food Recall System to continuously improve product recall
procedure. The Group will organize at least one product recall
exercise each year and make necessary modifications to
relevant documents based on the problems found in the
exercise, in order to improve the enforceability of such
procedure. No product recall occurred in the Group during
the Reporting Period.
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3. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITY — SERVICE FIRST 3.

The Group adopts “providing customers with comprehensive health
solutions” as the core value of our operations and services, based on
which, we provide our customers with premier product and after-
sales services, while continuing to enhance customer experience
and safeguarding customer interests and rights. With high-quality
customer service, we have formed the balanced and loyal customer
base.

3.1 Service system
High-quality customer service is critical to attracting new
customers and maintaining existing customers. The Group
develops with customers at a healthy rate by upholding the
customer service policy of “integrity and efficiency, quality
service, continuous improvement”.

Service channel

During the Reporting Period, featured with the brand of Good
Health, the Group conducted its sales business and provides
services through channels such as dealers, TV shopping and
e-commerce. In China, Our business is mainly under the
model that combines TV shopping platform, online call
centre and Zhongsheng brand retail stores.

Online call TV shopping

centre platform

EXT
Eﬁgﬂq Good health ey
brand retail
stores
IR
Zhongsheng REBETEE
[ JENIEET
@ stores
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IRE 2 NLERRS

In the overseas market, our business is mainly under the models that
combines distributors of the brands of Good Health and Living Nature,
chain pharmacies and tourism channels. At the same time, we also carry
out continuous product promotion and provide customer service by
establishing flagship stores on large domestic and overseas e-commerce
platforms.

g5 - BMEZBBITERE K Living
Nature qo 2 O AS SH 78~ SESHBE /R -~ IR
ERESEAEES - B Rt
BBEFEANRIBIAREEE T AR
TS 8977 ETTIF B R B b HE B AT
BEPART

Distributor network widely distributed in many countries
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@ United Kingdom % @ Vietnam 73

© Germany ZE] © Thailand £E

@ Netherlands A5 @ Malaysia 53 F I

@ United States %[ @ Indonesia ENE BT

@ Korea EH @ United Arab Emirates fUE42
@ Japan B

© Singapore ¥ h03%

Satisfaction improvement

We are committed to maintaining a high level of customer
satisfaction and continuously improving the quality of our
products and services. We have established a comprehensive
store and personnel management system to standardize the
behavioral norms of service personnel and strengthen the
professionalism of employees to provide customers with
more comprehensive, professional, authoritative and reliable
services and suggestions. In the process of enhancing the
customer experience, we emphasize “active service” and send
blessings by phone or in kind on important festivals such as
important festivals, customer birthdays and wedding
anniversary, etc.

Brand Building

For a long time, the Group continues to focus on brand
building, in order to provide users with better products and
services. During the Reporting Period, the Group actively
participated in and organized a series of consumer activities
at home and abroad, including China International Nutrition
and Health Industry Expo in 2018, the Imported Food
Exhibition, and China Health Industry Expo as well as the New
Zealand Fashion Week and the Baby Show (New Zealand's
largest infant and child consumption show), with an aim of
enhancing the brand image and customer awareness of
healthy and fashionable life.
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3.2 Assurance and guarantee 3.2 BUMREE
The Group persists on the principle of compliance operation. REBIRTARLCENES  ERAK

While providing quality services to customers, the Group
observes the rules and protects the legitimate interests and
rights of customers. In the PRC market, the Group is in strict
compliance with the Food Safety Law, the Consumer Protection
Law, the Advertising Law, the Advertising Management
Regulations, the Interim Provisions on Publishing Food
Advertisements, the Interim Provisions on Censorship of
Healthcare Food Advertisements, and the Tort Law, as well as
the Guidelines for Therapeutic Adverting Pre-vetting Service, TAPS,
The Fair Trading Act 1986, and other legal and regulatory
requirements in the overseas market, for the purposes of
safeguarding the compliance of promotions and
advertisements. Furthermore, the Group is determined to
protect the after-sales rights and privacy of customers.

Advertising compliance

The Group will carry out strict review of online and offline
advertising contents before approval so as to ensure the
accuracy of such contents without containing misleading or
exaggerating contents. During the Reporting Period, the
Group launched various marketing activities on TV shopping
platforms. Besides promoting and marketing our brands, we
evangelize the practice of a healthy lifestyle. To ensure the
compliance of our programs, we work with TV channels to
carry out the whole-process control over the pre-airing, airing,
and post-airing of sales activities to ensure product
descriptions and programs are compliant.
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Protecting customers’ interests and rights

We constantly improve our customer complaint mechanism
by making available various customer complaint channels so
that each customer’s opinions and complaints can be
expressed and appealed. As a result, we improved and
enhanced the quality of our services while safeguarding the
legitimate interests and rights of customers. We have a
customer service executive in each sales territory to attend
customers’ complaints. If any customer is not satisfied with
our reply, the customer may make a complaint to the
customer account department at the Group's Headquarters
through the customer complaint hotline, and we will respond
within 24 hours and propose a satisfactory solution to the
relevant customer. We also set up a corresponding market
manager assessment system, under which, local market
managers will be interviewed if three or more than
complaints are filed by the same customer directly to the
headquarters of the Group, and the complaints will be
handled accordingly.
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Customer Complaint Handling Process

As for products distributed on TV shopping platforms, the
Group's aftersales team has trained customer service agents
of the TV channels prior to product sales by guiding them to
provide correct answers to questions raised by customers, as
well as coordinating them to resolve customer complaints. As
for post-airing of products, our nutritionists and customer
service agents will also maintain close contact with TV
channels in an active position to resolve issues pertaining to
specialised products, such as coordinating with them to
resolve customer inquiries about product returns.

For cross-border products, we pay close attention to product
damages that may occur during long-distance
transportations so that packaging design and logistics
procedures can be timely improved. Where customers
receive damaged cargoes, we will make immediate
responses, and take timely follow-up and re-shipment actions
to safeguard the interests and rights of the customers.

Privacy protection

Customer information helps us provide our customers with
more considerate and accurate services. The Group will
rigorously protect the security of customer information and
prevent the divulgence of customer information. We will
categorise our customers into existing customers, new
customers, and prospective customers for archiving
management. To safeguard the security of customer privacy,
we regulate the access rights of our employees, and prohibit
any employee from disclosing or accessing customer
information without authorisation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY — GREEN
BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In response to challenges arising from climate changes, the Group

persists in the philosophy of green business operations, and

vigorously shoulders the corporate responsibility of environmental

protection. To minimise the environmental load during our

continued efforts to improve the corporate image in society, we will

remain committed to environmental sustainability so that a green

environment can be shared with the community.

4.1

Environmental management

In strict compliance with various national and local laws and
regulations governing environmental protection, including
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
of the People’s Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention and
Control of Air Pollution of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, the tax law on
environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy
Conservation, the Group has developed the Corporate
Environmental Management System, Corporate Drainage
Management System, Corporate Solid Waste Management
System, Energy Conservation Management System and Vehicle
Management System. The Group has set up an environmental
leading group in accordance with the above systems, which
is Responsible for promoting, supervising and managing
environmental protection. Such management systems have
enabled the Group to effectively manage and control energy
and resource use, emission generation and disposal, and
reduce the environmental risks of the Group, thus laying a
solid foundation for achieving sustainable development.

All of the Group's infrastructure projects in mainland China,
including projects to be constructed, expanded or
reconstructed, strictly implement the “three simultaneous”
policies for environmental protection in accordance with the
requirements of laws and regulations, and have obtained the
approval of environmental protection competent authorities.
During the Reporting Period, the R&D Centre project | phase
of Zhongsheng Bio-Tech was completed and obtained the
approval of completion-based check and acceptance for
environmental protection.
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4.2 ERBEM

4.2 Emissions compliance

Wastewater discharge

The Group discharges wastewater in strict accordance with
national and local standards and conducts regular
inspections. The Group’s wastewater is mainly produced by
the factory production, laboratory experiments and office
operations. The production wastewater is discharged to the
sewage treatment plant through the sewage pipe network
after pH adjustment and anaerobic treatment to ensure the
emissions in total and in intensity are lower than the Class 3
standards in Pollution Discharge Permit and the Integrated
wastewater discharge standard (GB8978-1996). Our domestic
wastewater is discharged through the municipal pipe
network. Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has equipped with the
laboratories built during the Reporting Period with sewage
treatment equipment to treat the wastewater generated by
chemical experiments according to the requirements of
influent water quality and discharge. During the Reporting

EEKHERK
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Period, The Group's various types of sewage treatment AREER T -
facilities are operated in accordance with the process
specifications, and are regularly inspected and maintained by
special personnel to guarantee that they are in good working

condition.
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Good Health Starts Clean Production From the Sources

FRERFERRARLEE

Good Health always pays attention to environmental protection, and advocates control over pollution from the sources
used for production processes:

FREAR—MEDIRR  AAEETIE FHESNOREREGITR -

Coal-fired or gas boilers will not be used for production activities;

FEAE E R AME R SR R AR R IE

No corrosive alkaline, acid, chlorine or other solvents will be used for any closed-loop cleaning system;

KRB KRS M ARt - B - R0RE

The dry process is adopted for our production processes so that water consumption is reduced;

FRAGEAEETSE  MAKE:

Domestic waste is zoned and discharged in accordance with the laws and regulations of New Zealand.

HERBEKIRIEA B ZOER DR A RPN -

Set out below are the Group's water pollutant discharges HREER  REB R KESEMHER
were during the Reporting Period: EREAT

Emission Amount

HmE

Effluents B Unit
Category Hhl 2016 2017 2018 B
Wastewater discharge BERBE
Total amount of wastewater FEKBEIK AR =

discharge 16,250 15,682 12,974 tonne Mg
Chemical Oxygen (COD) emissions  COD HER{E 0.03 0.03 0.036 tonne M
Ammonia and nitrogen emissions SR B E 0.026 0.01 0.0058 tonne M
Exhaust emissions BE SR HER
The Group's waste gases emitted from stationary sources are AREEMBE T RERENEELSHE
mainly consist of a small amount of experimental exhaust gas BREELNLEERER FTEER
produced by the laboratory, all of which are collected and FE RGN SR 18 B OE M R R R IR 18
then discharged upon activated carbon adsorption treatment ONE - TBRMREREHE

to ensure the concentration of pollutants meets the
requirements.
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Solid wastes management

The general solid wastes generated by the Group can be
mainly classified as general industrial waste and domestic
waste generated by office and sales premises, all of which are
uniformly disposed of by local qualified municipal sanitation
units. During the Reporting Period, we continued to promote
the implementation of the paperless office system and the
classification of domestic waste, with an aim to reduce the
domestic waste generated and promote the standardized
treatment of waste.

Our major hazardous wastes include waste engine oil,
fluorescent tubes and ink cartridges produced during the
production and office processes, as well as waste acid and
waste alkali and packaging materials produced during the
experiment. For such wastes, the Group has established a
sound hazardous waste management system to regulate the
collection and storage of hazardous wastes, and entrusted
third-party qualified companies to transfer and dispose of
them. The Group’s hazardous waste management has a
record of accounts and is registered with the regulatory
authorities to ensure safety compliance.

Set out below is the waste transfer of the Group during the
Reporting Period:

EREERMER
AEBEAN—REBERZVEE
DR RIXBERDNMAEEZH
EEMEERRY  YHEWEEE
MM BERFEMR B ERE - WM&
HIM - BPBEEEETERLERA
B AR SR D R TAE - JIREEE
EEBEYNELE  WiREERY
B E R IE -

BRI ERREZRNALE WA
BIEREERERH - BIEE
EMERBIETELORERERNE
BEME - HRUWBREREY  A£H
ERVEENEREZRMEEE
REETEREZDNESE &
7 WERF=ZNTELRAETER
MEE ASENTERERDERD
B ekt UHEEERBMESR #®
RLZEAM -

WEHR - AEENBEENERER
o

Emission Amount

B E
Emissions BEm Unit
Category HHl 2016 2017 2018 B
Waste BEEY
Hazardous waste BB EEEY 745 17.02 28.00 tonne M
Hazardous waste per revenue of — Z T 7516 12 FZE ) - 034 062  kilogram per
RMB10,000 RMB10,000
FTR/81
Non-hazardous waste HEREZEY) 6.01 43 4421 tonne A
Non-hazardous waste per BTN R EEREEY) - 0.86 098  kilogram per
revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
FTR/871

BRPEBARBARAT — 5 \FEH
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4.3 Use of resources 43 ERER
Energy management EREE
The Group mainly consumes gasoline, diesel and purchased AEBEZFERH - FBAMIINESE
electricity for the purposes of production activities, office TEBKEE - BN REEE - Hij
operations, cafeteria operations, vehicles, and engineering M IIR MM R B AIRET AR - 3
and mechanic equipment, all of which require energy FIELEL T — R FI| B - HHiEZIRETH
consumption. We have implemented a series of measures to BETRE M AR &L - B EEREAY
regulate the use of energy for our operations with a view to HEEEIRE -

maintain a clean and low-carbon production environment.

During office hours
HAIRE

® to promote the energy-saving awareness among employees by providing
more training on energy conservation and evangelizing knowledge about
energy conservation;
INRENREIEDIFIETRE AR E (F - IR B TEREE A

® 1o regulate and manage the use of air-conditioners by setting the
temperature during summer and autumn;
HERAERETREEE  REERFNRERE

® torequire all employees to shut down unecessary electrical equipment
before leaving office, and to carry out an inspection tour;
ERATE B TR A E A RS T U ERERRE -
WHREEKE

® to employ LED energy-efficient lighting for many areas in combination
with smart lighting and surveillance equipment, such as sound control
systems or switch times for lighting;
ANHEEEFALEDEN G - WERM B LR - Bk -
B R IRAAS

® o encourage green travel by minimizing unnecessary use of self-owned
vehicles.

HEGENTT RO BBERMNIELERE -

During production

L ERE

® 1o strengthen daily inspections and make timely rectifications;
No& A E K E W &R

® to configure the parameters and settings of equipment operating in
production conditions to a lower level if production requirements are

satisfied;
EmBEEGET « EERRIZEHRESEREZED)
BRI

® {0 set areasonable air-conditioned temperature where storage
requirements are satisfied;
ERFaRFERET  REAENZFARE

® to set electricity meters for different zones for efficient power control,
and to record use of, and to analyse anomalies of, electricity on a
timely basis.
DEEE - EHAEZRN X - MFLHFABBRALITEE -
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HEMA - AEEHEEFESIRER
BRSNS -

Set out below are the Group's energy consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions during the Reporting Period:

Consumption Amount

ERE
Consumables SHEY Unit
Categories Rl 2016 2017 2018 By
Energy consumption BEIRH#E
Direct energy consumption BEEERERE
Gasoline SO 54,657 57,291 62,128 Litre F+
Diesel ES] 10,528 7,708 7371 Litre F+
Total direct energy BRI HREEE 72.51 71.65 75.30 tonnes of
consumption amount standard coal
equivalent
WA AR
Indirect energy consumption M RE IR B FE
Purchased power SNEE T 2,01432 2,363.01 1,052.82 MWh JK Fff
Total indirect energy [EEEEIR B F A2 247.56 29041 240.00 tonnes of
consumption amount standard coal
equivalent
MEAZ B
Total energy consumption REBEIRER
Total energy consumption ARABEJRHFE 320.07 362.06 315.30 tonnes of
standard coal
equivalent
WA AR R
Integrated energy BT mirEBEFE 6.86 7.32 6.96 kilogram

consumption per revenue

of RMB10,000

standard coal
equivalent per
RMB10,000
FrRBE/
BT

ERPEBEROARAT —F N\
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Greenhouse gas emission BRERE
Category il

2016

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - w2 NEAWRE

Emission Amount
EEXE
Unit
2017 2018 B

Greenhouse gas Scope | HIE— BEmEE

Greenhouse gas Scope |l HE— BEmpE

Greenhouse gas Scope Il 7

HERBELRE

Total amount of greenhouse
gas emissions

B EEReE
ELXE

Greenhouse gas emissions
per revenue of RMB10,000

Note: In 2016, greenhouse gas emissions only included Scope | and Il of
greenhouse gas emissions of Zhongsheng Bio-Tech, a subsidiary of the
Group.

Water consumption management

The Group uses tap water as the main source for production
and domestic consumption. To enhance efficient utilization
of water resources and avoid excessive water consumption,
the Group continues to implement the water consumption
management rules and strengthen internal management by
introducing water-saving equipment and techniques as
required. In the meantime, the Group will continue to raise
water-saving awareness among its employees.

392

392

841

tonnes of
COseq

WS & CO,
tonnes of
COs¢q

i E £ CO,
tonnes of
COseq
W8 £ CO,
tonnes of
COs¢q

B8 & = CO,
kilogram of
CO; eq per
RMB10,000
FTrEsE
Co./ BTt

174 161

972 828

1,165 1,054

23.56 23.26

i 206FAERBESSALENBLA
A R A B I — R — IR E
wE -

AKER
AEBELARKEATENEEME
JEFRKIIR BT IRAKERNF A
K e KERNBEER  A5H
BEWITRKEERNE - MNaAEiE
B REEFRES|AGKIREMT
2 FRTETMEE TEKER -
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Zhongsheng Bio-Tech’s measures to manage water
conservation

During the Reporting Period, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech
implemented scientific approaches to plan product
manufacturing. At the initial stage of research and
development, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has taken into
consideration the processing procedures in regards to
new products, and managed to avoid pre-treatment
techniques that requires massive water consumption,
such as granulation and drying processes. These initiatives
may reduce use of water for cleaning equipment and
workshops, and effectively reduce use of water for
cleaning baking trays.

In addition, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech updated its procedures
and steps for cleaning and disinfecting work uniforms by
changing “the original disinfection steps include soaking,
cleaning, dehydrating, and drying by washing machines”
to “all clothes are soaked in big transfer containers before
being dehydrated and baked ", which will significantly
save the consumption amounts of disinfectants and tap
water.

Rainwater recycle and treatment of Zhongsheng
Bio-Tech

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech built rainwater and sewage
separation facilities in the production and office areas
located in Nanjing, which transports the rainwater and
sewage in separate pipelines for subsequent treatment.
For water sustainability, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech added to
the original separation facilities a rainwater recycle system
with a processing capacity of 15 cubic meters per hour
during the Reporting Period. Featured with water storage
control, this system is connected to smart integration, and
the quality of water discharged from this system is in
compliance with the GB/T18920-2002 Reuse of Recycling
Water for Urban: Water Quality Standard for Urban
Miscellaneous Water Consumption. Rainwater collected
from the roofs and road surfaces can be used for greening,
irrigation, and cleaning vehicles and roads, which can
reduce use of tap water.

RiE - g MEVATRE

RAERKEKEREE

BEHA - PEMRBBNBELTERLTER
g WMBRVENEEF R TIERE  GEER
PSR - IR FEFKERANBRIETE - %8
BRREREB L BFRBZERKNER X
BB MBBROAKE

BESN - RAERRBER] T TIEROBR - HE
FERFMER - SREBEZTIHD XX
WRE - TBR Bk BRI R PIBEXRYHE
RAEBERRE - BB - #E ] ATAKER
HEHMERKHERE

FAENMRRAKEREETE

PARREBEREUABERMNEER A AREESR
RS MR - BRKMSKERTREEBESD
XTI ERIE - & T A FEMF FAKER -
RMEBRA - PAERBERE D MR ETE
ENE T RIEBEE N A5 K E/ N FRKE
REG - ZEZHERBRGKRAIZESINEGE - 245
BB A —B8(LiETT - MKKEFEBR™
V5 KB AE I AR I T R K K )GB/T18920-2002
T o WEERE MBS E M RI/K AT AR (LE R
BB ASIREE A - A RREE B RK
FRAMHERK -

ERPEBEROBRAIE T \FFH
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Pipeline for discharge rainwater collected from outdoor

=SNRITKUEES

Overflowed Contaminated
rainwater drainage rainwater drainage
PEdiEz N FHK

Rainwater
collection Safe rainwater Interception
pipeline diverter and filtration

twork B2 REEE A 2
WEQW%O 4 i | MR BIREIKH

Contaminated Modularised
rainwater water storage
sediment tank

Recycled water
from pressure

relief valves
St EEEIZK
V\/ater_ supply /?;xi;;i(:
Sltfe treatment
e g
Disinfection FRZKARE R 12
EEES
Sewage
discharge
5
Municipal
rainwater
pipeline
MEFEKE
Set out below is water consumption of the Group during the WMEHRN  AREBRNBKEBERZEAT :
Reporting Period:
Consumption Amount
EHRE
Consumables THFEY Unit
Category Ehl 2016 2017 2018 B
Water resources IKRE R 43,991.54 40,630.22 18,463.80 tonne M
Water consumption per revenue BT Y 57K EFE 094 0.82 041 tonnes per
of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
WE, & T
Use of packaging materials BEMBER
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s major packaging WEHA - AEEXEFEANBEM
materials included paper and plastic packaging. To promote ARG MEREE - BTEEZKE
the green consumption philosophy, the Group streamlined FEBEES  AEERARBGERT
unnecessary product packaging, and continued to THEREMBE - WEBRLEL
strengthen the promotion and implementation of the EBEE RO BEMEDER -

conservation practices to minimize consumption of
packaging materials.
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Cobayer’s measures to conserve resources

EERERBOEE

During the Reporting Period, Cobayer continued to encourage its employees to engage in good environmental
practices, including:

BEHR - FEREERDETI2HRTNRRER - 84

to use environmental friendly paper-based gift bags for promotion events;

ERARRGESRRETRIEEE
to reduce use of paper-based letters by delivering billing statements and communications through network-
connected channels wherever possible;

BAREEER ERBEAREMBE - BOREEHFNER

to reuse or recycle paper, paper boxes, and other paper-based materials in the offices;

ERAEERE AR EWARR  ARMEMRE T

to deploy recycle bins in the offices to encourage recycle of paper.

EMAERERWAE - (2 HEAR R EKF A

Set out below is the consumption by the Group of packaging WERN - XEERNBREMEERE
materials during the Reporting Period: SLEATR -

Consumption Amount

EHE
Consumables SHIEY Unit
Category HHl 2016 2017 2018 B
Packaging materials B 35479 28095 39150 tonne MA
Packaging consumption per BT W B EEEFE 7.61 568 864  kilogram per
revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
T8
Note: In 2018, the Group started to provide packaging materials for TV o 018FAEEMEATEREMIRMEE
shopping. As result, consumption of packaging materials increased MR MEREHRBEMEHEREAM
during the Reporting Period. EFe

MRTEBAROARAR —T—\FFH [ 99 |
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EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITY — SHARED

DEVELOPMENT

High-calibre and responsible employees constitute an
indispensable asset to sustain the market competitive strength of
an enterprise. As a result, the Group persists in its people-oriented
philosophy, safeguards various interests and rights of its employees,
and provides them with development platforms, comfortable and
pleasant workplace conditions, thereby allowing its employees to

share achievements and growth with the Company.

5.1

Employment overview

In addition to upholding the employment principles of
fairness and impartiality, the Group is in strict compliance
with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China. In
overseas markets, we also observe the Human Rights Act 1993,
the Employment Relations Act 2005, the Holidays Act 2003, and
other related laws and regulations. The Group has formulated
and continued to improve the Employee Recruitment
Procedures. Subject to corporate development requirements
and various positon requirements, the appropriate talents will
be introduced. Candidates and employees will be fairly
treated. Therefore, no candidates and employees will be
discriminated due to their sex, race, religious belief, skin color,
sexual orientation, age, marital status, family, pregnancy or
any other discriminatory factors prohibited by laws.
Furthermore, the Group strictly prohibits the use of child
labour and forced labour. During the Reporting Period, the
Group reported no child labour or forced labour.

ETEE—#

BRE

it

BERENBEENEIRECERIEMISE
FNTARRNEE - AEEEFUAAR
A REETIEE#ZED  RETRHEER

Fa-

BETERBMTFERE  BET

AELRBERAR - BEEKFKE -

5.1

EE#R
AEERBRATFAENERBRL - &
BBTF(hEARLMBALEE) (P
EANRLNMBESEHERE) - £/EI
BMMETEEZMOCARESR
1993) (A ERBREZER » 2005) (B EPE
E2003)FMEERER  FIEL
FETE(BETHRERE)  BIEQR
ERFEMTRMEAMET K EEED
AA - FEEHERBEMET - 81
GLAKER - Bk REEM - BE -
MR R BIR - RE - E2ERE
ARDEEEE R R A Z G KBS
MET TEZEEBEILMEBES
o EMA  AEBERELEFAE
T FIsaHI% THYIER
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 735 HE2018F12A31H "EEHE
employees, the detailed structure of which is set out as BI735A BRETHBNT
below:

= Male employees

58T
= Female employees
ZBT
Australia
B New Zealand
11 T
140)'
Distribution of total employees by region Distribution of total employees by gender
BuEHE S NETRES M BUEBBSNETHY S M
= Sales
55 ® 30 years old or below HEAR
‘ 30ABRMAT = Others
= 31to40yearsold Hit
31-40/85% = Senior management
= 41 to 50 years old mREEE
41-508 5% Administrative
above 50 years old TAE
S0EBRIA L Healthcare supplement
technicians
RELERMAE
Distribution of total employees by age Distribution of total employees by profession
REFREINETHEYS M REXBSNETHRHS M

MRTEBAROARAR —T—\FFH [ 101 |



5.2 Protection of rights and interests

Remuneration and benefits

The Group has formulated the Remuneration Management
System, pursuant to which, all employees are provided with
competitive remuneration benefits that are in line with
industry practices. In addition to those national statutory
insurances, including retirement insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, workplace injury insurance,
maternity insurance, and housing fund (also known as five
insurances plus one fund), we also provide nutrition soup to
female employees who experience the breastfeeding period.
All factories arrange shuttle buses to pick up our employees
who commute between workplaces and home. In high
temperature conditions during summer, our employees will
receive water to stay cool.

Democratic communications

The Group encourages all employees to participate in
corporate operations management, while recognising the
importance of protecting the rights of information,
engagement, and supervision given to the employees.
Besides active communications with the employees, the
Group provides many other forms of communications,
including general manager’s mail box, one-on-one
communications, and seminars, to safeguard smooth and
effective communications channels for its employees, which
allow all employees to actively express their opinions.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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52 fE@RE

H =R
AEEWECHEBTEFE)  RER
BTRHUHGETEEIALAREHRFS
B E BN N A A - IR A E TIRHE
REENBERR  BERRE KX
Rl - THBRE - EERBRMEEA
BE(Ak—%) 29 BERMILHAN
LETRHEES A TREHH
BEC-RXEILTH EFSEER
BT RMMREBRKM °

REEE

AEERBEEETIZ2HEQANKEE
PR /IE{%IEEIE’J% B 20
EREEE BRHAREIEB I
BIBRKIRAE - —H BB B
ERA REEIEBREMNGRE

B BBIREBRESCHER -

Employee Exchange Seminar
FREIRXREAS
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5.3 Occupational health
The Group always prioritises the occupational health and
safety of our employees, and therefore implements the
Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, and the Safety Training Management
Rules, Health & Safety at Work Act 2015, and other laws and
regulations of places where our business operates. In accord
with these laws, all subsidiaries have formulated their internal
occupational health and safety management regulations and
rules, and continue to optimise and improve the safety
management mechanisms. As required, we provide our
employees with personal protective equipment at
workplaces, and organise regular safety drills and safety
training sessions to enhance the safety awareness among our
employees. As a result, a culture of production safety has well
been developed. During the Reporting Period, the Group
invested a total of RMB584,100 in production safety, and
organised four safety drills with a coverage rate of 100%.
Furthermore, no accidents involving the death of our

employees due to work were reported.

Fire drill by Zhongsheng Bio-Tech
RARSRERBRES

Safety management system of Zhongsheng Bio-Tech

Upholding the people-oriented philosophy, Zhongsheng
Bio-Tech recognises the importance of safety and health
of our employees during production, and thus carries out
various safety actions from safety production
management structure to system development, safety
inspection, and regular assessment for the purposes of
ongoing improvement of safety management systems.
These initiatives will safeguard the continuity and stability
of our safe productions.

RiE - g MERHSE

53 BXERE

NEBBKRNETIRERLZ 2 AE -
ERAT(PEAREMELZ 24 E
EVCRE AR LTI E R EE)
(REHEEFZINEBIEAI(IIERE
LERVRE  2015) FiB & P A &
VERR - BHIB A BRI BT R EB
RERT2EERENE  THEL
METEL2EEHES - wERKBET
REHELRBR TTEHEABZLEE
BB IEES  MRERETLE
BH O AERIUMNZE2EEXESR
B REBAN - AEBELZ2EERA
HErsses B AREEEE4N

TEEEEERION  KABEEETHE
TERRMIL T A o

Warning signs posted at production workshops

HEBMREE TR

PAENRZZEERA
FAMRBRUAAREL  ERETELEBRE
TRZEMER  HITZERETH tXE
FEEERE BIEER R2RE - T
EETAFETSLE2ERERE  RARLE
HENFE BENETRERE -
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104

Administrative
structure

EERE

To establish a safe
production
management team,
which comprise the
general manager as the
team leader,
department heads as
team members, and
shift leaders as the
major safety officers.
BXSL A AR IR R
& ZRENIEE
ARKE  EAR
RE-LZZAEAN
TEREEER/AE

=

System
Development

HERER

To formulate the Safety
Education and Training

System
HECE 2 HE HI
=Y

To formulate the
Administrative Rules for
Special positions
SIE(RRIEE R
=Y

To update the
Administrative Rules for
Employee Health and
Sanitation
BEFCABRE®HE
EIRHIE)

To update the Mould
Management Rules
EH(RABEEREIE)
To update the
Management Rules for
Cleaning Tools
EHMCOERIAERE
=)

To update the
Management Rules for
Use of Containers
EAKRBRERER
Y

Safety
Inspection

RERE

To organise a quarterly
safety inspection that
focuses on identifying
violation of rules and
potential hazards
NEREE BER
TERNR BFEME
R RZrRE

To launch not less than
one routine safety
check at every
department each
month

KHFIE ARERET D
—REEMLZEB

Bt %

Regular
Assessment

EH L

To formulate corrective
measures to address
identified issues on a
regular basis, the
corrective results and
reviews of which will
be reported to the
leading safety taskforce
IR AR E S E
TEEREE A e - A
Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ&
iR L 2 RE/ A
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Living Nature’s strict implementation of health and safety management procedures
Living Nature 5l {TBRIENRBRERZ 2 EEEF
Living Nature recognises the great importance of safe production and occupational health of its employees. All

employees at the company participate in reviewing and updating the health and safety management procedures.
LivingNaturem E BB ETH L2 EEMBERE EAFTPT2E2HBEENENNERELT 2 BRI °

Any accident or any condition that is susceptible to hazards shall be recorded on the list of corrective and
preventative measures, and immediate assessment shall be carried out to further reduce such risks;

EfER LB A NS REMEREAM EMEDEER L - WZBBETRE - R E—FaER

All accidents are recorded on the monthly minutes for health and safety meetings and regular meetings;

FAESEHRSCHRES ANRELREER R EHERLET

Any injured person shall be immediately attended by qualified first aid personnel, and wherever required, such
injured person shall be hospitalised for further treatment.

EREEIREERNSRABNNEE NARE  SESRAEERETE— PR -

5.4 Employee development 54 BETERE

Employee training

During the Reporting Period, in accordance with the Employee
Training Management System, the Group continued to
improve the training system and provide various training
opportunities to its employees. In 2018, we strengthened the
employee training on food safety regulations and rules, and
incorporated more regulatory requirements regarding food
safety to the pre-employment training in order to continue
raising the food safety awareness among our employees.

During the Reporting Period, the total training hours of the
Group amounted to 34,135.32 hours, and the total number of
attendees for our training sessions amounted to 2,077 with
average training hours of 46 hours per person.

ST

HEBAN - AEBUCEIHRIER
HE)RER BETERIER
SRETRFEEASZSENEIKES -
20185 HFIMBTHETHERME
2HEZXRRTEMEI - E£E TREATE
R mERMmEEEREROAS
TEHRABEIRMEEEH -

MEEA - NEE 2 F R E
3413532 /N85 + AREEFI A IR 2,077 A
WK NN B 46 /N o

ERPEBEROBRAIE T \FFH



Training on food safety regulations
RmREERE

Internal and external training systems of Zhongsheng
Bio-Tech

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech stresses the importance of employee
growth. In accordance with the employee training
requirements, the annual training plan will be formulated,
which is comprised of internal and external training
sessions. In doing so, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech will continue to
enrich the employee training contents and forms.
Furthermore, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech sets a mandatory
requirement of 40-hour training for employees at the
production workshops throughout the year so as to
maintain their professional standard and capability.

Career development

Always upholding the “fair, impartial, and open” mechanisms
to identify and employ talents, the Group provides equal
promotion opportunities for every outstanding employee. In
addition, we continue to smooth the employee career
development path with multi-pronged promotion
mechanism in place. In accordance with the Employee
Promotion Management System, the quality, ability, working
attitude, and performance of an employee will be evaluated
and assessed, the results of which will serve as the basis for
promotion. In this way, the employees will be motivated to
improve their work performance, while reasonable employee
mobility is facilitated, as a result of which both employees
and the Company will together advance forward.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Training on maintenance and repair of

Agilent liquid and gas phases instruments

ZRMAARAEEREE
AR R SR SI B R

FARRERATRE  RER TENFRH
A L0 RIS IR
B - RMRE A TEIAE R -
BeSh - o RN A R B T
B E a0 N AL B - URA T
FRRENGES -

BERE

REBBEFART - RIE - R
HEEAMAARS BT —(LEFE
TEFFEFNETHESE - RPN
BRETREEREE ETZ2UE
TS KIB(ETEERGIE) -
EHE TH#THEER  AREEZ
RREREAZRE  NIHEB TR
AIERE  REBT/RERS &
RENBXRES -
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Management

EEH,

Promotion and career development path

BARENE

5.5 Employee care

The Group is committed to building excellent working
ambiance for its employees, as well as comfortable and
pleasant workplace conditions. The Group’'s active
engagement with its employees in various interesting cultural
and sports activities will help them achieve a work-life
balance. In the meantime, we have established the labour
union that takes the initiative to express care to the
employees experiencing difficulties, and try our best to
resolve difficulties our employees encounter during their life.

iﬁiﬁ ﬁ: = &Hr \Z_\#& =

Multi-pronged and
crossover field

ZHXX

55 ETIRIE

AEEH IR ABETRER M IIE
SE EETEAENTERE &
BEAHET2HESHEEELHAE
SEE) (THEE T TREAESERFE -
R BPIEK T T EHHEE
REHET FAHARBETHEF EHNA
B BEELMEET ﬁ@?f%ﬁ

AREIBZETIRREES  FEIR
AETIMEBREMERR -

As for female employee care, we convey our solicitude to
maternity employees and offer nutrition soup to breastfeed
employees. These initiatives will continue to improve the
sense of belonging and happiness of the employees.

In the overseas market, Good Health will organise employee RN TREATHBMERET
birthday parties, Christmas events, cultural carnivals, and TYEBEAETE - A8 T8R4 EI .
other celebrative events to encourage its employees to BHE - XEEEENEE  BA8

TRECERRLENEHERE - &
provides its employees with counsel services in regard to EBIREETIE RE4E -
psychological health and stress management so that the

employees can maintain a healthy and happy work-life

relationship.

maintain a work-life balance. Furthermore, Good Health
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New Employee Team Building Event Jinniu Lake Spring Outing
MEIHRRES S HEEER

Cultural Carnival Mini Golf Event

XALEELEED UMY P SEE )
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6. COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY — HARMONIOUS 6. HESFE—MBEHRE
CO-EXISTENCE

A good community environment safeguards the sustainability of a RIFHHREEELESEXENRE -
business. Over the course of development, the Group has fully taken NEBERENEBREFRPEELFES
into consideration the impacts brought by its business operations HEWMHBRERNTE  BREET T
on local communities, and therefore has been in active response to TN EE BZREd42E® =N
and supporting community activities. Our extensive involvement in PEEXYETNEAFEORR - EE M
communications with communities allows the public to enjoy rich —RAteERERNE -

cultural and sports events, as well as to positive contributions to
society together with us.

6.1 Community engagement 6.1 HtESEH
The Group continues its community engagements based on AEBZEREUATEENE ERE
its business nature, product properties, and brand features HEMRESEeEAERNMHREE ,\/E
with particular focuses on culture, health, and sports. Besides B AN BFE LrAEH2H
supporting and promoting a healthier lifestyle, the Group will B XEMEEERERENAETEH
promote the integration of different cultures. N WRENRELERRE -

Community
Engagements

Zi LR =7 \L\giy

Culture Health

el "

Good Health's Sponsors Austrahan Chmese Triathlon Club S Cobayer Participates in Mid-Autum Festival Evenmg Held by

Participation in 2018 Sydney Running Festival Australian Chinese Communities
b2 R BN ZE A = (B EEET BB INRAN R E A BEERER RN
(Australian Chinese Triathlon Club) 2502018 £ & fE B h i RREERGE
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6.2 Public welfare and charity
Living Nature supports bodies, charity organizations, and
non-profit organisations (NGOs) in the northern New Zealand
by regularly donating its products, and provide active support
to local nursing homes and schools.

. Breast Cancer Foundation
The Breast Cancer Foundation operates as a non-profit
charity trust fund to support breast cancer patients.
Living Nature has a nationwide network of product
donations in New Zealand, and helps the Pink Ribbon
Breakfasts raise funds.

. Sweet Louise
Sweet Louise operates as a non-profit charity trust fund
that supports incurable breast cancer patients. Living
Nature has donated packaging products for the
activities organised by this fund, and assisted it in
fundraising activities as well.

. Look Good Feel Better
Look Good Feel Better operates as a non-profit
organisation that supports cancer patients, and Living
Nature made product donations to this organisation,
and assisted it in fundraising activities as well.

6.2

DRBEE

Living Nature & HAAEE m B BB R 32
RO AR E B8 - REMBIA N
IE & I M AE 4 (NGO) + RIBF B B 1R X2
FHEMNBEZRMER -

. HBREESS
AREESER —EAIFIAR
BRENEEMNEEREERE
% ° Living Nature 7E 41 78 ) & B
EHRHEERER  EMNLK
Be tHYEEED -

. Sweet Louise
Sweet Louise & — A FEH T
AIERMILREEENIEET
MR ESHES - Living Nature
WX BZESHEBIRER S
PRERED EAGES
= Rc )

. Look Good Feel Better
Look Good Feel Better s& — 3% #F
JRIE SR E M IERF A - Living
Nature B E EEhE & - UEBA
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APPENDIX | APPLICABLE REGULATIONS AND POLICIES Fffé%— BRAERRBEE

Environmental Aspect

RE

Ll

Regulations and Policies

ER

BUR

the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARAMBEREREER)

the Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARXMBEACTRIDEE)

the Law on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARXMBARISREEE)

the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution

(hE ARAMBE RS RBRENNAE)

the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation

(hEARAMBREIRETLE)

Corporate Policies

|

FIE
Environmental Protection Management
CRREEHIZ)
Corporate Drainage System Management
(BER RGBS E)
Corporate Solid Waste Management System
(ElRE B HIEZ)
Energy Conservation Management System
(EEEEIEHIE)
Vehicle Management System

(BWMEEHE)

ERPEBEROBRAIE T \FFH
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Social Aspect

HEEE

The PRC Regulatory Policies

RBUERBER
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARAMBEERNE)
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKMBERPEERFIE)
the Food Product Recall Management Rules
(RmBEEEIE)
the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FEARKENMERRETEE)
the Consumer Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKNMBEEBEERREE)
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKXMBEESZE)
the Advertising Management Regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMNEEEEIRED)
the Interim Provisions of the People’s Republic of China on Publishing Food Advertisements
(PEARKNERMBESEMLITRE)
the Interim Provisions of the People’s Republic of China on Censorship of Healthy Food Advertisements
(PEARKNBERBEMESESEITHRE)
the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKENBERERETE)
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKMBELEHE)
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARKMBELEHERDE)
the Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PFEARKEMBEL2EEE)
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(PEARKEMBEBEREE)
the Safety Training Management Rules

(CEREERIEBIE)

Australia and New Zealand Regulatory Policies
BRI EE K AR 78 BE SR BUR
Human Rights Act 1993
CAREEZR - 1993)
Employment Relations Act 2005
(BAERBIEOEZS » 2005)
Holidays Act 2003
(REPEZR - 2003)
Guidelines for Therapeutic Adverting Pre-vetting Service, TAPS

ChBEESEERGRE)
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Social Aspect

HEEE
The Fair Trading Act 1986
(RFRZGER > 1986)
the Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985
(RERMFTHIED] - 1985)
the Biosecurity Act 1993
(EMREIESR » 1993)
the Animal Products Act 1999
(BMERER © 1999)
the Food Act 2014
(ERMEZR ' 2014)
Health & Safety at Work Act 2015
(ITERELR 2IEZE © 2015)

Corporate policies

NEIHE
Intellectual Property Right Management and Patent Protection Policy
(HBEREERFENRESRE)
Incoming Food Inspection Procedures
(RmETERHE)
Food Product Recall System
(EmBEHIE)
Defective Food Product Recall System
(RFaRMAEHEZ)
Employee Recruitment System
(BEIHREHE)
Remuneration Management System
(FEEEHIE)
Safety Education and Training System
(ZR2HBEEIHE)
Administrative Rules for Special Positions
CRHRIEEEGIZE)
Administrative Rules for Employee Health and Sanitation
(ANERFEHEEESIE)
Mould Management Rules
(BAEETHE)
Management Rules for Cleaning Tools
CERIAEERHE)
Management Rules for Use of Containers
(REEREENE)
Employee Training Management System
(BEIIEAIEEGIE)
Employee Promotion Management System

(BTEERHIE)
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APPENDIX Il CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT GUIDE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE [f$2— EERXFTIRIE - H B R ERBERSIRNA RS

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAEBRE-RRBRBEEREEKP)

Chapter
FREEE

Environment
B

AT: Emissions General
INRE? 3¢ disclosure
— B R

Al3

Information on

(@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations

on air and greenhouse gas emissions, sewage discharges into water and
land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, etc. may have
material impact on the issuer

ARERMRERBHN  AKRLBONES  AEREZEEY

HMELSH

@ BE: R

b) BETHETABBEARENZRNMROINEE -
The types of emissions and relevant emissions data.

BEiE e RARRE R R

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBRINEREE

Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity

FELEERENBERTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

FELBRERZNBRERTE

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

R B E R IR M PTIEAR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous waste are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved

HlREAEREZERYNITE  RIEELENRBRRAERR

4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LRFET —HEES

4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LREEE —HEER
4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LRBREE—HEES
4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LRBRE—HEES
4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LRFET —HEESE
4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LREEE —HEER
4. Environmental
Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LRBREE—HEES
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B HEREAERE-REERBRERIEEKP)

Chapter
FrEEH

REESR

REEE

REEE

A2: use of General Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and other raw 4. Environmental
resources  disclosure Materials. Responsibility — Green
A2 s BIRFEF —REE BRERER(RIEER - KEREMEVE) BBEE - Business Operations
4RBEME —
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or 4. Environmental
oil) in total and intensity Responsibility — Green
BEREMNEDNERER SBEZER(NE - f8h) 8EEREE Business Operations
4ERIREME —
A22 Water consumption in total and intensity 4. Environmental
BREKERTE Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LEREE —REES
A23 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 4. Environmental
AR e 5T B R ATS AR Responsibility — Green
Business Operations
LERRA — RBES
A24 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 4. Environmental
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved Responsibility — Green
HKEEA AR Er A EREE - UREARKREFT SRS Business Operations
BES LIRBRE—GBEE
A25 Total packaging material used for finished products, and with reference to 4. Environmental
per unit produced Responsibility — Green
HRMATAEVRNEERBEEEMEE Business Operations
LRFEE —HEEE
A3:the environment General Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment 4. Environmental
and natural  disclosure and natural resources. Responsibility — Green
resources  —fRIKE RIEBITAHRBENARAERERERNTENEE - Business Operations
A3 ERIER 4RBEE—
AARER
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and 4. Environmental
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them Responsibility — Green
HAEBZHERBERAAERNEATEREEMEEBMFTE  Business Operations
:okED) LIRRRE — BBEE
BRAEBAERBERAT —2— \G5H
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAEBRE-RRBERBEERERKP)

Chapter
FrEEE

social

HE

B1: Employment General

B1 : RI% disclosure
—REE
B1.1
B1.2

B2: health and safety General

B2 : fRERIEL disclosure
—MRIRE
B2.1
B2.2
B23
B3:development  General

and training  disclosure

B3 : FEMMEI —REE
B3.1
B3.2

Information on

(@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations

on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity and other benefits and welfare that
have material impact on issuers.

BRZI L E BRREA  TESE RE-
1t RIBARA R E A 1558 R AR FIEY -

@ EE:R

b) ETHETABEATENEEEERADINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

TEHRE 2T

Region.
BRI ERERE - FEAERI KRS D ES EH
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

mIER - FiRER KB E D MERRALE

Information on

(@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations

on providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards that have material impact on issuers.
BRRRZETHERERREREBLBELEEN

@ EE:R

b) ETHETABEATENEEEERADINER -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

BT AR EMSLC A B b &

Lost days due to work injury.

EIHBELXTERSR

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted and their
implementation and oversight.

HAFT RN B BRER2ER - ARBRRTRERTE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
BRRTHEE BT TERE M MB RN BUR - flIZIES -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

RuRIREEERESNZIEEE D

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development
SEIRE—HZERE

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development
SEIRMF—HAZEE

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development
SETEMF—HAZEE

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development
SEIEM—#ZEE

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development
SEIEMF—H£ZEE

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee -

Category.

RURI REEERE D  BREETRIINTHEE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B HEREAERE-REERBRERIEEKP)

Chapter
FrEEH

B4: Labour General
standards disclosure
B4 : BT AR —REE
B4.1
B4.2
B5: Supply chain General

management disclosure

BS : HERER —MEHE
B5.1
B5.2

B6: Product General

responsibility disclosure

Information on

(@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations

on preventing child or forced labour that have material impact on issuers.
BRI AETIRAHSTH -

@ BE: R

b BFHBETABEATENHWEELROINER -
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

AT IR E R a i AR R E T R4 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

MR E R BB A R I PTRER A SR

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain.

EEHEENRE R SRBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region

s D EmEE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.
HnEREREEREN
RAEBERERITRERTE

MENTEREMNOHEREKE - U

Information on
(@  thepolicies; and

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development

5. Employee Responsibility
— Shared Development
SEIEF—#£Z%E
No case involving child
labour and Forced labour is
found
REEFERETMEH S
THIER

2. Product Responsibility
— Quiality First
LERBEE—MEARR
2. Product Responsibility
— Quality First
LEREE—mERE
2. Product Responsibility-
Quality First

LEREE—RERE

3. Customer Responsibility
— Service First

B6: EmETE —RIEE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and requlations 3RFEM—REBZEL
on health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress that have material
impact on issuers.
FHMRHERMRBNEZELZS  BE  REIMEFENUR
RTER
@ EE:R
b) BFHETABEATENHWEERROIOHER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and 3. Customer Responsibility
health reasons. — Service First
PERCERERASTRL 2 REREHMALKNE DL SEFPEF—RBEL
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are 3. Customer Responsibility
dealt with. — Service First
BRBRERKREORFEE A REY A IERPEMF—RBEL
ERPEBAROAERAT —T—\FFR
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI) Chapter
B HERERERE-REERBRENES KP) FrEEE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 2. Product Responsibility
property rights. — Quality First
0t B A o T AR PR AR EE R R BV 18 01 JEMEMF—RERE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 2. Product Responsibility-
G S RTE BRE RERBYIERF Quality First
JEMEF—REARE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 3. Customer Responsibility
implemented and monitored. — Service First
R B E ERHRE RALBECE - LREBRTRER X 3EPEE—RBEL
B7: Anti-corruption ~ General Information on 1. ESG Management-
B7: RES disclosure (@  thepolicies;and Permanent Responsibility
— R (b)  compliance with relevant laws and requlations 1LESGER —BEEILE
On bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have material impact
on issuers.
EAURE 9% - BEFRAREN
@ EE:R
b BTFHETABEATENRWEELMROINER
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against 1. ESG Management-
the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of ~ Permanent Responsibility
the cases. LESGER —BEEILE
RERBABBETAREEEROVEBENETHARENEA
SEIEN
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures and their 1. ESG Management-
implementation and oversight. Permanent Responsibility
B LR RER U RBERTRERAE 1LESGE/R —EBEIE
B8: Community General Policies on community engagement to understand the community's needs 6. Community Responsibility
investment  disclosure where it operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration — Harmonious Co-existence
B8 : HRITE —R = communities’ interests. 6ALEEF — Mk 4
Bt R2EREREENEHREENRREEREZHEER
[ M 53 B R o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 6. Community Responsibility
BrEREE — Harmonious Co-existence
64t RBEF — ML
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focused area. 6. Community Responsibility

EEIBRBMHAER

— Harmonious Co-existence

6AEBEME — &S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife United Company
Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 125 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

8 Nz BRI R

BERPEBEROARAFARR
(RPEARLMEL 8B R A])

=R

RMIBEEE 125 F 222 BFTE AR P A ARG,
ERAR(TERAR]) REKBAR((EEE]) 2
RAETBHER BIER2018F12A31HZEE
HRRREEEZBA L FEZGRAERE R EM
2HERER  GEEDEHER GRS RER
ANMAR S BIEREANTE - QTS HEME -

BMRE GRAVBEHRRBEEESHTMAE
([BASFMAE ) Bz BB RS %R
(BB BRELEN D AEERAFRBT &
EER2018FNRANHZEGYBRAREZR
ZHIEFERAEVWBRARAGEESRE -
WERBBEEQRGHEPI 2 BBRATLSHEE -

RRzEE

HARBEE LSRR BEM 2 EBETLER
(TZB G ER ) ETEF TE - HPARZZTE
AT 2 EEEARRE DGR F 476 B 5
RZEML—fE—THlL - RESESAMAE
ZEXEAERZTFATSTAD  RABL
K ESRE MEMATRETIETEMEERR
T H1MRR BAESZEFERERRLE
B URBRARREREE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

HMRETER

BAREFISH

MRESAERDRERMZEFAE - RRMY
ARV BBRRIEBTTREEZFR - %%
SHRAEMH R A M BRI BEBETEI LU
FEREMAZBERERE  BATRZEFRREY
BERER MATEBREFEMS @ LAIRXHHE
MBI BT O RIEIBZEHE -

BPBTAREPEHMEFA AN BERZE
it 8E BREZEZHARE -
b BB BRETE ERYRMNEEAH
BHREKNHE RO R 2 FHHIZF - HPIF
BEZER BREARENATEEMBITIZRE
B BB G M SRR < BT B RIRH
g -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzEtNAEERRENSE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

HERFHNHERELEERE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives of RMB77,269,000 and
RMB45,098,000, respectively, which represented 10.43% and
6.09% of the total assets of the Group, respectively.
2018512 A31H - EEESSEERFHNBERER
BE D Rl A AR 77269000 7T & A R ¥ 45,0980007T + 5
RIEER BESXEAEEN1043% K% 609% °

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets,
the Group is required to perform annual impairment tests for
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. Management
performed impairment tests on these assets by using discounted
cash flow models as at 31 December 2018. The assessment was
complex, and it involved significant judgments and assumptions
such as the long-term growth rate and discount rate.
REBBSTEF6REENRE @ EEERUERFHY
WEEMETEEETFERERH - K20185F12A318 -
EREERAURReREXAUZZFEELETRERR - &7
HRAEM  PRENKPERERBBENEZHE X
&t e

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MHEARBEH N R A M EHRERMEEI R17 -

We reviewed the basis of preparation of the forecasts used for the
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives impairment
tests. We also involved our internal valuation specialist to assist us
in reviewing the methodology and certain assumptions adopted
in the assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives.

AP 28 B A TR A HA RO o B S B T2 8 ORI S P A TR
B ARELESE - HPIMEAEEZE KRB MEEERF
HEE LB EERENEATRAN T ERE TERE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HBREEEE

8 Nz BRI R

FARESEE R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BT NMAEERRENSER

Net realisable value of inventories

FEEEFE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded inventories of
RMB110,904,000. Management judgement is required in assessing
whether the carrying value is higher than the net realisable value
("NRV") of the inventories on hand at the year end, especially of
those slow-moving inventories which may become obsolete.
20185128318 © EXESGSHFE ARM110904,0007T °
R ERFRFENREERT SN AIZR FE ([ &
BEE]  LERURKABRNFHTER FEER
TR Al

Significant judgements are also required in determining the
write-down of inventories to NRV, which involves management's
expectations of the forecast inventory sales and usage and the
estimated selling price of inventories based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature.
BEFEMRER 2R FERTAELERHE - PRE
BERBEENTAMEERUMEERNBELRETFR
ZHERNERAEFEHEIRAGEEEE -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AR BN AR A M MAME3 K18

We evaluated the design and implementation of management'’s
controls over the assessment of the net realisable values of
inventories. We obtained an understanding of the Group's
inventory provision policy and checked the calculation of the
inventory provision based on the Group’s policy. We evaluated
management’s assumptions used to calculate the provision by
checking the ageing of inventories, subsequent sales and usage
of inventories on a sampling basis. We also checked the
subsequent selling prices to the sales orders and invoices on a
sampling basis.
HPFFAEREEYFE SR R EEGETENRTRE
e HmMTH BEEEFTERBHRIEE S£EBX
REFERENAE - ZMEBMEST RERFEHRE -
FENPRFEEEIEAERTEERERNAER BN
BRR > BHPTRERENHETENRREERER -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

BAFHZHEMER

BERRESHHEMERNAS - HW BN BRFR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B XA RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT(CONTINUED)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

8 Nz BRI R

BB RS BRR2EE ()

ERRIBBBRTETENZ B0 RAEER
BT BRI TE R R A 4 5 TR ARER - 3
Jh -

a5 B G R R SRR AR T S AR A
BHRERFEERERRAZAR - Rt &
HITEAEFAREELAR - A RER
RRLBEEZENAERR FREMERZ
Hit - AREFEATRES B - iE B
B BRSO BERAERESIZ £
Hib REEERAEAMRFMER 2 BAHRR
Mz EBRERARERRRBRMERZE
REBERER A 2 B o

TRREERTHBABES  URFEE
ZEAREF - BENLIFYE BEEEAI
2HIZBEBIEERER -

FEEEMRASHBRZREERENR
SEHEFT MAEREBRE SR -

HEERAKEKE S ERZRE LR
haEm o RIBFAER 2 EEE  BER
EFERSAENBNAREATEE ML -
femAasEHY BEEEZRHELEREN
EEBRRE MRHEMABRFEERTD
BEN  RMELEERBMBETIRBE
REIBFEEMBHRMRPT ZEBBE X
SEERIEETR  ABEREMZER -
Bzt meERNBERRMHE A B L
G2 EHRE - AWM - RERFEHKIB

MAIREEY BESRBETERELE -

FEFRAMBHRR2BRIBIRA  &F
AR BEEE UAREaUWBHRERE
BRERRBERIZ R EA -

ERAEBEROARAIE —F— \FFH



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B XA RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lawrence KW. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ire B N EM I E R

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & ARET R ARETT
REVENUE Wz 5 453,199 472,490
Cost of sales $HE AR AN (204,229) (166,393)
Gross profit EF 248,970 305,597
Other income and gains HE MU Bz 5 9,053 7,252
Selling and distribution expenses THE MK HRAY (225,550) (190,761)
Administrative expenses TBRX (79,768) (83,090)
Finance costs & KA 7 (3,363) (1,815)
Other expenses HEmfAx (76,465) (23,319)
Share of profits of a joint venture DihEETERNE - 224
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX AT (B518),/FE (127,123) 14,088
Income tax credit/(expense) Friggige,(FAx) 10 14,286 (3,245)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEE (F8), 78 (112,837) 10,843
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HfthZEUW A~ (E#E)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REE& RS ETHDER
that may be reclassified to profit or loss in B H’JEMEEH&)\/
subsequent periods, after tax: (BB) ' Bk -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINRIEHEN Z5
foreign operations 1,363 (10,916)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS rEEZHEBRER
FOR THE YEAR (111,474) (73)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: 1«1?%@@{5 (B8] FE
Owners of the parent SARHEAA (112,837) 4,209
Non-controlling interests 3FT A% 2 - 6,634
(112,837) 10843
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: LA~ & I1E (L 2 EEEAE !
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZEPN (111,474) (6,150)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRE RS - 6,077
(111,474) (73)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAAEBEREA ARG
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY S (&#8) &BF
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT RMB A R RVB AR#E
— Basic and diluted for (loss)/profit — EARREE (EB) FIH 12 (11.92) cents 2 044 cent
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR

31 December 2018 120184 12 A31H

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARET R ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 13 140,825 99,139
Prepaid land lease payments BT A & KA 14 10,216 10,463
Goodwill RS 15 77,269 146,134
Other intangible assets Himp & 16 69,707 73,186
Deferred tax assets IEIEFS T A B 26 34,871 16,036
Pledged deposit EHERRe 31 1,170 =
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 32 6,734 6,144
Total non-current assets JEMBIVE EEARER 340,792 351,102
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 110,904 163,329
Trade receivables 2 5 e IE 19 57,654 49,340
Prepaid land lease payments SEEnub: (EI=N= ] 14 247 247
Prepayments, deposits and other TEfFRIE, Re REAEKFIE
receivables 20 24,134 34,626
Tax recoverable AT O T8 5,405 5,129
Pledged deposit BT EE 31 434 1,603
Cash and cash equivalents RENRBEEEY 21 201,411 269,592
Total current assets REEELZE 400,189 523,866
Total assets EEHRE 740,981 874,968
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 22 15,678 14,164
Other payables and accruals HAtn eI Ia R ERTE A 23 73,211 45,105
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TERITER 24 20,000 49,500
Tax payables BT 6,303 8,648
Total current liabilities mE BB 115,192 117,417
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 284,997 406,449
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ER GBI & & 625,789 757,551
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
an\ ﬁF%ﬂj( /DL?%

31 December 2018 120184 12 A 31 H

2018 2017
2018 5 2017 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR®TRT ARBTET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 24 7,500 27,500
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 26 14,021 14,345
Provision Bt 25 714 678
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEREE 22,235 42,523
Net assets EEBE 603,554 715,028
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BRREEAEGERS
of the parent
Share capital A& A 27 94,630 94,630
Other reserves H G 28 508,924 620,398
Total equity A 603,554 715,028
Gui Pinghu Zhang Yuan
M RiR
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
EERFHTEE BEAITERNTESF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[\\/ \ T

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

N A
Pl = / ~ /nl:un

Attributable to owners of the parent

NG ZN
Exchange  Statutory Non-
Share Capital ~ fluctuation surplus Merger Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
EERE
RE  EARE AEEE ffE  A0EE  HbEE  RENE B FEREs  fEs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(M) (WsF2s)  (Wsks)  (Wfsks)  (Miskos)  (Mfios) (M 28)
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 94,630 544,223 5173 49,777 (3871) = 133292 823,224 57,585 880,809
Profit for the year REEHE = = = = = = 4209 4209 6634 10843
Exchange differences on BERERNEBD
translation of foreign ERES
operations - - (10,359) - = - - (10,359) (557) (10916)
Total comprehensive income/  AFE2ERA,/
{loss)for the year (BR) &% = - (103%9) - - - 4209 (6,150) 6077 73)
Acquisition of non-controlling  YB& FEHR AR S
interests = = = - - 2022 = (2022) (63,662) (65,084)
Final 2016 dividends declared BB R REff 20165
and paid RERE - = = - - (100024 (100,024) - (100024)
Transfer from retained profits ~ ERBF|IEEA - - - 6,398 - - (6,398) - - -
At31 December 2017 R17£12A318 U0 54 (518) 56175 GE7) Q0D 309 71508 - 7508
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \

—H= N\ 7 ZA-
Tnn / N\, /nmganm %j] %

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREEAELL
Exchange Statutory
Share Capital fluctuation surplus Merger Other Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses equity
EERR
BE  EXfE BERE #E  AfRE  HtRE  RHER HmRER
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTr AR%TRT ARETn ARETr AR®Trn AR®Tr ARET:R
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(WaE27)  (FyaEes)  (B¥atas)  (Mfsf2s)  (WisEes)  (MfEas)  (MfzEas)
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1A18 94,630 544,223 (5,186) 56,175 (3,871) (2,022) 31,079 715,028
Loss for the year NEEEIE - - - - - - (112,837) (112,837)
Exchange differenceson B EREBINERKK
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - 1,363 - - - - 1,363
Total comprehensive AEEZEKRAN/
income/(loss) for the year (518 4848 - - 1,363 - - - (112,837)  (111,474)
Transfer from retained profits & R 28 FIEEE A - - - 2,055 - - (2,055) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 94,630 544,223* (3,823)* 58,230* (3,871)% (2,022)% (83,813)* 603,554
2 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB508,924,000 WEFEREBEFAVBMRARANGEE Hib@EEA

(2017: RMB620,398,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

R ¥ 508,924,0007T (2017 4F : AR¥620,3980007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ E/% N7 //Zﬁ%%

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR¥ TR ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTHRERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFipn (E518),/ FH (127,123) 14,088
Adjustments for: HTIIRIBELFHE
Finance costs BhE R AN 7 3,363 1,815
Share of profits of a joint venture i —RE&&EERNHE - (224)
Bank interest income HRITH BEWA 5 (4,242) (3,300)
Short term investment income HHERERA 5 - ©)
Depreciation e 13 8,786 7,203
Amortisation of other intangible assets H{th 4 28 A B 16 3,651 3,709
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TET 1 HH & SRR 5
payments 14 247 247
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  WEMKE
plant and equipment B8 (k) 6 163 (19)
Realised foreign exchange loss BEIRE 5 E8 - 12,091
Write-down of inventories to net WO T E 2 Al #5)5E
realisable value 6 28,227 336
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 R F IR E 19 4,201 790
Impairment of goodwiill PR 15 70,050 346
Impairment of an investment in R—REEEERERE
ajoint venture 6 - 5,959
(12,677) 43,032
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERL, (3% m) 23,460 (90,228)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposit, BEMWFR  BAHE  Bek
prepayments, deposits and other Hofth MR IBIR A (38 0)
receivables 10,710 (21,257)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 W IR N (12,833) (10,886)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B 5 ENZIEE I, O ) 1,629 (1,309)
Increase/(decrease) in other Hi et RIE R ETER
payables and accruals #hn,/ Cr ) 27,877 (4451)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KB (FrA) RS 38,166 (85,099)
Income tax paid ERATEH (7,589) (23,641)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KEFEBME /(R BESRE
operating activities L] 30,577 (108,740)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ fﬁiﬁ%i’%

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 5 2017 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR®TRT ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEETHHEERE

Payments to acquire property, WHEYIZE - B MR ERRIR

plant and equipment (51,060) (40,143)
Deposits for other intangible assets HEtEEEELS (934) (460)
Additions to other intangible assets EtEREERNE 16 (365) (315)
Acquisition of a non-controlling interest WE%;E?IHXTEM 29 - (65,684)
Reduction of purchase consideration LT B (R - 1217
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RMEB AR 30 - (35)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BENRREFRERE

plant and equipment 650 405
Short term investment income received B Y5E B B A 5 - 9
Dividends received from a joint venture Bl—RELEEKE - 87
Realised foreign exchange loss XEEE%EETE - (12,091)
Interest received B HFIE 4,368 3,194
Net cash flows used in investing activities WEERESTRAR S e 5 (47,341) (113,816)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEHH SRS

New bank loans B RITER - 77,000
Interest paid BEFE (3,479) (1,658)
Repayment of bank loans Eiﬁﬁiﬁg%\ (49,500) =
Dividend paid to owners of the parent ENERARHEEARE 11 - (100,024)
Net cash flows used in financing activities & EEARS RE R (52,979) (24,682)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH Re MRS EEM D FHE

EQUIVALENTS (69,743) (247,238)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F 438 & MRS EEY 269,592 517,934
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ [EREB )L - SR8 1,562 (1,104)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASARREEHFEY

AT END OF YEAR 21 201,411 269,592
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

The Company is a joint stock limited liability company established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The address of its
registered office is 30/F, Deji Building, 188 Chang Jiang Road,
Xuanwu District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
nutritional supplements and health food products in the PRC,
Australia and New Zealand.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018
are as follows:

Place of incorporation
or establishment and

REAREEEHR

AAR TR EARLFE([HE )KL
D AR AT o it EE i A5 B
TEREE AT ZRERTE 188 REEANE
3042 o

AEETEHEDE  RANERAABLE
ERERHELEREREABLRRERM

BB AT 2ER
R2018F 12 A3 HAR R EZEMB AR Z
BT

place of operation/ Fully paid Percentage of
date of incorporation share capital/ equity attributable
and establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
B 32 5 R 37 3t B %
g EMRIK BRHRRE AR LR
=L BRI BH/EAER EMEAR ZESH TEER
Hi %
ARPEEYEEER AT the PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Manufacturing, processing and
17 June 2003 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
HE AR HE - MIRHERER R
200356 H17H 20,000,000 7T
BRARA
M AERREEYSImABRRAR  thePRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
26 March 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR ¥ 600,0007T ZERERM
2008F3 A 26H
ARAT
MR EYH RER A A the PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
2 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 600,0007T ZERERM
20085F4 A2 H
BRAE
IERPEXRFRREHREBR AR the PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
9 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR #6000007T TERRRM
200844 A9H
BRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREBEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEMEB AR ZEER ()

Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/ Fully paid Percentage of
date of incorporation share capital/ equity attributable
and establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A AR 32 35 AR 37 3t B R
R EMRIK BRERE, ANEEEER
=1 R BH/EAER A E A AR TEEK
HE L3

EHHIRERERERAA the PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
10 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 600,000 7T TERBRMD
2008F4 A 10H
BRAF

BN EEIFEMFIRBRART  the PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
22 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 600,000 7T ZERERMD
2008F 4 A 22 H
BRAF]

ErAREEFEYHMARLDR  the PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
30 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 600,000 7T TERERMD
2008F 4 A30H
BRATE

BN R AR A A the PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
27 June 2008 products
Limited liability company
e AR 600,000 7T TERERM
20084 6 A 27 H
BRAT

Australia Cobayer Health Food Australia AUD2,000 100% - Trading of food products
Co Pty Ltd. 2 March 2009
Limited liability company
BRI 2,000387T RmEH
20093 H2R
BRATE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREBEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEMEB AR ZER ()

Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/ Fully paid Percentage of
date of incorporation share capital/ equity attributable
and establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BT AT AvE: k5
meEw EMRIR BRERE, AAEEEER
=L BRI BH/EAER AMEAR AR TEER
HE %

RYTT R A A R the PRC RMB600,000 100% ~  Retailing of health food
BRRAT] 23 April 2009 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 600,000 7T TERBRR
2009F 4 A 23 H
BRAF]

KB AEEEEYERAR AR the PRC RMB500,000 100% - Retailing of health food
6 April 2011 products
Limited liability company
H AR 5000007T ZERERRD
20115 4H6H
BRAF]

HILRAERERBARRA the PRC RMB100,000 100% - Retailing of health food
28 April 2011 products
Limited liability company
H AR¥1000007T TERBRR
201144 A 28R
BRAF]

REFEEFEDRRERART  the PRC RMB100,000 100% - Retailing of health food
23 May 2011 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 100,000 7T ZERER M
2011 F5HA23H
BRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEMEB AR ZEER ()
Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/ Fully paid Percentage of
date of incorporation share capital/ equity attributable
and establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A AR 32 35 AR 37 3t B R
R EMRIK BRERE AR LS
=1 R BH/EAER EERUEE AR TEEK
Hi L3
FERERBEDNHRARDT  the PRC RMB100,000 100% - Retailing of health food
24 June 2011 products
Limited liability company
FE AR 100,0007T ZERERM
2011F6724H
BRAF
RERBEMREARR A the PRC RMB10,000 100% - Retailing of health food
20 August 2014 products
Limited liability company
T E AE¥100007T TERBRM®
201458 H20H
ERAR
EREBREMRBEER AR the PRC RMB10,000 100% - Retailing of health food
17 July 2014 products
Limited liability company
HE AR#100007T TERERM
201478178
BRAE
EEERREEEER AT the PRC RMB120,000,000 100% - Investment holding
21 October 2014
Limited liability company
i AR REZR
2014510 A 21 B 120,000,000 7C
BRAR
ARESEEFREBARAA the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% ~  Retailing of health food
21 April 2015 products
Limited liability company
T E AR 1,000,0007T TERBRM®
201554218
BRAF]
Good Health Products Limited New Zealand NZD2,200,002 100% - Manufacture, processing and
22 December 1987 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
GG 2,200,002 AAFE R TT £E  MIREERRARR
19876124228
BRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. XAREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEMEB AR ZER ()
Place of incorporation
or establishment and
place of operation/ Fully paid Percentage of
date of incorporation share capital/ equity attributable
and establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BT AT AvE: k5
meEw EMRIR BRHRRE AR LR
=L BRI BH/EAER AMEAR ZESH TEER
Hi# %
RABA (BB)BRAR Hong Kong HKD1 100% - Trading of food products
23 March 2015
Limited liability company
5 1% EmEH
2015F3A23H
BRAE
EERREBERMARRT the PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Retailing of health food
30 May 2007 products
Limited liability company
R AR #:20,000,0007C ZERERM
2007 F5 A 30H
= YNE]
EEEREERBARAT the PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Information technology
30 September 2011 maintenance services
Limited liability company
G AR #:1,000,0007T = BB E RS
201149 A 30
ERAR
Living Nature Natural Products New Zealand NZD14,784,444 100% - Manufacture, and sale of
Limited 1987 cosmetics and skin care
Limited liability company products
g 14,784,444 R B T HERHE i K&
19875
BRAE
Sinolife (Cayman) Holding Company ~ Cayman Islands usD100 100% - Investment holding
Limited 6 October 2017
Limited liability company
HERHESE 100%7T REZER
2017610868
BRAF]
Zhongsheng Health Company British Virgin Islands usD1 100% - Investment holding
Limited 6 October 2017
Limited liability company
HESRRES 1%7T REER
20175 10H6H
BRAE]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 RBEXE(EF)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HK(FRIO)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and

2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised standards
has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

Based on the assessment by the Group, there is no significant
cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January
2018 in accordance with transition requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B REREHRIKESE(E)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Classification and measurement

BBV K RELERE 95 ()

DERE

Carrying amount Carrying
Original New at 31 December amount at
classification classification 2017 under 1January 2018
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 under HKFRS 9
BEE BT WMEZERE IR HREERE IR
REBEBETER REENFE IR M2017%F HR2018F181H
F39MMEBER  HFER 12 A31 BWEREE W RREE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Trade receivables Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 49,340 49,340
B 5 IR B K pE W RIA R SHA AR
Financial assets included in Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 7,337 7,337
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
STATERFIE, BERk BRI e RIA R AR
Hi I R EE
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 269,592 269,592
ReRREEEY ER N EWRIE REHAAR
Pledged deposits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 1,603 1,603
EERRE BRI e RIA R PR
Deposits included in other Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 416 416

non-current assets

FRARMIERBEENLRS

B K& e MR IR

76 ST DN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's
accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing
HKAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss (ECL) approach.

Further details on the Group’s accounting policy for accounting for
impairment of financial instruments are set out on note 2.4.

The Group concluded that there is no material impact for the initial
application of the new impairment requirements.

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18
Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to all revenue
arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in
the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

The Group’s contract from customers for the sale of health food
products and cosmetics and skin care products include only one
single performance obligations. The Group has concluded that
revenue from sale should be recognised at the point of time when
a customer obtains the control of the assets. The Group concluded
that the initial application of HKFRS 15 has not had a significant
impact on the timing of Group’s revenue recognition, However, the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on accounting is noted below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B REREHRIKESE(E)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Accounting for loyalty points programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme for “Heijan” brand health
food products, prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised “deferred revenue” in relation to the fair value of points
that have been issued but not expired. Upon HKFRS 15, the Group
allocated a portion of the transaction price to the loyalty points
awarded to customers based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices and represented “contract liabilities” included in the other
payables and accruals in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Accounting for volume rebates

The Group provides retrospective volume rebates to its customers
on health food products purchased by the customer once the
quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a
threshold specified in the contract. For “Good health” brand health
food products, prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
estimated the expected volume rebates using the most likely
amount of rebates approach and included a provision for rebates in
other payables and accruals. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group represented “refund liabilities” included in the other payables
and accruals in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Accounting for advances received from the customers
Generally, the Group receives short-term advances from its
customers, under the adoption of HKFRS 15, for short-term
advances, the Group used the practical expedient. As such, the
Group will not adjust the promised amount of the consideration for
the effects of a financing component in contracts. Prior to the
adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group represented these advances as
“advances from customers”, and upon the adoption of HKFRS15, the
Group reclassified the advance amounts to “contract liabilities”
included in the other payables and accruals in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(FRIO)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases!

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures!

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS
11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is descri

bed below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR oL

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.3

144

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e, the right-of-use asset). The right-of-
use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or
relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
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2.3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group will
adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative
effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on
lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the
date of initial application. During 2018, the Group has performed a
detailed assessment on the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The
Group has estimated that right-of-use assets of RMB21,697,376.04
and lease liabilities of RMB21,464,294.16 will be recognised at 1
January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1
January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

2.3

24

CHEMAESRER 2T RMBR
HEERI(

2R (%)

BE(EREMBHREREZES) 2B
3% ERBREBSRFERABT LS
ERE 125K T HEEERE(— KR [ T
EBRBEARRD B - BIEZBER TG
(B NGRTE) @5 - R BT EANER
SRFERNE 12REEINRIAK B - T
LENBEEES LA R TR ARE
MEEIHARARTE - X2 B ABRIENT
FH: (EBRSERITHEENETES
BEIE (N EREHBHENTARERSE

YRR BRAR ¢+ (iil) B B8 40 7] B E B AR 7 )
EBIERE - HE - KAAHIEERE - KABEH

WEREBRE : RvERIAZEEER
BRES - BARMNEREZRKAIAZE
EPRAELIRAZEE  IARNBRRAE
BEMMERELARMBASHLRE
B EERRANERZE T URMNE
PRBERAZZ2E - AKEEBHKE
2019F 1 A1 A ERMZRE - X2 ERY
TEHASENMBERRELETMNEAY
@,

EXRSTTHERBE

EBEHREE
EBAHIARBARIER CERYETD
N HHN A FEFE  ZAFER/AR
SEHEZNEERNKEBHNQFE K
SERREBTAERARENEE &
7R ER [ 3517 DA SR HR 4% Y B 5 42 1) A R R
REMAM - REEBA T AEERE
BREEARFEIWNUET A #AFE
ER RGP - StERRUE T SRR
o B TREAEBRKRELAIDE
FEEMREMAEED - FFERERD
PrBERMAEREBYBRAFEFTE - WE
MHEAKAREERSBFHEX -

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group'’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EARSTHHEERBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwiill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEME (E&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

()

(i)

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33%-49%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEME (E&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Licence and health food certificates

Licence acquired as part of a business combination was valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. The licence
with indefinite useful life was tested for impairment annually. The
health food certificates acquired as part of a business combination
were valued at fair value based on the replacement cost method
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful life of 5 years. Health food certificates acquired separately are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 5 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of business combinations
were valued at fair value based on the multi-period excess earnings
method. Customer relationships are assessed as having finite useful
lives and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to14 years.

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired as part of business combinations were valued
at fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Trademarks
with finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful life of 10 years. Trademarks with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually.

Distribution network

Distribution network acquired as part of a business combination
was valued at fair value and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its useful life of 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEME (E&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment or
(b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EARSTHHEERBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e, removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEME (E&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e, the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHBEME (E&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EAESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.
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2.4

170

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services have been
rendered and it is possible that economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the relevant fee can be measured reliably;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January

2018) (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Refund liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have
to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain fixed percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees of
the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e, assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EARSTHHEERBE (&)

174

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are currencies other than Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2018 was RMB77,269,000 (2017: RMB146,134,000).
Further details are given in note 17.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
The Group determines whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2018 was RMB45,098,000
(2017: RMB45,145,000). Further details are given in note 17.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting date. At
31 December 2018, the net carrying value of inventories was
approximately RMB110,904,000 (2017: RMB163,329,000). Further
details are contained in note 18 to the financial statements.
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EREMEMIEE - NEER2018F 12 A
JEHZHEREEA AR 772600007
(20175 : AR#146,1340007T) ° #E—F5f
BERHIFE7 ©

BEEERBTEAEGNEREERE
AEEELEFBT-ABERAEGER
HERASmHEFEERSCRE B8
K AEERBERASTNERLEENE
RAEEELMAET - HmrrERAEEDEXRR
SEGHEBAGERBEASTNER
BEEABRZERARARRERE  WRE
AENMBRRUAEZSERSREMRE -
R2018F 128318 ABERHAGFEHSS
K & EmIREE A A R 45,098,000 7T
(20174F + AR #¥451450007T) ° A B3 —
FHBRME 17 RIEE -

FEUERERFE
FEMEEFEDNBTEKBREFE
HE M EERMMETHER S - %S Mt
RERM AL EEERUERNAT
KERIEL - ] se R Th 5 B (1 3R & K
o ERERSHRSHHENTHEBRM
e R2018F12A31H  FEMNEREFEE
BHANRE110904,0007T (2017 F « AREE
163,329,0007T ) © #E — S EFIEH RN F MK
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3.

176

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different. The net carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised deductible temporary differences at 31 December 2018
was RMB34,871,000 (2017: RMB16,036,000). Further details are
contained in note 26 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@) Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker that
are used to make strategic decisions. For management
purposes, the Group operates in one business unit based on
its products, and has one reportable segment which is the
manufacture and sale of nutritional supplements and the sale
of packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and
New Zealand.

(b) Geographical information
Most of the group companies are domiciled in the PRC and
the majority of the non-current assets are located in the PRC,
New Zealand and Australia. The Group’s revenue from
external customers is primarily derived in the PRC, New
Zealand and Australia.

EEgHEE (8)

BT RERE (&)

ELERBEE

fis) ] BE 8 FE R B F B A A DAIK SH A2 5 1B
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U DA R R SRR T B SRS 1B L 2 K I
NETEARANELHBEEESR - BF
FERER e BETNE ° 7R20184 12 A 31
H SR NN EREHECELER
HEEMRAEAS AR 348710007t (2017
& AR%16,0360007T) ° E—FEBEHRL
B R MIFE 26 ©

IR

REDHER

(@) FAHED I
AEERBERFELERKEAEZA
RIEL BB RENRMEETERLE D
e MEEME  AEBREEER
e — 2GR e - B — @ 27k
o BIEARE - JRAFTE KA TR
BENHEEERERBABINUKEE
FERERERM -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Geographical information (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its

major markets:

B H5 R MY ot
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&

REIHER (B

IR

(b) HIEER (FR)
NTRAKEREEEMHHNKAD

#r

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREEFIT
Mainland China R B K 310,110 303,968
New Zealand A 125,970 149,031
Australia SN FZn 7,386 7,071
Vietnam Ry 3,481 1917
Other countries EExR 6,252 10,503
453,199 472,490

(c) Non-current assets () FRBEE
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREETTT
Mainland China A B A P 190,055 148,847
New Zealand it o 29,965 33,399
Australia SN FTE 728 993
220,748 183,239

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, an investment
in a joint venture, deferred tax assets, pledged deposit and
other non-current assets.

(d) Information about major customers
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

AEFRBEEZERTIENEERR
BRAERFGREE AE0ERE -
EXERBAEE  SEMRE REAMIE
MEBEE °

d) FEEFMNER
BEEE — N RER SRR ANE R
EBEU AR 10% A F o
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the value of services

rendered during the year.

2=

- AR & F

R EEmEHBRRERE HITHE
MBERFERFAMREREOEE -

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: ez - HUWARBREBSIT T -
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARETF T ARET T
Type of goods or services ERBREER
Sale of goods HEEm 453,165 472,244
Rendering of services R R 34 246
453,199 472,490
Timing of revenue recognition U 225 78 52 B S
Goods or services transferred e ok AR A% B A B B
at a pointin time 453,199 472,490
Total revenue from contracts REBFPAHZWA%E
with customers 453,199 472,490
Other income Hbg A
Bank interest income RITFIBUA 6 4,242 3,300
Government grants* BT #E B & * 6 3,068 3,572
Short term investment income EHEIEE A - 9
Foreign exchange differences, net AINE 2= BB ER 1,486 -
Others Hi 257 352
9,053 7,233
Gains 2%
Gain on disposal of items of property, — HEWE - HiENMEEER
plant and equipment #9282 7] 6 - 19
9,053 7,252

* Various government grants have been received for the Group's contribution to

the development of local economy. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these grants.

MR ASEL T LEEROER  ERIIERE

B E - SHEGREZ
B RIR -

&
=5

B 8 R TEAK O 166
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6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group'’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H
BRELAT (B518),FIE

AEEGTA (B1E) FEDERR G

(crediting): AN AR EIBREEH
2018 2017
2018 20176
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR® T ARBTFT
Cost of inventories sold EEFENRA 176,081 163,535
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfS L E R OE#
lease payments 14 247 247
Amortisation of intangible assets* B EEEE 16 3,651 3,709
Auditor's remuneration 1% A 357 B 1,950 1,950
Depreciation of property, Wz - WEMRRETE
plant and equipment 13 8,786 7,203
Operating lease payments on properties ER¥7 % & T & [E 4 A B A
and retail shops FEHEMK 13,710 16,378
Research and development expenses A 35 F 2 2,551 3,039
Employment benefit expense BEIRMAZ (TEFEES -
(excluding directors’, supervisors’and B R 1T AEELFOFTEN ) ¢
chief executive's remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEMEFS 88,222 94,662
Pension scheme contributions R EEIMH R 3,649 4477
Other benefits H 18 A 14,571 10,780
Foreign exchange differences, net X =5 - 55 (1,486) 14,087
Impairment of goodwill** PR E ** 15 70,050 346
Impairment of an investment in N—EE L EARERE
a joint venture** - 5,959
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 R IE R E 19 4,201 790
Write-down of inventories to net Wom AT & = ] &30 F(E
realisable value*** 28,227 336
Bank interest income HRITHEHA (4,242) (3,300)
Government grants BT B & (3,068) (3,572)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of LEWE - BEMKEEER
property, plant and equipment rETIE, (M) 163 (19)

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Selling and

distribution expenses” and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

*¥

The impairment of goodwill and an investment in a joint venture is included in

“Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value for the year is included in

“cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

* FRELEERE A GARERECE2ERE
KM HERD A K [TBFAX] -

** AERR MR EEENREREF AGARE
REMEER R [EMmRE ] -

e ER WRTFEEAERFEF AR RERE
fo2EKER A [HEMKA] -

ERAEBESROARAR
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RMER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: REKADHTIT
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
Interest on bank loans RITEFF L 3,363 1,815
8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EBE . .EERTHARTH

EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed BIE EHRE] - BB D BHEMGIE 383(1)@)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the b)) QOROEIARARI(EEEEZNRER)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies RO 2HMEEE F RITHAF T MM
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is T~
as follows:
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Fees we 190 250
Other emoluments: E b -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREWER 1,848 1,575

Performance related bonuses BN ES 2,386 2,227

Pension scheme contributions RS ETEIE R 231 231

4,465 4,033

4,655 4,283
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31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

EE EERTRARTH (&)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@ BIYFHITES

RAFERBILIFNTEEINNE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

ST ¢

2018 2017

2018 F 20176

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

(notei) (note i)

(BF&ET) (B &ET)

Mr. Jiang Fuxin (note ii) B S A (B EE) - 60
Ms. Feng Qing (note i) S EE 221 (M) 45 60
Mr. Vincent Cheng (note ii) sz a5t A (MIEE ) 105 130
Mr. Zhang Jitong (note iii) SRAER S A& (M EE i) 10 =
Ms. Cai Tianchen (note iii) B2 R B4 (M) 20 =
Mr. Wang Wei (note i) F %A (M) 10 -
190 250

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2017: Nil).

B EXFHEBEEIN  RAFE - e
) ¥8 3 FEN 1T EE B S S {AT L b 2 B
(20176 : £E) -
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE EERTHEARETM(E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and supervisors (b) BTESBERES
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2ER EREE  BieTtE
ik ENEF #®e 3 230 Foh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR AR®T:R

2018 20184
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Gui Ping Hu HEEREE - 713 - 67 780
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRLL - 225 661 27 913
Ms. Xu Li BRELTL - 203 639 27 869
Ms. Zhu Feifei KR L - 201 390 22 613
- 1,342 1,690 143 3,175
Supervisors E=x
Ms. Yu Min L&t - 189 328 24 541
Ms. Wu Xuemei REFTT - 110 232 22 364
Ms. Lu Jiachun BEEMLT L - 105 44 22 17
Mr. Tao Xingrong PEmE L - - - - -
Ms. Chen Xiu BRAELL - 102 92 20 214
- 506 696 88 1,290
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31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EE EERTHARTM(E)
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b) BMITESRESE(H)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2R BYiEE  Berd
e EWEF % K H@sT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETRT AR®ETT ARETT ARETR
2017 20174
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu ETEE - 722 220 68 1010
Ms. Zhang Yuan RRZ T - 171 696 30 897
Ms. Xu Li HBUT = 155 398 2 580
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRR L = 137 283 21 441
- 1185 1,597 146 2928
Supervisors BEx
Ms. Yu Min REZL = 127 245 23 395
Ms. Wu Xuemei REBLLT = 93 224 21 338
Ms. Lu Jiachun BefEstz L = 85 81 20 186
Mr. Tao Xingrong Gl = = = - -
Ms. Chen Xiu EE+ = 85 80 20 185
- 390 630 84 1,104
Notes: BiaE -

(i) The directors’ fees for the forthcoming 12 months were paid to the
directors on the date of appointment and will be payable on the same
date of each year subsequently.

(if) Resigned as independent non-executive directors on 23 October 2018.

2018.

Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 23 October

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.

(ii)

(iif)

KRR+ —AANESHENEZER
HEMBEREXN BEREESFER—
REI AT

2018510 A23 HBHER N IENITES ©

R 201810 A 23 B EZ T BB IEHNIT
EBF-

RAFEE BMESFERTHREARHR
KRB R FIMOLEE -
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEESHFMET
The five highest paid employees during the year included three RAFEREL R FNEIRE=-"RES
directors and the chief executive (2017: two directors and the chief RITHAERQ017F : MBEE RITHAE
executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 H) o HEFMzrSEH AR sEs o NARSE
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining B ARBIET—R0Q017F: ME)IEE
one (2017: two) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor ERTHAEZNRSTIE TOHMEE
chief executive of the Company are as follows: W

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYER 189 1,029

Performance related bonuses EMERE RS 328 1,962

Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIMEIK 24 182
541 3,173

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FMELATHENIFESE RIETRE K

employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as =HME THAZBT :

follows:

Number of employees

EIZE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T 1 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX

(a)

The amounts of income tax (credit)/expense in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent:

B HS R I ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

10. FIEH

(@)

RizaBHEREMEEKRERT P
BREER),/RXEER :

2018 2017

2018 2017 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBTT

Current BN EA

— PRC — 4,920 6,871
— Over provision in the PRC in prior years — @ FE R BlBEEEE - 148
— New Zealand — R - 1,988
4,920 9,007
Deferred (note 26) IRIE (FI7E26) (19,206) (5,762)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year REEHMB(ER),  THEE (14,286) 3,245

One of the Group’s subsidiaries obtained the Certificate of
High and New Technology Enterprise in 2016 and was
approved by tax authorities to enjoy the preferential tax rate
of 15%. Except for the aforementioned subsidiaries, the
income tax of the Company and its subsidiaries established in
the PRC are subject to the statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC. New
Zealand Income tax is calculated at 28% of the assessable
profits of the subsidiaries operating in New Zealand. Australia
Income tax is calculated at 30% of the assessable profits of
the subsidiary operating in Australia.

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to (loss)/
profit before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax (credit)/expense at the effective tax rates,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax
rates are as follows:

AEBEF —HHE A FR 2016 FE
SRNEMCEREESE BRI
B EZ B 15%MEBRE o i Ll
BB AR - ANR R RENP B
KM B A R ET S B /B IR IR 5 P B 48
RA RTS8 Bl I 48 51 28 2 A B AR B A
H25% B A TE R RGN - AT E TS
TR B PI R 2 BRI B A B JEREL
R 28% 5T & o SBAF BB RLIE
FAR A FI) 58 238 HO BT B A R FE R B A
TAH30% 5T o

WA RR R B KRB M E R B FER
EHER BRI R 5T HE AR ER A
(B18) FBMBIR (HR) Fx M
BBV RGFENTIR(ER), Fx
R SRR MOB R R BB R R e B R
LIl

MRPEBARGARAT —F\FEH
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FTB%

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
2018 2018 F
Mainland China New Zealand Australia Total
HE AR AEE AARE b
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB’000 %
AR#TR % AR¥TR % AR¥TR % ARBTR %
Loss before tax RIATER (63,324) (62,835) (964) (127,123
Taxatthestatutory taxrates  RWETHEHEMHE  (15831) 250 (17,59) 28.0 (289) 300 (33,714) 265
Lower tax rates enacted EHEEDMHE
by local authority HBIER = (947) 15 - - - - (947) 0.7
Additional deductible TR L RN T %L
allowance for research EHE
and development expenses (309) 0.5 - - - - (309) 0.2
Expensesnotdeductible A AIBER
for tax 13,450 (21.2) 4,882 (7.8) - - 18,332 (14.4)
Taxlosses notrecognised ~ REATIBEE 2,169 (3.4) - - - - 2,169 (1.7)
Taxlosses utilised from EHRRBBATE
prior years WREER (1,022) 16 - - - - (1,022) 08
Others Hif 611 (1.0) 594 0.9) - - 1,205 (0.9)
Tax credit at the Group's RALEERH X
effective rate SENTELS (1,879) 3.0 (12,118) 193 (289) 30.0 (14,286) 1.2
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FRG% (&)
(b) (continued) (b) (£&)
2017 2017
Mainland China New Zealand Australia Total
YN il AR &t
RMB000 % RMB000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETTL % ARETT % ARETT % ARETT %
Profit before tax BREAIFIE 11,051 2584 453 14088
Taxat the statutory tax rates AT I Rt EHFIA 2763 250 3 280 136 300 362 57
Lower tax rates enacted EHEEPFIHER
by local authority EnYliyd (2870) (260) = - - - (2870) (204)
Adjustmentsinrespectof  FLBAFEMEHE
current tax of prior years fEmAE 148 13 = = = = 148 1.1
Additional deductible THE B L moN T H0%%
allowance for research BRE
and development expenses (135) (1.2) - - - - (135) (10
Expenses not deductible A IR
for tax 285 26 125 48 - - 410 29
Taxlosses not recognised ~ REARIERE 3184 288 - - - - 3184 26
Taxlosses utilised from EYRREBATE
prior years HREER (1,043) (94) = = = - (1043) 74
Others e (87) 08) 16 06 - - ) 05)

Taxchargeatthe Group's ~ ZAEEERH %

effective rate STERBES T 2245 203 864 334 136 300 3245 230
11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETTT

Dividends approved and paid BHERT AR S - 100,024
The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year EEe B ATHEE2018F 12 A31HIE
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). FEERERMARBARE (2017F : F) ©
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11.
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DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

No proposed dividend was declared by the Board for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The proposed final dividend of RMB6.00
cents per share, amounting to RMB56,777,902 and a special
dividend of RMB4.57 cents per share, amounting to RMB43,245,836
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was declared payable and
approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 5 June 2017.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 946,298,370 (2017: 946,298,370) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on:

11.

12.

RE (&)

EEeWEEREREE2017F12A318
IEFEEZRE » 7201746 A5 BERITHIA
ARIREBEAFRE  RESTIKES R
HZE2016F12A31AILLFEZEZRBR
BERARK600D @ #EARKS6777,902
TTRERRESRARK457 S - EARE
43,245836 JT °

BRAAEEEREAARGER
(E18),/BA|

BRER(ER) B RB QR L EE
HRHBEABRGAFEE(BB),/FBEEEAFE
BB T E B INEF 5 %946,298,370(2017
£ : 946,298370) PRETE ©

HE2018FKR2017F12A31BIEEE K
SEEVEBEEEDHITERR -

BRER(BR) BRTZATEIESE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
(Loss)/earnings (E58) BA
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity RARERER(E8),/ BFFHE
holders of the parent used in the basic (loss)/  EVEF A B @S H AFENL
earnings per share calculation (&#8),/FHE (112,837) 4,209
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Shares 4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares I EARE A (F518), BRI+ E
for the purpose of the basic (loss)/earnings f 3 37 A% D0 19 £
per share calculation 946,298,370 946,298,370
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold Plantand and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery fixtures vehicles inprogress Total

g7  EEES HERME GERXE nE  ARIR it
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB'00

AR®TR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR

31 December 2018 2018%12831H
At1 January 2016; ROIBEIATR:

Cost AR 24,564 4,166 15,923 17,113 8,997 63,429 134,192

Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (12,099) (2,520) (8,170) (7,207) (5,057) - (35,053)

Net carying amount HEFE 12,465 1,646 7753 9,906 3,940 63,429 99,139
At 1 January 2018, net of R0BEIAIE

accumulated depreciation Bk Z:HE 12,465 1,646 7,753 9,906 3,940 63,429 99,139
Additions 51 - 3,248 2,355 6,903 497 38,420 51423
Transfers EA 31,025 - - - - (31,025) -
Depreciation provided TERGRNE

during the year (1,433) (1,324) (1,618) (2913) (1,498) - (8,786)
Disposals RE - - (121) (692) - - (813)
Exchange reglignment B AT - 6) (60) 42) (15) (15) (138)
At31 December 2018, net of R018F 128318 -

accurnulated depreciation EARZE 4,057 3,564 8309 13,162 2924 70,809 140,825
At31 December 2018; R018EF12A318 :

Cost Ak 55,589 6,789 17,661 2,391 8918 70,809 182,157

Accumulated depreciation ZiE (13,532) (3,225) (9352) (9.229) (5994) - (41,332)

Net carying amount FH%E 8,057 3,564 8,309 13,162 2924 70,809 140,825
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥  BERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Fumiture
Leasehold Plantand and Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles i progress Total
BF HERE RBREREE HKAERXE "E ERIRE ECh
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBI000 RMB000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RVBO00
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARET:
31 December 2017 2017£12A831H
At 1 January 2017: MW2017F1R18 :
Cost KA 24,564 3918 14737 15,080 10,182 31943 100424
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (10925) (2,005) (7,084) (5423) (4292) = (29729
Net carying amount REE 13639 1913 7653 9657 5890 31943 70695
At 1 January 2017, net of R017E1A18
accumulated depreciation ENRZFNE 13639 1913 7653 9657 5890 31943 70695
Additions 10 - 298 179 2715 137 31520 36,460
Depreciation provided AEEHRE
during the year (1,174) (533) (1,382) (2369) (1,745) - (7.203)
Disposals RE - - 9 (36) (341) = (386)
Exchange realignment R - (32) (299) (61) (1) (34 (427)
At31 December 2017, netof R 2017F 128318
accumulated depreciation EMRZFHE 12465 1,646 7753 9906 3940 63429 99,139
At 31 December 2017: W2017F124318
Cost [ 24,564 4166 15923 17113 8997 63429 134192
Accumulated depreciation B:irE (12,099) (2520) (8,170) (7.207) (5057) - (35,053)
Net carrying amount RHTE 12,465 1646 7,753 9,906 3940 63429 99,139
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31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. ENLEENRK
2018 2017
2018 F 20175
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 BMEREE 10,710 10,957
Amortisation recognised during the year FNHEREE (247) (247)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R 20184F 12 A 31 HAERHEE 10,463 10,710

Current portion included in prepayments, STATERFRIE © e RHEA
deposits, and other receivables RIEHR TR EN R (247) (247)
Non-current portion FEmENH o 10,216 10,463

15. GOODWILL 15. BgE

2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Cost at 1 January B A1 BRI 146,134 153,387
Acquisition of subsidiaries A= NG - 362
Deduction of purchase consideration* MBREERE - (1,217)
Impairment during the year FRRIE (70,050) (346)
Exchange realignment PE H, % 1,185 (6,052)
Cost at 31 December, net of R12 A31 BRYRKA -

accumulated impairment kR REHRE 77,269 146,134
Cost at 31 December ®12 A 31 BRI A
Cost D% 147,715 146,480
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (70,446) (346)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 77,269 146,134
& This represents the adjustment of purchase consideration according to terms . EEBREBHEGERAZRBEERE -

of agreement.

Impairment testing of goodwill SRR ER:
Details of the impairment testing of goodwill have been set out in HEFERN SN LSRR
note 17 to these financial statements. ¥17 0

MRTEREROARAR —T—\FFH [ 191 |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR oL

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. HitbBLEE

Licence and
Distribution  health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates relationships Total
HRRRE
[5L:3 PEAK RmEE EFH%F @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTRE AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TxR
31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of R2018F1 A1 HMKA -
accumulated amortisation MR R EE 57,310 2,614 1,772 11,490 73,186
Addition 20 - - 365 - 365
Amortisation provided E N SR
during the year (1,768) (348) (221) (1,314) (3,651)
Exchange realignment 0 ¢, F%8 (152) (22) (9) (10) (193)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12 31 A 55,390 2,244 1,907 10,166 69,707
At 31 December 2018: R2018F 124318 :
Cost %N 61,754 3,497 2,345 13,556 81,152
Accumulated amortisation KEtE (6,364) (1,253) (438) (3,390) (11,445)
Net carrying amount REFE 55,390 2,244 1,907 10,166 69,707
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

16. b\ EE (&)

Licence and
Distribution health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates  relationships Total
HRRRE
Gl ki fak BmEE EPER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
31 December 2017 R2017%12A318
Costat 1 January 2017, net of 7R2017F1 A1 B -
accumulated amortisation e 59,943 3,004 1673 12,865 77,575
Addition =0 - - 315 - 315
Amortisation provided RENFTREH
during the year (1,857) (366) (169) (1317) (3,709)
Exchange realignment 0 i, F%8 (776) (114) (47) (58) (995)
At31 December 2017 R2017E 128318 57310 2614 1,772 11490 73,186
At 31 December 2017: 2017 12A318 :
Cost DN 61935 3,525 1,989 13,569 81,018
Accumulated amortisation S (4,625) 911) 217) (2,079) (7.832)
Net carrying amount REFE 57310 2614 1772 11,490 73,186

Included in trademarks and the licence an amount of
RMB45,098,000 (2017: RMB45,145,000) acquired as part of business
combinations are regarded as having indefinite useful lives as they
are expected to generate net cash inflows to the group indefinitely.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, these intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives were tested for impairment (note 17).

EREBEHN — o AREBEHEER
R £ EE AR B45080007T (2017 4F
AR 4514500070 ) R A E B ER K
FREW AAENREHSERALA
AEEBEAFRSRA o BR2018F £ 2017
F12A318  ZEEBFERBNFERSS
B & ECETRERR (FHEE17) ©

ERAEBEROARAIE —F— \FFH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

17. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 17. BERAFERAEASHHNE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL FEEMNRBERR
LIVES
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been EENEEERBEASoNELEET
allocated to the following cash-generating units (the “CGUs") for SRTUTHEELESU((REEFERL])
impairment testing: LAYERERIE
GHP CGU - CGHPREEALE[
Hejian CGU . REEBRSEEBN
Living Nature ("LN") CGU . Living Nature ([LN) 3R & 2 4 81
Brandfolio CGU . Brandfolio 35 & EE £ BB AL
The respective carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets PEFTERSEAEVUNHENEFER
with indefinite useful lives allocated to each of the cash-generating HFERETHELEENERENT -

units are as follows:

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4F
Intangible Intangible
assets assets
with with
indefinite indefinite
Goodwill useful lives Goodwill useful lives
BEEERH BRERE
ERASWN FERAEWH
[GES EBREE B mEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®BTR ARETRT ARBTT

GHP CGU GHPIREGEA B 33,687 - 50,061 -
Hejian CGU AR S EAESBN 34,798 39,400 87,223 39,400
LN CGU INIREEAEEN 8,784 5,698 8,850 5,745

77,269 45,098 146,134 45,145
The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based FEHREEABMAAIIE 2 FEREE AU
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on SREREMENOFHMEEE AKE
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior WIRERERAFENEREEEE - 8
management. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are BIEALASNEY IR £ i 2R TP TR E R K
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. ITHE -
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B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 17. BERAEGERHERASTHNE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL FEEWNRERR (&)
LIVES (CONTINUED)
For each of the CGUs with a significant amount of goodwiill, the key WNEE2SEREANSHESELEENR » 2018
assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in the F12831HBE2017F12 A31 BEREBE:S
value-in-use calculation for 31 December 2018 and 31 December ErmIEANTERSE  EHEEXR LAY
2017 are as follows: PRI -
GHP Hejian LN Brandfolio
GHP K@ LN Brandfolio
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
2018F  2017F  2018F  017F  2018F  017F  2018F  2017F
Sales annual growth rate (%) SHEFIER R (%) 2%-10%  2%-10%  0%-3%  3%-29% 2%-20%  2%-32% N/A  2%-24%
Gross margin (% of revenue)  EFR ((EEB D) 46% 46% 55% 69% 64% 64% N/A 14%
Long-term growth rate REEREK 2% 2% 3% 3% 2% 2% N/A 2%
Pre-tax discount rate BRI R % 19.3% 200%  23.1% B0%  21.2% 21.7% N/A 17.2%

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the cash-generating units and discount rates are
consistent with external information sources.

AT EEEETHERENRANES
MEFRR KBS EARR

RAEERER
AREESETREENXNEEMRA
MEESEERBAEFEA —FAMERY
FHEME  ARAEHMHRERE RES
BT S ERMA MRS

BRE R
ARG IR R RNBRTEIA - WIRIR A B E L
MR E R

ERBRSELBUMSPRENMEBRERNE
ZERBAME THEERIMNME SRR -
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

18.

19.

INVENTORIES B E
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Raw materials B 25,655 21,572
Work-in-progress =R 756 1,723
Finished goods RUAY Th 61,920 84,255
Goods merchandise PREE 22,573 55,779

110,904 163,329

TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. EZBKFIE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Trade receivables Z 5 W FE 62,574 50,049
Impairment BIE (4,920) (709)
57,654 49,340
In general, the entities in the Group has no credit period granted to BEMS  AEENEBIETEERP
the retail customers, and invoices would be due once they have =B ,Hﬁ —REHEEBRZEMNEAETN - KEH
been issued. The credit period offered by the Group to its RHTIHEENEER —MRAEI0REOX
distributors is generally 30 to 90 days, and the credit terms granted EETEREMTE E’JT*E,HHZ%BOE’E =
to TV shopping platforms is 30 days. Overdue balances are reviewed MERE T B AL R o BN F X AT
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned MR AEENE S RERGIEEZZ DR
and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large PR AEEHEE A EZEEPEAK -
number of diversified customers, there is no significant AEBWEREEZ ZEWE Iﬁ,ﬁfﬁﬁ%?—rﬁ&
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral AR RREMEEIER - & 5 - KT
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. BRB e

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. EZ EWFIE (&)
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of reporting NIPEHRIRBREFHERNGEERED
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as B o EWNZTBROERRSITET :
follows:
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Within 1 month 1EARA 34,277 37,273
Over 1 month but within 3 months TAAZE3EA 15,584 10,230
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3IEAZE1F 6,875 1,813
Over 1 year HBiE1F 918 24
57,654 49,340
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade Z S EIWTIBRREEEREEESOT
receivables are as follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tx ARBT T
At beginning of the year F 1) 709 581
Impairment losses recognised BHERBESE 4,201 790
Amount written off as uncollectible AU B 8E 2 & KB - (662)
Exchange realignment PE % 10 -
4,920 709

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended

31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

HZ2018F12A31MBHLFEREE
BMEREEAEIRTENRE
RERE QAR A REEEETRES T
N EBHEEHE  BEXDHERAS
HUEEEXNZREARES AR (Bl
B EmER - BRREEREIRUARER
FREMEERREXNRERE) A7
BEET ZatERMEBEXNEER &
MEFE NN RS BRI S A EBESE
& AR I R R R A R TR & 38 e AT
AR —MME - B e WA 08 E
BE—FRBAZRRBHHIT/EBA T
LA ES o

MRPEBARGARAT —F\FEH

197



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. B 5 EWKIE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TREVNAEBGFTHABREGEEETENE S
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: FEWZBERNEERRKO -
As at 31 December 2018 7201812 H31H
Past due
B
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
B 1EANR 1ZE38A 3@AMNEL st
Expected credit loss rate TBEEEEER 0.3% 5.2% 10.4% 41.9% 7.9%
Gross carrying amount BERM(AE 36,546 14,109 2,917 9,002 62,574
Expected credit losses TERREEEBE 110 734 303 3,773 4,920
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended BZE2017FEN2A3MLLEEREBEEB
31 December 2017 B EAIE 39K ENRE
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables, R2017F12 8318 - REBBSFEAE
which was measured based on incurred credit losses under HKAS VRETEEAFEEBEFENLLE S
39, as at 31 December 2017 was a provision for individually impaired EWHRIBERERECERBEENREEAR
trade receivables of RMB709,000 with a carrying amount before AR #709,000 7T B 1 51 5 (B E 5 FE W 5RIR
provision of RMB709,000. AR¥E 700,000 TCFT R B4 -
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 2017612318 - BEBEES G ERE
that were not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired 9EATER I ERNBEEBRARENE S
under HKAS 39 is as follows: FEW IR BRER AT AT -
2017
20174
RMB'000
ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired B @ B IR oRORUE 37,166
Less than 1 month past due EEN R 18 A 7,885
1to 3 months past due B 1E 318 A 1,628
Over 3 months past due BHA3E A A £ 2,661
49340
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a BT 2R 260 2R 7 2R Rk B O FE U 5k T8 B2 K = 5 Y
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no W AEEAE LR D ﬁﬂl%)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

recent history of default.
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31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. E5RWFIE (&)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended BZE2017F12A31LFEREEF B
31 December 2017(continued) ST ERIE 39K ENRE ()
Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a EEHBARFMENENRIE T EAEFE
number of independent customers that had a good track record THELHETNBYREEE@ - IRIE8
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the AR NRAREERBTURERES
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment S22 R 25 30 5% ot 1tk 5 A5 AR 1B R B HE A
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there HWITHERNEEEZMESREY R LD
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances AR A ] B[O o

were still considered fully recoverable.

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ENRIE - ke R HMEWFIE
RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Prepayments SEUNE S 12,576 19,870
Deposits and other receivables e R A MW FRIE 7,075 7,095
Interest receivable JE W R 2 116 242
Value-added tax recoverable EdEEE 4,367 7419

24,134 34,626
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The B &gy & Em SR E © 5T ARl 45 55
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables & gh & B & T 3T B 32 49 50 BR Ay FE UK
for which there was no recent history of default. TNIE o
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RERBRELSEEY
2018 2017
2018 2017 6
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & ARET R ARETTT
Cash and bank balances IB& MIBITE S 92,678 118,462
Time deposits TEHATF K 110,337 152,733
203,015 271,195
Less: Pledged time deposit W AR E BT 31 (434) (1,603)
Pledged fixed term deposit B E T R FR 31 (1,170) -
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEFEYD 201,411 269,592
2018 2017
2018 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Denominated in RMB RAR¥HE 141,264 211,392
Denominated in HKD B TTEHE 25,124 28,469
Denominated in AUD PURITEHE 73 1,837
Denominated in NZD AR PR Tt E 34,943 27,887
Denominated in USD LAZETTEHE 1 1
Denominated in EUR AR TEHE 6 6
Total st 201,411 269,592
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, AR IER] B B R IEE M HEAE o SAT -
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and MR AR AP B K B SN B ER (K01 e 45 0 - S 1B
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign RNEETERTE  ANEEREEBARER
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for FHNEXBHRITEARBLBAEME
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign o

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITRE BB BRITFERFEZZEHH
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods EEr B - RHEHERAESTERMR - &
of between one day and three months depending on the FE—HE=A  BFUARAEE/BEIRIE
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the ©HK - WIRABRBTEBTRFETE -
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and RITHEBRRAEREREFEERNEEREEE
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no AT HANG MR AV ACBREVERTT ©

recent history of default.
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22. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H
22, ESEMNFIE

RBEMRNEZENFAREREH)
MR DATEAT -

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Within 1 month BB A 9,021 7421
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MERAZE3EA 5,490 3,786
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3EAE1TF 320 1,653
Over 1 year Hid 1 F 847 1,304

15,678 14,164

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on terms between 30 and 40 days.

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BHRNFA/RER—MIZIOKREIRXR
MHRAEE -

23. HttEIREREFER

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Deferred income EEWA - 385
Advances from customers BETEMNHIE - 15,196
Contract liabilities BHEE 7,957 =
Refund liabilities BREEE 17,509 =
Other payables® H At T kIR 22,364 6,860
Accrued payroll FE =t BN 19,771 19,312
Other tax payables Hh e Fi 1R 5,569 3,195
Interest payable FERTFILE M 157

73,211 45,105

* Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

* H A A FORI AT S o

ERAEBEROARAIE —F— \FFH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24, TEERITHER
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate(%) Maturity  RMB’000 rate(%) Maturity RMB'000
BEA=E EIRF &
(%) FH AR%TR (%) 8 AREFT
Current ENEA
Bank loans — unsecured  $RITE T — MK - - - 500-539 2018 39,500
Current portion of REIRITE R
long term bank loans BIERER 1R
— secured — BHEHE 5.70 2019 20,000 5.70 2018 10,000
20,000 49,500
Non-current JEENHR
Bank loans — secured BITER — BHEAE 5.70 2020 7,500 570 2020 27,500
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: FEEEBIRITE
Within one year or on demand —FRHIZER 20,000 49,500
In the second year E-F 7,500 20,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=EZFRF(RREEEMF) - 7,500
27,500 77,000
The Group’s bank loan is secured by the mortgages over the AEBRRTEFRURNEERENNEB QA
Group's 100% equity interests of Shanghai Weiyi Investment iR E E IR AR A E 100% IR HE 6 1
&Management Limited Company* (_ /R E EIR AR A A)), BIEEM -
a subsidiary of the Group.
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

25. PROVISION 25. &
2018 2017
2018 F 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
At 1 January ®n1A1H 678 707
Increase in discounted amounts arising e A i 3B 2 T 38 0 2 AL 3R &8
from the passage of time 41 -
Exchange realignment M (5) (29)
At 31 December Mm12 H31H 714 678
GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, has a restoration obligation under a AEE—HEWBARGHPIRIEY X E#H
property lease agreement. HAEREME -
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SRR oL

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

26. DEFERRED TAX

26. EIEFIIE

(@) Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the @ RERN EHEEHBERARERNIE
consolidated statement of financial position and movements ERMIBBEEARSEEHFEBEOT

during the year are as follows:

Unrealised Impairment
profit ofan
arising from Write- Impairment available-
Taxable intra-group down of of trade Accrued for-sale
loss transactions inventories receivables expense investment Total
£EHERS
FERB BEH g5EKR e
BE REREN  HEAFE REHE  RHEX REAE @zt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARBTR ARBTR ARWTR AR¥TR AR¥TR
31 December 2018 M2018512 8310
At 1 January 2018 201851 A1H 7918 5,545 237 198 1,638 500 16,036
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FAFERIBRETA/
to profit or loss during (%) EERE
the year 10,786 (1,344) 7,060 1,176 1,195 - 18,873
Exchange realignment PE % (39) - - 3 ()] - (38)
Gross deferred tax at R2018F 12 A 31 BH
31 December 2018 RILFT 1B A% 18,665 4,201 7,297 1,377 2,831 500 34,871
Unrealised Impairment
profit ofan
arising from Write-  Impairment available-
Taxable  intra-group down of of trade Accrued for-sale
loss  transactions  inventories  receivables expense  investment Total
fERRS
JERDL EEH BHENR AfihE
BE AERET  WHFE  FORRE RHEX RENE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETT
31 December 2017 M20175128310
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 3,504 3,239 508 164 4990 500 13,085
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FAFERIBZTA/
to profit or loss during (1R IEEHE
the year 4,345 2,306 (349) 42 (3336) - 3,008
Exchange realignment fE HaE Qn = (12) ®) (16) = 57)
Gross deferred tax at R2017E 12 A31 B
31 December 2017 R IBAE 7918 5,545 237 198 1,638 500 16,036

204
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

(b) Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and movements
during the year are as follows:

(b)

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

IERERIE (1)

RER - EEE BN RERL
EHRAERBERESFENOT

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
a subsidiary
Wi — I Bl BB
NAEEN
DNVERE
RMB’000
ARBT T

At 1 January 2018 720184 1 A 1

14,345

Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year E’\imu‘l')\i?iﬁiﬁ’] [ RERIE (333)

Exchange realignment M H, B

9

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2018 20186 12 A 31 BRMIERERIE & B4R 14,021

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
a subsidiary
Wi — R PR 28
NEIEEH
NFERE
RMB'000
ARETT

At 1 January 2017 7201741 A1

17,244

Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year — R 4E A q‘l‘)\TElﬁﬁE’J?@ﬁﬁIﬁﬁ (2,754)

Exchange realignment ME 5, e B

(145)

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31 BRELETIE & B4R 14,345

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB43,403,000 (2017: RMB35,577,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the losses of RMB5,656,000 (2017: RMB3,487,000) as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

AEBMPNFEAREREER AR
43,403,0007C (2017 : A R &
35577,0007T) © BN —ERAFRNE
H - DR SH R SRR B FI| o W AT
2 E B A R 56560007 (2017 £
A R #3,487,0007T ) AT 3% I 3B SE 7 18
BE - DRERER —BRERESE
BEENKB AR - BXEREREER
BERB 2 AR ETRIEEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR oL

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

28.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRA
Shares B 12
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Issued and fully paid: BT RBEARE
946,298,370 (2017: 946,298,370) 946,298,370 A% (2017 4F :
ordinary shares 946,298,370 i) I @M% 94,630 94,630
RESERVES 28. f#fE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 128 to 129 of the financial

statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in
the PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
determined under the PRC accounting standards to the
statutory surplus reserve fund, before profit distributions are
made. The statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable
and may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation
issues by way of paid-up capital.

Capital reserve

The amounts represented the balance of the credit amount
arising from the excess of the par value of the shares from the
paid-in capital contribution. These arose from (i) the share
issue in 2012 when the Company was reformed into a stock
limited company, (i) the share issue in 2014 under the initial
public offering, (iii) the share issue in 2016 for the acquisition
of a subsidiary and (iv) the H share issue in 2016.

Merger reserve

On 24 December 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Australia Cobayer Health Food Co Pty Ltd.
(“Australia Cobayer”) from Gui Pinghu (£ ¥ J#) (‘Mr. Gui").
This transaction has been accounted for using the principles
of merger accounting as a result of common control
transaction. The excess of consideration paid over the
carrying amounts of the net assets acquired was directly
debited into the merger reserve.

AEBRAEERBEFFEFENFESER
HEFHNPERRFE 1282129 B NEAHRE
HEERER -

—

i)

(ii)

(iii)

EEBRHE

RIBHBDER EPIFW%HE’“T‘E\

EELFBD KA - SR RIEF
Ber E£AEENRRANBEHEE

EERBERS  AEBEBRFEE T

Ak - Al AR IR S E RS A B AU

ARAELE AT -

BEXRRE
HRSEEESRAERBERNE
EMNERSBRER ZELBERE

2012 FH IR0 81T (B R AR IERR
E%%ﬁﬂ 7l) : (i)2014 EARE B IR
PR EETRRMDEEST ¢ (i) BLUEE
— BB A B 2016 E B AR1D 31T I
(iv) 78 2016 SF HY H AR 81T ©

EPtEE

20128128248 » AEBRAEF
([ 4E % A& 1) U B Australia Cobayer
Health Food Co Pty Ltd. ([ Australia
Cobayer |) By 2 ZBAR#E o FH 2@ HI52
S WEXZEREHETER
BIARR - FrZ TR EB T A E
EFEREESY BT ASHHE -
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Exchange fluctuation reserve
This reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

(v) Otherreserve
On 2 August 2017, the Company acquired the 40% equity
interest in Shanghai Weiyi from the non-controlling
shareholder. The excess of consideration paid over the
company amounts of the equity interest acquired was
debited into the other reserve.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Pursuant to the agreement entered into between the Company,
Shanghai Fosun Weishi Phase | Equity Investment Fund Partnership
LP (LBEEEN—HAREREESABEEAERER)
(“Fosun Partnership”) and Fosun Weishi (Hong Kong) Limited (8 2
I (F B)A B 2 7)) (‘Fosun HK’) on 21 July 2016 and the
supplemental agreement on 31 March 2017, the Company acquired
the remaining 40% equity of GHP from Fosun Partnership at a
consideration of RMB65.68 million. The acquisition was completed
on 2 August 2017.

Summarised consolidated financial information in relation to the
non-controlling interest of Shanghai Weiyi and its subsidiary GHP,
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

28.

29.

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H
e (4E)

(iv) BREREHE
ZRHERREMAERERINEBMBR
RELMERZHE -

(v) HttRAE
R2017F8 A28 @ AR A\ FEHER
% B U B | M I 4006 BEAE o BT A
FIA(E B AT BB R A A A B OB AT
AE R o

ERBEAFERESHNRIER
BB LR

BEARF - EBEEHY—HRERE
EeABLE(BRER)(EEEREE])
HEEWN(EB)BRAR(ELEESE])
R2016F7AQBEI LM HENEBEBA
20173 A31 B2 @7t - NARIURE
AR ®65680000t BEEE A B EWE
GHP £2T~ 40% X1 - Z W EITAE K 2017 F
8 A2HTH o

I ME TR K2 ELB B A B GHP B JE 4R AR R 25
HRR4R A B TS B BBt (7 5= 18 R A 8 AT
EFROT ¢

1 January to

2018 2 August 2017

201751 A1 H

2018 F Z8H2H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBT T

Revenue WA - 136,745
Cost AR - (75,094)
Total expenses BHEX - (39,394)
Profit for the year F N A - 16,586
Total comprehensive income for the year FRHMEERA LT - 15,193

BMRPLEBEROGERARE —T— \FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H
30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 30. (K56

Acquisition of Brandfolio

On 1 August 2017, GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, purchased the
remaining 64% equity of Brandfolio from the other shareholders of
Brandfolio. As a result, Brandfolio became a wholly-owned
subsidiary from a joint venture of the Group. Brandfolio is a limited
liability company incorporated in New Zealand that specialises in

Iz B8 Brandfolio

201768 A1 H  AREBME R T GHP [
Brandfolio £ 4th A% 5 && B Brandfolio # T~ 64%
% #E o (A Itk Brandfolio Bk /& A £2 B & & 1
XM 2 & B A A o Brandfolio & — B R 4L
MK IMERATE - BFKERE
REFERS - ZWHESHEERAKRE X
ABR o £R A B 7% #R 5% £ #E Brandfolio B UK i
iR E A M S %E4E -

the consignment services of health food products. The acquisition
has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consolidated financial statements include the financial results of
Brandfolio for the five-month period from the acquisition date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Brandfolio
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Brandfolio &) 7] &% 7| & 2= & & & R We i B 83
BAFEIT :

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition

MU B SIERER
WAEE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment L E 122
Cash b 975
Trade receivables B 5 IR 1,106
Prepayments and other receivables TE S FRIE I B At FE W R IR 129
2,332

Liabilities &8
Trade payables B 5N HIE (447)
Accruals and other payables FEET B R R B Ath FE < 5RIE 617)
Income tax payable FEFTIS R (52)
(1,116)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAFEIRNATELFEELE 1216
Goodwill arising from acquisition W hE 2 A 362
Satisfied by shares and cash at fair value DBRAFEIENRERE S 1,578
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Brandfolio (continued)

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

30. ¥BE0t(1E)

I 88 Brandfolio (&)

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
BB SIEER
HWAEE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Analysis of cash flows on acquisition: Wi 2 ) v
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary MM E A R ER IR S 55 975
Cash paid in the current year REEZNHBRE (1,010)
Net cash outflow on acquisition WHEETER ML FRE GTARE
(included in cash flows from investing activities) EEELAMIRSRE) (35)

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected
synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and
activities of Brandfolio with those of the Group. The goodwill is not
deductible for income tax purposes.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB240,135 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Since the acquisition, Brandfolio had no contribution to the Group’s
revenue because of the inter-company transactions, but caused net
losses of RMB2,127,356 to the consolidated profit before tax for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Had the combination taken place at
the beginning of the year 2017, the revenue of the Group and the
profit before tax of the Group for the year 2017 would have been
RMB476,960,100 and RMB11,119,377, respectively.

B iR B E E 25 B R # Brandfolio ¥ & &
EREBGRARENEEREHAHMESE
B TR 195 [RS8 I ELAtb Rk zm o BLARIS AL
5 RABBEHE -

AEBERZWBETEEER IR AARK
240,1357C ° ZER SR AE X KW ALR
AEFREMEENFZRPEFINITHA

o

>4+

B Y B% =5 38 LA 2R Brandfolio B A A A [ 32
SHAEEWRATETR  HEERHZE
201712 A 31 B L FELRE B BLAE F8%
BARE 2127356 THIESTRFEE © WA HFR
017FHEE - AIXAEEKARKEE
WI7EHBRBRATERN DB AARE
476,960,100 TL X A R 11,119377 7L ©

MRPEBARGARAT —F\FEH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR oL

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

31. PLEDGED DEPOSIT

31. FEAFER

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT

Pledged deposit in non-current assets* ERBEEANR A B FER 1,170 -
Pledged deposit in current assets mENEEANNEEIBER 434 1,603
1,604 1,603

During the year of 2018, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a lease *

arrangement as the lessee. Pursuant to the lease agreement, a bank deposit
equivalent to RMB1,170,000 (AUD242,000) (2017: RMB1,235,000 (AUD242,000),
included in Pledged deposit in current assets) was pledged for four years and

will be due on June 15, 2022.

32. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

R20184F + ANEEH) — KB A 7 AEM A F 15
AIVHEREE BEHAERE  HERARYK
1,170,0007T.(242,000/87T ) (20174 = AR#1,235000
70(242,000387T) ) (FE ARBN & E N H B BT
KIIRITIF X E (R - BB F I R 2022F 6
H1sBEH -

32. HftbFRBEE

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AREBTT

Long-term deposits for leased properties AREEMENRIATR 522 416
Prepayment for acquisition of KRR MBSMENKIE

health food certificates 6,212 5728

6,734 6,144
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. ZEBRERERME
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities REITHEEET

Bank borrowings

RITHER
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January W1 A1H 77,000 -
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREEE (49,500) 77,000
At 31 December R12A31H 27,500 77,000
34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34. KEHEZRH
As lessee ERAMEA
The Group leases the majority of its shops and office properties AREBREEEHELZHEEERKILHMA
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of property leases ERPAEYE - MEABN T 1258 K
range from one to five years and more. AEFE -
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TR RSB EHOE THRRKER L
operating leases are due as follows: BENBABERAT -
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Within one year —F LR 11,751 13,450
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEZhF(REEEMF) 17,912 22,011
After five years FELAE 932 4723

30,595 40,184

MRTEREROARAR —T—\FFH [ 211 |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &iE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the NEFRREHRER A NERAIE
reporting period:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B M AREE -
Land and buildings T RIETF 38,844 48,651
36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 36. BB HIRE
Details of the Group’s principal related party are as follows: ANEBEFEMEE FEBEOT
Name Relationship
£ A&
Brandfolio A joint venture of the Group before 1 August 2017

R2017F8 A1 BZRIRARENAEEE

@@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the @ KBUBRREMIIFEIHLANRS
financial statements, the Group had the following N REBRAFE EEFR T A A
transactions with related party during the year: TR :

Period from

1 January To

2018 1 August 2017
201761 A1 H

20185 Z8 A1 HEIM
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Commission paid to Brandfolio A Brandfolio X A & - 2915
Management fee income from Brandfolio & B Brandfolio By & 12 £ FA U A - 246

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: b) AEEFEEEEAENEH
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Basic salaries and bonus BN E RIEA 1,036 1,750
Social insurance and housing fund HERBREREEAES 229 326
1,265 2,076
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

B H5 R MY ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

37. RERIEITNWEMTR

RBERRN SRR BT AREENT

2018 2018 F
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost Total
R R AT
HemEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®TR
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 57,654 57,654
Financial assets included in prepayments, STAFENMRIE « e R EMER K
deposits and other receivables TEM® R E E 7,191 7,191
Cash and cash equivalents B MEEEEBY 201,411 201,411
Pledged deposits BIEFER 1,604 1,604
Deposits included in other non-current assets =+ A E 1 3E 7 8h & 2= 9 1E 3K 522 522
268,382 268,382
Financial liabilities sEmas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
R R AT
HemaE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® TR
Trade payables B S ENFIE 15,678 15,678
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T RIRITEK 27,500 27,500
Financial liabilities included SEAE M RN I N BT E
in other payables and accruals NEerAE 22,405 22,405
65,583 65,583

ERAEBEROARAIE —F— \FFH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR oL

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. BEREsWEMT A (&)

(CONTINUED)
2017 2017
Financial assets SHEE
Loans and
receivables Total
Bk
JEUL SR TE 4t
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREETIT
Trade receivables 5 EWFOR 49,340 49,340
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATENFIE « e RHA
deposits and other receivables EIRRTERN S RE E 7,337 7,337
Cash and cash equivalents BEMESEEY 269,592 269,592
Pledged deposits BB FER 1,603 1,603
Deposits included in other non-current assets s+ AE M IERENE EERITF R 416 416
328,288 328,288
Financial liabilities sREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
TR SR AN T
HErAaE “ast
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT ARETIT
Trade payables Z SRR 14,164 14,164
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EIRITIEK 77,000 77,000
Financial liabilities included STAEMENFIERESEA
in other payables and accruals NEmBE 7,017 7,017
98,181 98,181
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure
to market risk, including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk. As the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s exposure to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the
Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments for
hedging purposes. The Group's risk management objectives and
policies mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of
these risks on the Group by closely monitoring the individual
exposure as follows:

(a) Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group’s management continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit rates assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a number of customers which
had no recent history of default.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are set
outin note 19.

B HS R I ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H
TRLE R EE

AEEWEFAEHRAREZBELES -
AW BEFSCHRRTEH - 2T RHET
%WMM@$EI%EHMW%HA'
BEERRE RBEER  INEERR
MERRE - ARAR T§$WE$EI%
EH SRR ERNRIEKE  AEH
I & & AR OT A A s T AAESH A
®e AKRENRREEERERBEKREZAN
ERNEBEVETATNELRAR  FEL
FRBRHARENEETANEE

(a) EEREB

FEENEERRIZREEES R
Hib WA SEERKEER
R AEEEEERFEEZERBK
¥ UREREREURETTE N E B HE
o ttih AEEESREMRER
A BBIEB KOS - ARRY
AR E & B R R R SR EEE - Bt
HmE  AARBEER/AKENE
B R B AhE B

R MRTESNEERRER - R
ARXFGHFRERBREEFREE
BT RIEEFRART -

AEBVESAETHNEERR - &
SRMFIABE DT HAL EET
BRH)EP

BERAANKEE S RYGRIEMELMNE
ERBRNE-FEERBEHNHE
19 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

38. TRIEBREIE (4§)

Liquidity risk (b) REBELREK
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and NEBRKE AT EIBS BN EA & T8 8A
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with MEESENR UREBESFEEREN
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient B0 UIERESE RO SHER
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding BETFELREE AN EAEEER
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity B AEMREHRSHEST K -
requirements in the short and long term.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRIFVNNAEBRSHEBER TSR
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn FERER - TRIVIBESRMBERNE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial WRRESRERE  ZZL2BETY
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can BERNEEEENTNZEHED
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities B o BENIHANIRHEER
are based on the agreed repayment dates. HEREF o
Total
contractual  Ondemand
Carrying undiscounted or within Over
amount cash flows one year one year
BERKTH RERE
BREE HeRE H1ER —FH0E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR%®TR AR%TR AR%TR
Asat 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H
Trade payables BHEMNFE 15,678 15,678 15,678 -
Other payables Hi e 22,405 22,405 22,405 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TERITER 27,500 29,001 21,268 7,733
65,583 67,084 59,351 7,733
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H
Trade payables B SR 14,164 14,164 14,164 =
Other payables HibEA30E 7,017 7,017 7,017 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER 77,000 82,137 53,136 29,001
98,181 103,318 74317 29,001
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

B HS R I ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

38. TRIEBREIE ()

(c)

ERMTRAAFERAFESFR

rEEeTARHEREATES
BREEERIN NEEERAFER
™

Carrying amounts Fair value
EREE NEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 20174 20185 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMETFT ARETT AR¥TR ARETFR
Financial assets TREE
Pledged deposits BHEBFR 1,604 1,603 1,604 1,603
Deposits included in other STAEMIERBEE
non-current assets ZTFER 522 416 522 416
2,126 2,019 2,126 2,019

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals. The differences are immaterial since the fair values
are mainly equal to their carrying amounts.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 17% (2017: 12%) of the Group's sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale, whilst
approximately 14% (2017: 18%) of costs were denominated in
the units’ functional currencies. The Group also has certain
bank balances denominated in NZD, USD and HKD.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rates against NZD, USD and HKD, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
and equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

(d)

EREFNEREIREEEY B
FENR IR - BB RN R - sT AR
FIR - B REMEEFIAN S RE
E St ARMENFIAMET B
TREENQTE AR A FEKRE
FEREREE  WEBYTEKX -

S EE & B
REBMAZR 5RO INER R o 18
78 [\ B PR DA A % BE (A1 T RE 5 K DA SN
MEBEEMEL ASBEHEETL
17% (2017 4F : 12%) LAEH M & &K &
BN INEEE M AN EEEZ S - T4
149% (2017 6 : 18%) K AKX A LA #E B B8
UM EKEY] - XEBNEES T
LARRPERE T ~ ETT OB TTATERIRTT
i

TRUSIEREEMEERETEY
R - R HI R A RS X AR 7
T ETRATMERARTEED
247 o L A T M BT
(MReREERBEATEET) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R I ot

31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 38. SRiEAREE (&)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) SPEEE ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in
RMB rate before tax in equity*
ARBER FRBE A a A M,
EFH () & R Om ) *
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET T ARET R

2018 2018

If NZD weakens against RMB R PR T A R A (1%) (349) (1,418)
If NZD strengthens against RMB it 41 78 B T 34, A RS FHE 1% 349 1,418
If USD weakens against RMB METHARKEE (1%) - -
If USD strengthens against RMB  fi3E 7T 3 A REEFHE 1% - -
If HKD weakens against RMB MWBTHEARKEE (1%) (251) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB i 7T 3, A R FHE 1% 251 -
2017 2017 %

If NZD weakens against RMB iR FaE TR A R BB A (1%) 279) (7,449)
If NZD strengthens against RMB  fisi &l P 8 7T o, A R & FHE 1% 279 7,449
If USD weakens against RMB =T HARKEE (1%) = =
If USD strengthens against RMB  fid 3 7T 3 A R EEFHE 1% - -
If HKD weakens against RMB HWB TR ARKEE (1%) (285) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB  {ifi/8 70 7 A REEFHE 1% 285 -

* Excluding retained profits

TEEREFH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (note 24). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank borrowings (note 24). Management monitors the
interest rate exposures and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
relating to pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried
at prevailing market rates. However, such exposure is minimal
to the Group as these bank balances are all short-term in
nature.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the interest rate as stipulated by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings,
which is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

For variable-rate bank borrowings, if the interest rates had
been 30 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have decreased by approximately
RMB97,500 (2017: RMB112,000).

B HS R I ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

38. TRIEBREIE ()

(e)

A= B

A ER B e B E A R RITE R A
{EF 2 L (B aE24) o A5 B R B
B BIRITEFBANBE R RENX
R (KI5 24) - B E BT F R AR
Y RERRE{EBEREANEE

% -

AR BN A IR E B 5 AR5
B2 EBEMRTERERITEHR IR
ERENERR - AW - HREFR
THRHEVDBEPTE  ZARHAE
== BN -

ARBZRASRENEXREREESET
KEARGEzZ ARBERETFEAR
RITRTBAZ MR B

ATEEE DT IERRFBRITE
RMEZMNERBRTMERE - 2515
FRJERB/ERRREEEBESEN
BEEFEA—HRAREE -

FERITERME + MAELEFH30
EEE - MAFEMESESERTE
AREBREE218F12H318 IEF
E2BBRERMNGRDOARE
97,5007C(20174F + AR¥112,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 H

38.

39.

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial
statements, there has been no material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or the Group after the reporting
period.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures have been re-presented to conform to
the current year's presentation.

38. TRIEBREIE (4§)

39.

40.

BEXER

AEBERER 2 EABRRREAKE
ZRBEERNDERRREER L R
EBERIYERBRREERAKAIL -

Zl»‘%@ B E'Eﬁi\ﬁzli T% I*EF%&E—%‘E&

%%ﬂ%é% T% Wil‘f uﬂ%émﬂx
BIRE - MREEERANKEITHR - &
SE N ZEMINGBIEMAIE R ZRKIER o
H E2018F 128318 K2017F12A31H
EFE EXEENEE  BURKEFH
R o

BEMRER

R BERRAITHANRZIN  REBEH
BARRAIAKEL EENRRER -

bEEREHE
ETHBRBFTEES  UHARFENE
B o
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial position of the

41. RRFBMBARRER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M ot

31 December 2018 20184 12 A 31 H

RBEHAR - ARANRBHBRARNE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 10,158 12,173
Investment properties KEME 2,606 2,790
Investments in subsidiaries R BARIKRE 342,404 360,637
Other non-current assets HEMIEmB&EE - 345
Deferred tax assets FEETR I & 11,045 1,006
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 366,213 376,951
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 50,940 113,183
Trade receivables B 5 WA 14,224 6,712
Due from subsidiaries RS NGIE 241,704 147,498
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FBf3RIE ~ & R H b K FIB 8,947 18,250
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 147,775 201,481
Total current assets mMEEEAE 463,590 487,124
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade payables B 5N RIE 39 117
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 20,000 49,500
Due to subsidiaries FEASTFT B A B R E 72,304 45,534
Other payables and accruals E b e FE M BB A 16,728 9,019
Total current liabilities ME A BT 109,071 104,170
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 354,519 382,954
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTRERITER 7,500 27,500
Total non-current liabilities EmBEEERE 7,500 27,500
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A EERREE & 720,732 759,905
NET ASSETS EEBE 713,232 732,405
EQUITY =
Share capital A% 7R 94,630 94,630
Other reserves (note) H b (FHFE) 618,602 637,775
Total equity EmBE 713,232 732,405
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41, AR B HHARR K ()
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: FfiE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RATEEBREWNT :
Statutory
Capital surplus Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EXFE EERBREE R E FI st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®TT

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A18 544,223 44,544 118,556 707,323
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 FEUR A MEEE - - 30,476 30,476
Final 2016 dividends declared and paid BEIREZ 2016 FARIRE - - (100,024) (100,024)
Transfer from retained profits R AREFE = 2,771 2,771) =
At 31 December 2017 R20176F12 8318 544,223 47,315 46,237 637,775
At 1 January 2018 72018%E1 A1 H 544,223 47,315 46,237 637,775
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNZEBRALRE - - (19,173) (19,173)
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 544,223 47,315 27,064 618,602

42. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 42, #tELGZEMEEHRER
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and REMBHRERAESTSN2019F3A298
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019. RO R IR T3 -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A ET B E

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling

kA e TIREEZV BRI LLSS (fHEM)

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the MAEBROCRAEVEBREE X85 EE - 8F
published audited financial statements and re-presented as appropriate, is RIEfEpE s B =& H T o
set out below.
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20145 20156 20164 20174 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT AR%ETT ARETT AR¥TxR
RESULTS #i5
REVENUE Wogs 252,449 397,064 466,241 472,490 453,199
Cost of sales HERA (23,099) (77,138) (139,549) (166,893) (204,229)
Gross profit e 229,350 319,926 326,692 305,597 248,970
Other income and gains Hip g A R das 15,785 15,008 13407 7252 9,053
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERY 62911) (90,054) (131,905) (190,761) (225,550)
Administrative expenses IBREIX (38743) (59488) (85,385) (83,090) (79,768)
Other expenses HivF% (3923) (1212) (3719) (23319) (76,465)
Finance costs BB - - = (1.815) (3,363)
Share of profits of a joint venture AME—HEELEMNHE - 327 426 24 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREAIFIE (B1B) 139,558 184,507 119516 14,088 (127,123)
Income tax (expense)/credit R (A #e (31,688) (45557) (28,870) (3,245) 14,286
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REEFE/ (BB) 107,870 138950 90,646 10,843 (112,837)
Attributable to: BEN:
Owners of the parent SUNGIEZZEPN 107,873 136,233 87,232 4209 (112,837)
Non-controlling interests JEIR R RS 3) 2717 3414 6,634 -
107,870 138,950 90,646 10,843 (112,837)
MRTEREROARAR —T—\FFH [ 223 |



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFHEGHE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE BERFERER
INTERESTS

As at 31 December

W12831H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 20165 20174 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT AR%ET:R

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 664,903 779,759 983,664 874,968 740,981
TOTAL LIABILITIES Bafk (31,950) (64,046) (102,855) (159940) (137,427)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS RS (4997) (51,193) (57,585) - -
TOTAL Bt 627956 664,520 823,224 715,028 603,554
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